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Fiscal 2008 marked the tenth full year of MIPS Technologies’ existence as a public intellectual property {IP)
company. In August 2007, we acquired Chipidea Microelectronica, the largest supplier of analog IP in the world.
With this acquisition, MIPS moved to the number two revenue position as an intellectual property supplier.

Our revenues grew 26% year on year as a result of the acquisition in the presence of a very soft processor
licensing market. Processor licensing revenues fell by 23% during the fiscal year as we experienced two very
weak quarters ending in December and in March. Processor royalties continued their long-term growth to $45.5
million, though growth during the year was less than 5%. Qur customers shipped more than 410 million MIPS-
Based integrated circuits (ICs) during the fiscal year, including several quarters in excess of 100 million units.
This is the first year in which such unit shipments have crossed the 100 million unit line in any gquarter. The
addition of the Chipidea revenues across a litle more than three quarters added $29.2 million to the total revenue
numbers.

The Chipidea acquisition was a huge event for MIPS. The company has licensing revenues that are comparable
to those of the parent company, has a larger number of license agreements that contribute to licensing revenue,
and has four separate and distinct product lines contributing to revenues. With greater participation in power-
sensitive mobile markets, Chipidea serves a larger overall market, with similar customers in many of the same
vertical markets that MIPS has historically served with processors.

Royalty revenuves from Chipidea are not material contributors to our total revenue, so the total revenue
contribution from Chipidea is about half of that from the processor business. The rationale for the acquisition is
straightforward. Analog circuits are used in nearly every system-on-chip (SoC) IC—the same ICs that our
processors are sold into—so our sales activities are quite synergistic. These circuits require highly specialized
engineering skills that are comparatively difficult to assimilate. Indeed, one secret to Chipidea’s rapid growth and
size has been the ability of its management team to find and assimilate analog design talent on a scale that could
support its rapid growth,

Historically, analog has been sufficiently difficult to implement so that it has been left off of large ICs and placed
in separate discrete packages at considerable cost premiums, or it has been implemented by specialized design
teams that required significant investments by the developing entity. As such, analog is considered strategic by
those companies. Since it is important and difficult to do, the availability of various analog components often
drives larger decisions, and yet, analog is not a differentiator. These characteristics make analog almost by
definition a great candidate for an IP supplier: it is needed by many, difficult to do, but not the differentiating
element in a design. Add to this the potential for very high growth in this segment as companies move towards an
outsourcing model, and the desirability of the world’s leading analog IP provider 10 be a part of MIPS is
apparent. As a very large, complex acquisition, the integration is a focus area for MIPS’ management, and the
full benefits have not been realized as yet. It is a work in progress.

During the year, the MIPS Processor Business Group rolled out its first multi-core product, the 1004K core, With
the addition of the 1004K core, MIPS Technologies now has three distinct ways to serve the high-performance
segment of the business: the multi-threaded 34K core, the high-performance single-threaded 1GHz 74K core, and
now the multi-core, multi-threaded 1004K core. We are providing our customers with the most complete range of
high-performance cores as well as the most overall performance options on the market. In addition, we made
great progress during the year at the other end of our product line with the introduction of microcontroller
products based on our M4K core from our new partner, Microchip Technology, the leader in the very high-
volume microcontroller market.
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New analog products during the year included the industry’s first 65nm HDMI cores. This product family is
expected to be integrated in a wide variety of products moving forward, as HDMI is the standard digital
interconnect between digital TVs and their source peripherals. With low power and SoC integration, our HDMI
offering is also designed to bring HDMI connectivity to portable devices.

Looking forward, fiscal 2009 should be an important year for MIPS Technologies. As we streamline the
operations of our analog and processor businesses, we expect (o see increased synergies in our sales operations,
leading to a resumption of license revenue growth. We are in the process of rimming back our operating
spending to levels that should provide us with good room to improve our cash position while maintaining our
foundation for future growth.

We look forward to fiscal 2009 and thank you for your ongoing support.

John Bourgoin
President & CEO
MIPS Technologies
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September 22, 2008

Dear Stockholder:

You are cordially invited to attend the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of MIPS Technologies, Inc. to
be held on Wednesday, November 12, 2008 at our corporate headquarters at 1225 Charleston Road, Mountain
View, California commencing at 2:00 p.m., Pacific Time. If you cannot attend the annual meeting, please
complete, sign, date and promptly return the enclosed proxy card in the enclosed postage-prepaid envelope or by
electronic means.

At the annual meeting:
1. To consider and vote upon the election of three Class I directors and one Class 11 director;

2. To consider and vote upon the ratification of the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our
independent auditors for the current fiscal year, which ends on June 30, 2009;

Our Board of Directors has unanimously (1) nominated the three Class I directors and one Class II
director, and (2) approved the appeintment of the independent auditors and recommends a vote FOR the
Class I directors and Class II director, and a vote FOR the approval and adoption of Proposal No. 2.

We are taking advantage of a new U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission rule that allows us to use the
Internet as our primary means of furnishing proxy materials to stockholders. Consequently, most stockholders
will not receive paper copies of our proxy materials. Rather, these stockholders will receive from us a notice with
instructions for accessing the proxy matenials and voting via the Internet or by telephone. The notice also
instructs stockholders desiring paper copies of our proxy materials as to how these copies may be obtained. We
expect that our application of this new rule will make the proxy distribution process more efficient and will
conserve natural resources.

For further information regarding the matters to be voted on at the annual meeting, I urge you to
carefully read the accompanying Proxy Statement, If you have more questions about these proposals or would
like additional copies of the Proxy Statement, please contact Maury Austin, Chief Financial Officer of MIPS
Technolegies, Inc., at 1225 Charleston Road, Mountain View, California 94043 or by telephone at (650) 567-
5000. Even if you plan to attend the annual meeting in person, please complete, sign, date, and promptly return
the enclosed proxy card in the enclosed postage-prepaid envelope or by electronic means. This will not limit your
right to attend or vote at the annual meeting.

Sincerely, Sincerely,

M #blL ‘et /’”’/ ’2 2 ,,;
Anthony B. Holbrook John E. Bourgoin

Chairman Chief Executive Officer and President

The accompanying Proxy Statement is dated September 22, 2008 and is first being made available to
stockholders on or about October 1, 2008. Additional copies of our Proxy Statement and Annual Report on Form
10-K can be obtained free of charge by contacting Investor Relations at (650) 567-5100.

1225 CHARLESTON ROAD | MOUNTAIN VIEW, CA 94043-1353 PHONE 650.567.5000 | FAX 650.567.5150 | WEB www.mips.com




MIPPS

TECHNOLOGIES

MIPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
1225 CHARLESTON ROAD
MOUNTAIN VIEW, CALIFORNIA 94043

NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
NOVEMBER 12, 2008

To the Stockholders of
MIPS TECHNOLOQGIES, INC.:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of MIPS Technologies, Inc.
will be held at our corporate headquarters at 225 Charieston Road, Mountain View, California on November 12,
2008. The annual meeting will begin at 2:00 p.m. Pacific Time, for the following purposes:

1. To elect three Class I directors to serve a three-year term and one Class 11 director to serve a one-year
term;

2. To ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent auditors for the current fiscal
year, which ends on June 30, 2009;

5. To transact such other business as may properly come before the annual meeting or any adjournment or
postponement thereof.

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on September 15, 2008 are entitled to notice of and to
vote at the annual meeting.

All stockholders are cordially invited to attend the annual meeting in person, However, to enstre your
representation at the annual meeting, you are urged to complete, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card
as promptly as possible in the postage-prepaid envelope enclosed for thar purpose or to vote by electronic
means. Any stockholder attending the annual meeting may vote in person, even though he or she has previously
returned a proxy.

By Order of the Board of Directors of
MIPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

Stuart J. Nichols
Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate
Secretary

Mountain View, California
September 22, 2008

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT

In order to ensure your representation at the annual meeting, you are requested to complete, sign and date the
enclosed proxy as promptly as possible and return it in the enclosed envelope or to vote by electronic means,

1225 CHARLESTON ROAD MOUNTAIN VIEW, CA 94043-1353 PHONE 650.567.5000 | FAX 650.567.5150 [ WEB www.mips.com
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PROXY STATEMENT
INFORMATION CONCERNING SOLICITATION AND VOTING
General

This Proxy Statement is being furnished by our Board of Directors to holders of our common stock, par
value $0.001 per share, in connection with the solicitation of proxies by our Board of Directors for use at the
2008 Anpnual Meeting of MIPS Technologies, Inc. (“MIPS™) stockholders to be held on Wednesday,
November 12, 2008 at our corporate headquarters at 1225 Charleston Road, Mountain View, California
commencing at 2:00 p.m., Pacific Time, and at any adjournment or postponement thereof. The purposes of the
annual meeting are set forth in this Proxy Statement and in the accompanying Notice of the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

Our complete mailing address is MIPS Technologies, Inc., 1225 Charleston Road, Mountain View,
California 94043, and our telephone number is (650) 567-5000.

This Proxy Statement and the accompanying form of proxy are first being made available to our
stockholders on or about October 1, 2008.

Stockholders Entitled to Vote; Quorum and Vote Required

The MIPS Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on September 15, 2008 as the record date for
the determination of the stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the annual meeting. Accordingly, only
holders of record on this date will be entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the annual meeting. As of the close of
business on the record date, there were outstanding and entitled to vote 44,371,579 shares of common stock,
constituting all of the voting stock of MIPS. As of the record date, there were 3,679 holders of record of commeon
stock. Each holder of record of our common stock on the record date is entitled to one vote per share, which may
be cast either in person or by proxy, at the annual meeting.

The presence, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of common stock
entitled to vote at the annual meeting is necessary to constitute a quorum. Shares of our common stock present, in
person or by proxy, will be counted for the purpose of determining whether a quorum is present at the annual
meeting. Shares that abstain from voting, and shares held by a broker nominee in “street name” which indicates
on a proxy that it does not have discretionary authority to vote as 1o a particular matter, will be treated as shares
that are present and entitled to vote at the annual meeting for purposes of determining whether a quorum exists.
In connection with Proposal No. 1, the election of directors, abstentions will have no effect on the cutcome of the
vote, In connection with Proposal No. 2, abstentions will have the effect of “NO” votes. Broker non-votes will
have no effect on the outcome of the vote with respect to the matters to be brought before the annual meeting.

Directors will be elected at the meeting by a plurality of the votes cast. Proposal No. 2 will be decided by a
majority of the vote of shares of common stock present, in person or by proxy, at the meeting and actually cast.

Proxies

This Proxy Statement is being furnished to you in connection with the solicitation of proxies by, and on
behalf of, our Board of Directors for use at the annuat meeting, and is accompanied by a form of proxy.

All shares of our common stock represented at the annual meeting by properly executed proxies that have
not been revoked will be voted at the annual meeting in accordance with the instructions indicated on such
proxies. If no instructions are indicated (other than in the case of broker non-votes), such proxies will be voted as
recommended by our Board of Directors.

Stockholders of the Company may submit notice of any matter to be brought before the annual meeting
prior to the tenth day following the date that the Company makes public announcement of the date of the annual
meeting. As a result, at the time of the printing of this statement, we cannot know whether we will receive notice
of any other matter to be brought before the annual meeting. If any other matters are properly presented at the
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annual meeting for consideration, including, among other things, consideration of a motion to adjourn such
annual meeting to another time and/or place (including, without limitation, for the purposes of soliciting
additional proxies), the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy and acting thereunder will have discretion
to vote on such matters in accordance with their judgment.

Any proxy given pursuant to this solicitation may be revoked by the person giving it at any time before it is
voted. Proxies may be revoked by (i) filing with the Secretary of MIPS, at or before the taking of the vote at the
annual meeting, a written notice of revocation bearing a later date than the proxy, (i) duly executing a later dated
proxy relating to the same shares and delivering it to the Secretary of MIPS before the taking of the vote at the
annual meeting or (iii) attending the annual meeting and voting in person (although attendance at the annual
meeting will not in and of itself constitute a revocation of the proxy). Any written notice of revocation or
subsequent proxy should be sent to MIPS Technologies, Inc., 1225 Charleston Road, Mountain View, California
94043, Attention: Secretary, or hand delivered to the Secretary of MIPS at or before the taking of the vote at the
annual meeting.

Please note that if a stockholder’s shares are held of record by a broker, bank or other nominee and that
stockholder wishes to vote at the meeting, the stockholder must bring to the meeting a letter from the broker,
bank or other nominee confirming the stockholder’s beneficial ownership of the shares and granting a proxy to
the stockholder to vote the shares at the meeting.

MIPS will pay the cost of soliciting proxies. In addition to solicitation by use of the mails, proxies may be
solicited from MIPS stockholders by directors, officers and employees of MIPS in person or by telephone,
telegram or other means of communication. Such directors, officers and employees will not be additionally
compensated, but may be reimbursed for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses in connection with such solicitation.
Arrangements will be made with brokerage houses, custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for forwarding of proxy
materials to beneficial owners of shares held of record by such brokerage houses, custodians, nominees and
fiduciaries and for reimbursement of their reasonable expenses incurred in connection therewith. Stockholders
sharing an address may receive only one set of proxy materials to that address unless they have provided contrary
instructions. MIPS will deliver promptly upon written or oral request a separate set of the proxy materials to a
stockholder at a shared address to which a single copy of the proxy materials was delivered. A stockholder may
notify MIPS that he (she) wishes to receive a separate copy of the proxy materials, and stockholders sharing an
address may request delivery of a single copy of the proxy materials by writing to the Secretary at our corporate
headquarters, 1225 Charleston Road, Mountain View, Californian 94043 or calling {650) 567-5100.

PROPOSAL NO. 1—ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Directors and Nominees for Director

Our board members serve staggered three-year terms. The Board of Directors has the ability to change the
size and composition of our Board of Directors.

Our Board of Directors currently consists of seven directors, divided into three classes as set forth in the
following table:
Class Expiration of Term Board Members
Class 1 2008 Annual Meeting Anthony B. Holbrook
John E. Bourgoin
Robert R. Herb
Robin L. Washington

Class 11 2009 Annual Meeting Fred M. Gibbons

Class I[II 2010 Annual Meeting Kenneth L. Coleman
William M. Kelly




The persons named as proxies in the enclosed form of proxy intend to vote proxies for the re-election of the
nominees named below, unless otherwise directed. If, contrary to our expectations, a nominee should become
unavailable for any reason or decline to serve as a director, votes may be cast pursuant to the accompanying form
of proxy for a substitute nominee designated by the Board of Directors.

Holders of our common stock will elect at the annual meeting three directors to serve as the Class I directors
for a three-year term ending in 2011 or until a successor is elected and qualified or until their earlier resignation
or removal. Ms. Washington was elected to our Board of Directors by the board in Aprit 2008. Qur Bylaws
provide that a person so elected shall be appointed to the class next standing for election. In order that the classes
will be as even in size as possible, Mr. Holbrook is standing for election as a Class II director for a one-year term
or until a successor is elected and qualified or until his earlier resignation or removal.

The following table presents information regarding the nominees for election to our Board of Directors.

Name Principal Occupation and Business Experience
CLASS 11 DIRECTOR NOMINEE
Anthony B. Holbrook ............ Retired Chief Technical Officer of Advanced Micro Devices, Inc. or
Age: 69 AMBD. From 1973 until his retirement in 1994, Mr. Holbrook served in a

Board Member since July 1998 and number of executive positions with AMD including Chief Operating

Chairman of the Board since August Officer from 1982 to 1989, President from 1986 to 1990, and Vice

2003. Chairman and Chief Technical Officer from 1989 to 1994. He continued
to serve as Vice Chairman of AMD’s Board of Directors after his
retirement until April 1996, Prior to his employment with AMD,
Mr. Holbrook held engineering and general management positions with
Fairchild Semiconductor, Inc. and Computer Microtechnology, Inc.

CLASS 1 DIRECTOR NOMINEES

John E. Bourgoin ............... Chief Executive Officer and President of MIPS Technologies, Inc.
Age: 62 Mr. Bourgoin has served as our Chief Executive Officer since February
Board Member since May 1997 1998 and our President since September 1996, Mr. Bourgoin also served

as a Senior Vice President of Silicon Graphics, Inc., or SGI, from
September 1996 through May 1998. Prior to joining SGI and since 1976,
Mr. Bourgoin was employed at AMD and held various positions
including Group Vice President, Computation Products Group of AMD.
Mr. Bourgoin is a member of the Board of Directors of Stream
Processors Inc.

RobertR.Hetb ................. Venture Partner, Scale Venture Partners (formerly known as BA Venture

Age: 47 Partners) since July 2005. Mr. Herb was formerly an Executive Vice

Board Member since January 2005 President and Chief Marketing Officer of Advanced Micro Devices, Inc.
or AMD. From 1983 to 2004, Mr. Herb served in a number of executive
positions with AMD including Vice President of Strategic Marketing for
AMD’s Computation Products Group from 1996 to 1998, and Senior
Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer from 1998 to 2000. He was
promoted to Executive Vice President, Chief Marketing Officer and
made a member of the office of the CEQ in 2000. Mr. Herb is a member
of the Board of Directors of Astute Networks, Inc., Enpirion, Inc.,
NComputing, Inc., and Siimpel.

Robin L. Washington ............ Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Gilead Sciences,
Age: 45 Inc. since May 2008. From 2006 to 2007, Ms. Washington was Chief
Board Member since April 2008 Financial Officer of Hyperion Solutions, which was acquired by Oracle

Corporation in March 2007. From 1986 to 2005, Ms. Washington served
in a number of executive positions with PeopleSoft, most recently in the
role of Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller,

3




The following table presents information regarding our continuing directors.

Name Principal Occupation and Business Experience
Kenneth L. Coleman ............. Chairman, Accelrys, Inc. Since February 2006, Mr. Coleman has served
Age: 65 as Chairman of Accelrys, Inc. He was Founder, Chairman and CEO of

Board Member since January 1998 I'T™™ Software, an enterprise software company, from October 2001 and
until January 2006. Previousty from January 1987 to August 2001,
Mr. Coleman served in varicus senior executive positions at SGI such as
Executive Vice President of Global Sales, Service and Marketing, Senior
Vice President, Customer and Professional Services and Senior Vice
President, Administration. Prior to joining SGI, Mr. Coleman was Vice
President of Product Development at Activision, Inc. Mr. Coleman is a
member of the Board of Directors of United Online, an internet service
provider, City National Bank and Accelyrs (chairman), a scientific data
software provider.

Fred M. Gibbons . ............... Consulting Professor, Stanford University. Since 2006, Mr. Gibbons has
Age: 59 been a Consulting Professor in the Electrical Engineering department at
Board Member since July 1998 Stanford University. In 1995, Mr, Gibbons founded Venture-Concept, an

investment firm based in California, and was a Partner until 2006. From
1995 through 1999, Mr. Gibbons was a lecturer at the Stanford
University Graduate School of Electrical Engineering. In 1981,
Mr. Gibbons founded Software Publishing Corporation based in San
Jose, California, a company engaged in the development of software
systems for personal computer applications, and was its Chief Executive
Officer through 1994,

William M. Kelly ............... Partner, with the law firm of Davis Polk & Wardwell. Mr. Kelly has been

Age: 55 a partner with Davis Polk & Wardwell since January 2000. Prior to that

Board Member since January 1998 time, Mr. Kelly served in several capacities with SGI. Mr. Kelly joined
SGI in 1994 as Vice President, Business Development, General Counsel
and Secretary and, from 1997 to 1999, served as Senior Vice President,
Corporate Operations of SGI. During 1996, Mr. Kelly also served as
Senior Vice President, Silicon Interactive Group of SGI and as acting
Chief Financial Officer of SGI from May 1997 to February 1998.

Benjamin A. Horowitz was a member of our Board of Directors whose term expired on August 9, 2007, the
date of the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, when he did not stand for reelection to the board. Jose Franca,
the co-founder of Chipidea who joined the board in 2007 in connection with the Chipidea acquisition, resigned
from the Board in September 2008 following his resignation as an officer and employee in September 2008. As a
result of Dr. Franca's recent resignation, we have one vacancy on our Board of Directors, and the Board has
completed action in accordance with our Bylaws to reduce the size of the board to seven members, which
eliminates this vacancy.

Board of Directors’ Meetings and Committees

Our Board of Directors held four regular meetings during fiscal 2008. Our Board of Directors has
determined that each of our directors other than Mr. Bourgoin qualifies as an “independent director” in
accordance with NASDAQ listing requirements.

The evaluation of director independence by the Board of Directors involves application of NASDAQ's
objective criteria as well as a subjective determination of independence. In making its subjective determination of
independence, the Board of Directors would generally consider commercial and other transactions and other
relationships between MIPS and each director and his family members and affiliated entities.




No director or nominee attended fewer than 75% of the aggregate number of meetings of the Board of
Directors and meetings of the committees of the board on which he served during fiscal 2008, other than
Ms. Washington who attended all meetings of the board and the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
that were held after she joined the board. Our independent directors meet regularly outside the presence of
Mr. Bourgoin, our Chief Executive Officer. Qur Board of Directors has a policy of encouraging but not requiring
members to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders. All of our directors attended our 2007 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders.

Qur Board of Directors has three committees, the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee, the
Compensation Committee and the Nominating Committee. Each member of these committees is an independent
director in accordance with NASDAQ standards, and each member of the Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee meets the special independence standards established by the Securities and Exchange Commission
{"“SEC"} for audit committees. Each committee has a written charter approved by the board, which is available on
MIPS’ website at ittp:/Avww.mips.com by clicking on “Corporate,” then “Investor Relations,” and finally on
“Corporate Governance.”

During fiscal 2008, the members of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee were Mr. Kelly
(Chairman), Mr. Gibbons, Mr. Holbrook and, upon her joining the board, Ms. Washington. The Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee met six times during fiscal 2008. The responsibilities of the Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee include selecting, evaluating and approving the compensation of our
independent auditors, reviewing and discussing with management and our independent auditors our quarterly and
annual financial statements, reviewing with management and the independent auditors our internal control
policies and their effectiveness and, as may be requested from time to time by our Board of Directors, performing
investigations and reviewing related party transactions, Qur Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Kelly
satisfies the definition of an “audit committee financial expert” under SEC rules. This designation does not
impose any duties, obligations or liabilities on Mr. Kelly that are greater than those generally imposed on him as
a member of the Audit and Corporate Governance Commiittee and the Board of Directors, and his designation as
an audit committee financial expert pursuant to this SEC requirement does not affect the duties, obligations or
liability of any other member of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee or the Board of Directors.

During fiscal 2008, the members of the Compensation Committee were Mr, Coleman (Chairman), Mr. Herb
and Mr. Gibbons, who joined the committee when Mr. Horowitz ceased to be a director, and committee member,
in August 2007. The Compensation Committee met eight times during fiscal 2008. The responsibilities of the
Compensation Committee include administering our equity compensation plans, reviewing and approving grants
under our equity compensation plans and approving other performance-based compensation, which is intended to
be excluded from the deductibility limitations imposed by Section 162(m} of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended, developing performance criteria for and periodically evaluating the performance of our Chief
Executive Officer, reviewing and recommending to the full board the salary, bonus and stock incentive
compensation of our Chief Executive Officer, and approving the salaries, bonuses and stock incentive
compensation of our other officers.

During fiscal 2008, the members of the Nominating Committee were Mr. Holbrook (Chairman),
Mr. Gibbons, Mr. Herb, Mr. Horowitz until August 2007, Mr. Kelly and, upon her joining the board,
Ms. Waghington. The Nominating Commitiee met one time during fiscal 2008. The responsibilities of the
Nominating Committee include reviewing candidates and recommending nominees for election as directors.

Our Board of Directors may, from time to time, establish certain other committees to facilitate the
management of MIPS.
Corporate Governance

Any stockholder wishing to communicate with our board may write to the Board of Directors, MIPS
Technologies, Inc., 1225 Charleston Road, Mountain View, California, 94043. Qur Secretary will review all such
stockholder communications and has the authority to disregard any communications that are inappropriate or
irrelevant to the Company and its operations, or to take other appropriate actions with respect to such
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communications. Except for inappropriate or irrelevant communications, the Secretary will submit all other
communications to the chairman of the board.

The Nominating Committee will consider nominees for election as a member of our Board of Directors that
are recommended by stockholders. Any stockholder recommendations should be accompanied by personal
information of the candidate, including a list of the candidate’s references, the candidate’s resume or curriculum
vitae and the other information required in the stockholder notice required by Article II, Section 5 of our
Company Bylaws. A stockholder recommending a candidate may be asked to submit additional information as
determined by our Corporate Secretary and as necessary to satisfy Securities and Exchange Commission or
NASDAQ rules. The stockholder should deliver the recommendations to Stuart J. Nichols, Secretary, MIPS
Technologies, Inc., 1225 Charleston Road, Mountain View, California 94043, The goal of the Nominating
Committee is to ensure that our board possesses a variety of perspectives and skills derived from high-guality
business and professional experience. The committee seeks to achieve a balance of knowledge, experience and
capability on our board. To this end, the committee seeks nominees with high professional and personal ethics
and values, an understanding of our business lines and industry, diversity of business experience and expertise,
broad-based business acumen, and the ability to think strategically. In addition, the committee considers the level
of the candidate’s commitment to active participation as a director, both at board and committee meetings and
otherwise. Although the committee uses these and other criteria to evaluate potential nominees, we have no
stated minimum criteria for nominees. When appropriate, the committee may retain executive recruitment firms
to assist in identifying suitable candidates. After its evaluation of potential nominees, the committee submits its
chosen nominees to the board for approval. The Committee will evaluate all candidates in the same manner
regardless of the source of recommendation, Ms. Washington was appointed to the board in April 2008. She was
recommended by the Nominating Committee.

We maintain a Code of Business Conduct (*Code™), which incorporates our written code of ethics that is
applicable to our chief executive officer, chief financial officer and controller. The Code of Business Conduct
incorporates guidelines designed to deter wrongdoing and to promote honest and ethical conduct and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. The Code of Business Conduct incorporating the code of ethics is available
on our website at http://www.mips.com by clicking on “Corporate,” then “Investor Relations,” and finally on
“Corporate Governance.” Changes to or waivers of the code of ethics will be disclosed on the same website.

The Code does not distinguish between potential conflict of interest transactions with executive officers or
directors and those with other employees. It notes that all covered persons must avoid situations where their
interests conflict, or would appear to conflict, with those of the Company. The Code notes that it is not possible
to list all types of conflict situations, but provides examples of several types of scenarios that could involve a
conflict of interest, including:

* Related party transactions

* Qutside employment

* Personal benefit from MIPS family business
+ Qutside board memberships

The Code requires that covered persons report to their manager any ownership interest or other relationship
that might affect their ability to exercise impartial, ethical judgments. The Code does not expressly set forth the
standards that would be applied in reviewing or approving related party transactions in which directors or
executive officers of the Company have a material interest. In general, any such transactions that are so identified
would be submitted for approval to the Audit and Corporate Govemnance Committee of the Board of Directors,
which is authorized by the Charter of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee to review related party
transactions. The Company expects that in reviewing, and potentially approving, any such transactions, that the
Audit and Corporate Governance Committee would be provided with all material facts relative to the proposed
transaction, the nature and extent of the director’s or executive officer’s interest in the transaction, and the terms
upon which the products, services or other subject matter of the transaction could be provided by alternative
sources. The Company further expects that any such transaction would be approved only if the Audit and
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Corporate Governance Committee determined that it was in the interest of the Company to proceed with it. The
Company expects that pre-approval would be sought for any such transaction whenever practicable, and if
pre-approval is not obtained, any such transaction would be submitted for ratification as soon as practicable.

Director Compensation

The policy of the board is that compensation for independent directors should be a mix of cash and equity-
based compensation. MIPS does not pay employee directors for board service in addition to their regular
employee compensation. Independent directors may not receive consulting, advisory or other compensatory fees
from the company. The Compensation Committee, which consists solely of independent directors, has the
primary responsibility to review and consider any revisions to directors’ compensation.

Directors who do not receive compensation as officers or employees of MIPS or directors, officers or
employees of any of our affiliates receive an annual board membership retainer of $20,000, which is paid in four
quarterly installments. The chairmen of the Audit and Corporate Governance and the Compensation Committees
receive an additional annual retainer of $7,500, which is paid annually. In addition, non-employee directors
receive $1,500 per meeting for personal attendance at board meetings, or $750 per meeting if the meeting is
conducted telephonically, and $1.000 per meeting for personal attendance at committee meetings, or $750 per
meeting if the meeting is conducted telephonically, except for meetings of the Nominating Committee, for which
there is no additional retainer. Non-employee directors are reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred in
attending. The annual board membership retainer for the chairman of the board is $100,000. The “Director
Compensation for Fiscal 2008” table below provides further details regarding Director compensation.

Upon a non-employee director’s election or appointment to our Board of Directors, he or she will
automatically receive an initial nonstatutory stock option grant to purchase 40,000 shares of common stock. Each
non-employee director who has been a director for at least six months, as of the date of our annual meeting, will
automaticatly receive an additional annual nonstatutory stock option grant to purchase 12,500 shares of common
stock on the date of the annual stockholder meeting. All stock option grants to non-employee directors are
granted with an exercise price equal to the fair market value of common stock on the date of grani. Initial grants
vest monthly over a 36-month period and additional annual grants vest immediately.

Under the terms of our 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated, on the date of our 2007
Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on December 6, 2007, Messrs. Coleman, Gibbons, Herb, Holbrook and
Kelly were each granted options to purchase 12,500 shares. These options vested immediately and have a term of
seven years.

The following table shows compensation information for MIPS’ current and former non-employee directors
for fiscal 2008.

Director Compensation for Fiscal 2008
Fees Earned or Option Awards ($)

Name Paid in Cash ($) ) Total ($)
KennethL.Coleman .......................... $ 51,000 —) $ 51,000
Fred M.Gibbons . ......... ... oo iaa., $ 44,750 —(3) $ 44,750
RobertR.Herb ... .. ... ... ... ... .. . ...... $ 42,750 $34,667(4) $ 77417
Anthony B.Holbrook ................ ... ... .. $122,000 —(5) $122,000
WilliamM. Kelly ............ ... ... ... ... $ 50,750 —(6) $ 50,750
Robin Washington .. ............ ... ... ..., $ 7.500 $ 513247 $ 12,632

{1} Amounts shown do not reflect compensation actually received by the director. Instead the amounts shown
are the compensation costs recognized in our financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 in
accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 123R Share-
Based Payment (SFAS No, [23R). See Note 15 of the consolidated financial statements in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2008 regarding the assumptions underlying the valuation
of equity awards.
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Mr. Coleman held options to purchase 180,000 shares of common stock as of June 30, 2008.
Mr. Gibbons held options to purchase 150,000 shares of common stock as of June 30, 2008.

Amounts shown relate to Mr. Herb’s grant upon his appointment in fiscal 2005, which vests over a 36
month period. The grant date fair value of this award was $296,592 determined in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 123R. Mr. Herb held options to purchase 77,500 shares of common stock as of
June 30, 2008.

Mr. Holbrook held options to purchase 250,000 shares of common stock as of June 30, 2008.
Mr. Kelly held options to purchase 180,000 shares of common stock as of June 30, 2008.

Amounts shown relate to Ms. Washington's grant upon her appointment in April 2008, which vests over a
36-month period. The grant date fair value of this award was $80,520 determined in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 123R. Ms. Washington held options to purchase 40,000 shares of common stock as
of June 30, 2008.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The members of the Compensation Committee during fiscal 2008 were Kenneth L. Coleman, Robert R.

Herb and Fred M. Gibbons, who joined the committee when Mr. Horowitz ceased to be a director and committee
member in August 2007. Mr. Coleman, Mr. Herb and Mr. Gibbons are ail “non-employee directors” under Rule
16b-3 of, and have no interlocking relationships as defined by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
As discussed more fully under “Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions” below, Mr. Coleman’s
son-in-law is one of our employees.

Board’s Recommendation

Our Board of Directors recommends a vote “FOR” each of the nominees above.




PROPOQSAL NO. 2—RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Our Audit and Corporate Governance Committee has appointed Ernst & Young LLP as our independent
auditor, to audit our consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009. This appointment
is being presented to the stockholders for ratification at the annual meeting. Ernst & Young LLP has served as
our independent auditor since 1998. Representatives of Emst & Young LLP are expected to be present at the
meeting and will be given the opportunity to make a statement should they desire to do so, and are expected to be
available to respond to appropriate questions from the stockholders.

Fees Paid To the Independent Auditor

The following table presents fees for professional services rendered by Ernst & Young LLP in connection
with the audit of the annual financial statements for fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, and the fees billed for other
services rendered by Emst & Young LLP.

Audit and Non-Audit Fees

2008 2007
Aundit fees (1)
AuditfeeS ... oot e $2.817,000 $938,000
Total auditfees . ... i 2,817,000 938,000
Tax fees () .. v e e 66,000 44,000
Total fEES & v ettt e e $2,883,000 $982,000

(1) Audit fees includes fees associated with the annual audit of our consolidated financial statements, the audit
of internal controls over financial reporting, the reviews of our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, statutory
audits required for non-US subsidiaries and services normally provided by the independent auditors in
connection with regulatory filings. It alse includes fees associated with accounting consultations on matters
that arose during, or as a result of, the audit or reviews of financial statements and statutory audits.

(2) Tax fees include tax planning and tax advice primarily related to our international operations.

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee has pre-approved all audit and non-audit services provided
to us by Emst & Young LLP during fiscal 2008. It is the policy of the Audit and Corporate Governance
Commitiee o pre-approve sach engagement with our independent auditors with respect to audit and non-audit
services. The committee has delegated to the chairman of the committee the authority to grant pre-approvals
provided that the pre-approval decision and related services are presented to the committee at its next regularly
scheduled meeting,

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee has determined that the non-audit services provided by
Emst & Young LLP are compatible with maintaining the independence of Emst & Young LLP.
Board’s Recommendation

Our Board of Directors unanimously recommends that you vote FOR ratification of the appointment
of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent auditors.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth, as of August 15, 2008 except as indicated, certain information regarding the
beneficial ownership of our commen stock by

« each stockholder known by us to own beneficially more than 5% of our common stock,

» each of our directors, excluding Dr. Franca who resigned from the Board of Directors in September 2008,
+ each named executive officer listed in the Summary Compensation Table below, and

« all directors and executive officers as a group.

In the table below, percentage ownership is based upon 44,358,590 shares of common stock outstanding as
of August 15, 2008. Common stock subject to options that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days
of August 15, 2008 are deemed to be outstanding and to be beneficially owned by the person holding such
options for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of such person but are not treated as outstanding
for the purpose of computing the number of shares owned and percentage ownership of any other person. Unless
otherwise indicated, the persons named have sole voting and investment power over the shares beneficially
owned by them subject to community property laws. Where information is based on Schedule 13Gs fited by the
named stockholder, the number of shares owned is as of the date for which information was provided in such
schedule.

Shares Beneficially Owned

Common Stock

Name of Beneficial Owner Number Percentage
5% Stockholders:
Wellington Management Company, LLP (1) . ..., 6,145,377 13.85%

75 State Street
Boston, MA 02109

FMR COMP. (2) vt ittt ettt e e e et ettt 5,994,942 13.51%
82 Devonshire Street
Boston, MA 02109

Trivium Capital Management, LLC (3} . ... ... 4,224 000 9.52%
600 Lexington Avenue, 234 Floor
New York, NY 10022

Schroder Investment Management Inc. (4) ... ..o 2,983,300 6.73%
875 Third Avenue, 21+ floor
New York, NY 10022

Pacific Edge Investment Management, LLC(5) ........ ..., 2,280,427 5.14%
100 Hamilton Avenue, Suite 100
Palo, Alto, CA 94301

Cardinal Capital Management, LLC (6} ........... ..ot 2,263,690 5.10%
One Greenwich Office Park
Greenwich, CT 06831

Directors and Executive Officers: (7)

MAUFY AUSHD L oo oottt et e et e e e 1,250 *
JORNE. BOUMOIN . ..ottt e e 1,840,698 4.38%
Kenneth L. COBIMAN .« ..o v vt e e ettt et e it ie ety 186,499 *
Fred M. GiBDONS .. ..ot a et e 132,500 *
Robert R Herh o .ottt 82,500 *
Anthony B. Holbrook .. ... ... 240,000 *




Common Stock

Name of Beneficial Owner Number Percentage
William M. Kelly .. ..o o e e 188,746 *
Mervin 8. Kalo ... ... i e e e 593,483 1.34%
Sandy Creighton . ... . 823,314 1.86%
W, Patrick Hays ... ... e e 326,123 *
Brad HOIZINGEr ... .. ..o it e s 397,443 *
Mark Tyndall ... ... e e 222,461 *
Robin L. Washington ... ...t it e et v ee e aeas 5,556 *
Directors and executive officers as a group (15 persons) .......................... 5,893,083 13.29%
*  Less than [%.
(1) As reported by Wellington Management Company, LLP on Schedule 13G/A filed with the Securities and

(2)

)

4)

3)

Exchange Commission on February 14, 2008. According to such Schedule 13G/A, Wellington Management
Company, LLP has shared power to vote 3,315,899 shares of common stock and shared power to dispose of
6,145,377 shares of common stock. Wellington Management Company, LLP is an investment advisor
whose clients have the right to receive, or the power to direct the receipt of, dividends from, or the proceeds
from the sale of, such securities.

As reported by FMR Corp. on Schedule 13Gs filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 13, 2008. According to such Schedule 13G, Fidelity Management & Research Company
(“Fidelity™), a wholly-owned subsidiary of FMR Corp., is the beneficial owner of 5,994,942 shares of
common stock as a result of acting as investment adviser to various investment companies. The ownership
of one investment company, Fidelity Small Cap Fund, amounted to 4,202,025 shares of common stock.
Edward C. Johnson 3d, Chairman of FMR Corp. and FMR Corp. (through its control of Fidelity}, and the
funds each has sole power to dispose of the 5,811,217 shares of common stock owned by the Funds, Neither
FMR Corp. nor Edward C. Johnson 3d, has the sole power to vote or direct the voting of the shares owned
directly by the Fidelity Funds, which power resides with the Funds' Boards of Trustees. Fidelity carries out
the voting of the shares under written guidelines established by the Funds’ Boards of Trustees. According to
such Schedule 13Gs, members of the Edward C. Johnson 3d’s family are the predominant owners of Class B
shares of common stock of FMR Corp., representing approximately 49% of the voting power of FMR Corp.
The Johnson family group and all other Class B shareholders have entered into a shareholders’ voting
agreement under which all Class B shares will be voted in accordance with the majority vote of Class B
shares. Accordingly, through their ownership of voting common stock and the shareholders’ voting
agreement, members of the Johnson family may be deemed to form a controlling group with respect to FMR
Corp. Pyramis Global Advisors Trust Company, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of FMR Corp, is the
beneficial owner of 183,725 shares of common stock as a result of its serving as investment manager of
institutional accounts owning such shares. Edward C. Johnson 3d and FMR Corp., through its control of
Pyramis Global Advisors Trust Company, each has sole dispositive power over 183,725 shares and sole
power to vote 162,125 shares of common stock owned by institutional accounts managed by Pyramis Global
Advisors Trust Company.

As reported by Trivium Capital Management, LLC on Schedule 13G/A filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 14, 2008. According to such schedule 13G/A, Triviom Capital
Management, LLC has sole power to vote 4,068,978 shares of common stock and sole power to dispose of
4,224 000 shares of common stock and Trivium Offshore Fund, Lid. has sole power to vote and dispose of
3,696,420 shares of common stock.

As reported by Schroder Investment Management, Inc. on a Schedule 13G as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 14, 2006. According to such Schedule 13G, Schroder Investment
Management, Inc. has sole power to vote and dispose of 2,983,300 shares of common stock.

As reported by Pacific Edge Investment Management, LLC on a Schedule 13G as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on January 23, 2004, According to such Schedule 13G, each of Pacific Edge
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Investment Management, LLC and Karen Payne have shared power to vote and dispose of 2,280,427 shares
of common stock. Pacific Edge Investment Management LLC is an investment adviser whose clients have
the right to receive or the power to direct the receipt of dividends from, or the proceeds from the sale of the
stock. Karen Payne is the Manager of Pacific Edge Investment Management LLC.

As reported by Cardinal Capital Management, LLC on a Schedule 13G as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 14, 2008. According to such Schedule 13G, Cardinal Capital
Management, LLC has sole power to vote 1,380,890 shares of commen stock and sole power to dispose of
2,263,690 shares of common stock.

The table includes the following shares subject to acquisition upon exercise of options on August 15, 2008
or within 60 days thereof: Mr. Austin 1,250; Mr. Bourgoin 1,823,583; Mr. Coleman 180,000; Mr. Gibbons
120,000; Mr. Herb 77,500; Mr, Holbrook 210,000; Mr. Kelly 180,000; Mr. Kato 549,973, Ms. Creighton
756,861; Mr. Hays 321,000; Mr. Holtzinger 397,443; Mr. Tyndall 216,250; Ms. Washington 5,556 and
directors and executive officers as a group 5,553,533,

Under our Rights Plan, our stockholders have the right to purchase shares of our preferred stock upon the

occurrence of specified events. The documents evidencing this Rights Plan have been filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission as exhibits to registration statements on Form 8-A.

The following pages contain reports of MIPS' Compensation Committee and the Audit and Corporate

Governance Commitiee and a Performance Graph. Stockholders should be aware that under the rules of the
SEC, this information is not considered to be “soliciting material”, nor to be “filed”, under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. This information shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference in any past or
future filing by MIPS under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or the Securities Act of 1933 unless and only to
the extent that MIPS specifically incorporates this information by reference.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT
Composition of the Committee

During fiscal 2008, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of MIPS consisted of
Mr. Kenneth L. Coleman (Chairman), Mr. Robert R. Herb, and Mr, Fred M. Gibbons, who joined the committee
when Mr. Horowitz ceased to be a director, and member of the committee, in August 2007. Each of
Mr, Coleman, Mr, Herb and Mr. Gibbons is an “owside director” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the
Internal Revenue Code and meets the definition of “non-employee director” under Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange
Act,

Charter

The Compensation Committee is a standing committee of our Board of Directors whose primary objectives
are to oversee, review and approve compensation for our executive officers, evaluate the performance of our
Chief Executive Officer, and administer our Long-Term Incentive Plan, and our Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

Executive Compensation

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors has reviewed and discussed with management the
Compensation Discussion and Analysis included in this proxy statement. Based on this review and discussion.
the Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be
included in the Company’s proxy statement for the Company’s 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

The Compensation Committee
Kenneth L. Coleman, Chairman
Fred M. Gibbons

Robert R, Herb




PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares the cumulative total return to stockholders for our common stock, our Class
B common stock, the NASDAQ Stock Market Index—U.S., and the RDG Semiconductor Composite Index. The
graph assumes that $100 was invested in our Class A common stock and in each index on June 30, 2003. On
November 14, 2003, we effected a re-combination of our Class A and Class B common stock into a single class
of common stock. The cumulative total return for our common stock reflects the performance of our Class A
common stock prior to the re-combination and the performance of our single class of common stock following
the re-combination. No dividends have been declared or paid on our Class A, Class B or common stock.
Stockholder returns over the indicated period should not be considered indicative of future stockholder returns.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among MIPS Technologies, Inc., The NASDAQ Composite Index
And The RDG Semiconductor Composite Index
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Fiscal year ending June 30.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Overview of our Compensation

We invest our resources to grow our business in a manner that will increase stockholder value. To further
this objective. our Compensation Committee has designed our compensation program (o support and reward the
achievement of our financial goals and to promote the attainment of other key business objectives.

In order to conduct our business effectively, we must attract and retain executive officers who are highly
skilled and have significant experience in the high technology industry, and in particular in semiconductors
including microprocessor, analog and mixed-signal design. Our headquarters are located in the San Francisco
Bay Area of California. Competition for skilled senior executives in this market is very competitive.
Consequently, our compensation program for our executive officers has the further objective, as is the case for all
of our employees, of better enabling us to attract effective personnel and retain them in the competitive market
place in which we operate. In August 2007, we acquired Chipidea Microelectronica. S.A., a Portuguese company,
(“Chipidea™) and as a result of the acquisition, we appointed Dr. Franca the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of Chipidea to our Board of Directors and he and the former Chief Financial Officer of Chipidea were
each made executive officers of the Company, prior to their resignations.

The compensation program that we provide for our executives, including our named executive ofticers, has
three main components:

+ Salary

* Bonus
» Equity compensation

We also provide our executive officers with benefits under plans generally available to all salaried
employees in the particular geography, a deferred compensation program in the U.S., and an automobile or
automobile allowance for Messrs. Bourgoin, Franca, Dias and Holtzinger.

Process for Determining Executive Compensation

Our Compensation Committee has engaged an executive compensation consultant (o assist it in establishing
the compensation of our executive officers. This consultant, Frederic W. Cook & Co., Inc. has provided
executive compensation advice to the Compensation Committee for over five years,

With the assistance of our compensation consultant we have identified a list of peer companies whose
compensation we evaluate and use to help us establish the amounts of each element of compensation that we pay
to our executive officers. These peer companies consist of companies of broadly similar size based on sales,
market capitalization and number of employees (in their latest annual reports, annual revenues ranged from $77
million to $518 million, market capitalizations ranged from $75 million to $2,791 million and employees ranged
from 157 to 1,728, In addition to their comparable size, we believe these companies are relevant for comparative
purposes because we all participate to one extent or another in the semiconductor industry, which requires key
employees with a similar set of knowledge and skills and subject 1o similar market conditions for executive
talent, regardless of its size. We also include in the peer group our primary competitor, as we regard it as a
competitor for executive talent. In addition 10 the evaliation of this peer group, we also use compensation
industry sources to obtain relevant compensation information, including in particular the Radford surveys that
focus on the technology industry. The list of companies comprising our peer group is reviewed each year to
determine whether any changes should be made. During the past fiscal year, changes were made to reflect the
company’s growth through the acquisition of Chipidea and our changing mix of products, which now include
analog and mixed signal designs. The peer companies that we used in establishing fiscal 2009 compensation
guidelines included 5 new companies and 6 companies, five of which were removed due to size and one of which
was acquired. For fiscal 2008, the companies that were included in the peer group were Advanced Analogic
Technology, ARM Holdings, Catalyst Semiconductor, Cirrus Logic, Exar Corporation, IXYS Corporation,
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Magma Design Automation, Micrel Semiconductor, Pericom Semiconductor Corporation, PDF Solutions, PLX
Technology, RadiSys Corporation, Rambus, Supertex, Tessera Technologies, Trident Microsystems and Voltera
Semiconductor Corporation.

Our Compensation Committee approves the compensation for our executive officers other than our Chief
Executive Officer and recommends for approval by the full Board of Directors the compensation for our Chief
Executive Officer. In establishing compensation of executive officers other than our Chief Executive Officer, the
committee reviews recommendations of our Chief Executive Officer,

Elements of Compensation

The following is a discussion of why we choose to pay each element of compensation and of our objectives
in doing so. As further explained below, we set our executive salaries and target bonuses at the top 75% level of
the peer group. We use this level for two reasons. First, our business does not involve the production of a
physical product like the semiconductor companies included in the peer group. We have very limited investments
in our physical facilities or in a manufacturing and distribution capability. Rather, we derive our revenue from
the development, and the marketing and sales, of the highly complex architectures, processor cores and other
semiconductor designs that we undertake to develop more effectively than our customers can develop on their
own, or obtain from one of our competitors. As such, we believe that we are particularly reliant on executive
talent that can continue to develop products for, and sell them to, our very discerning customer base. Second, we
have used this relative pay scale since the formation of our company as a separate subsidiary of our former parent
over 10 years ago. We believe that we will be most effective in attracting, retaining and motivating our
executives if we maintain an overall compensation philosophy that is consistent with that which we have used
historically to attract and relain our key employees.

Salary. We set salary amounts at levels that we believe will enable us to be competitive for executive talent
in our markets, based on the review of the data provided by our compensation consultant and other market data,
as described above. We establish salaries that match, approximately, those paid at the top 75% level of the peer
companies that we have identified. The salary component of compensation assures our executives of a reasonable
level of income at a competitive rate and we believe that paying above-median salaries helps us to attract
executive talent.

Bonuses. We believe that a significant percentage of the annual cash compensation that is available to be
earned by our executive officers should be tied to the achievement of corporate performance objectives, and that
this serves to motivate our executive officers to meet or exceed company performance targets and provides the
proper incentives for such achievement. We maintain our Performance-Based Bonus Plan for Executives with
this goal in mind, as well as to enable us to offer our executive officers the opportunity to earn competitive levels
of cash compensation. As with our executive officer’s salaries, the target cash bonuses under our Performance-
Based Bonus Plan are set at levels that will enable our executive officers to be paid cash bonuses near the top
75% levels of our peer companies if we achieve our financial plan, and more if we exceed the plan and less if we
do not.

Under our Performance-Based Bonus Plan for Executives, a specified percentage of the executive officer’s
base salary is established as the target bonus and, if earned, is paid in a single payment after the end of the fiscal
year. Bonuses are paid to the extent that we achieve both the revenue and operating income largets contained in
the financial plan that our Board of Directors approves each year for the operation of our business, We have
chosen these two metrics as the basis for management bonuses because we believe that revenue growth is the key
to our ability to enhance stockholder value. Due to the acquisition of Chipidea during the first fiscal quarter of
2008, the Compensation Committee recommended and our Board of Directors approved a reset of the executive
bonus program for January through June 2008 and added pro forma contribution margin as a third metric for that
period. Contribution margin is an internal meiric which measures the contribution of each product group to the
total margin without allocations of sales, general. and administrative expenses. Our revenues consist of both
contract revenue and royalties and, to the extent that we are successful in increasing contract revenues in any
given period, we not only increase revenue for that period but also position ourselves for the possibility of
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receiving increased royalties in the future. We include operating income as a second metric in order to encourage
discipline in the management of our business and in the pursuit of the higher revenues that are our goals. We
believe this basic mode! for our executive bonus plan is well understood by both our executive officers and our
Compensation Committee and that it is effective in motivating cur management and is regarded as fair by them
in its operation. We added proforma contribution margin as a third metric for the second half of the fiscal year in
order to focus the executive team on achieving a certain level of contribution margin as the integration of
Chipidea progressed. In light of the expansion of our business into two business groups as a result of the
Chipidea acquisition, the Compensation Committee revised the bonus program so that those executives in a
business group function have the multiplier based on a split of 50% on performance compared to the overall
corporate plan and 50% on performance compared to the business group plan. Contribution margin at the
business group level was added as a metric for a portion of the bonus for these executives because, with our now
having two business groups, we recognized that overall operating income was not a completely effective measure
of motivating the management responsible for just one group.

Under our initial Performance-Based Bonus Plan for Executives, no bonus payments will be made unless we
achieve both revenue and operating income at the level of at least 90% of the targets provided for these two
metrics in the financial plan. Furthermore, with the addition of pro forma contribution margin as a third metric
for the second half of the fiscal year, no bonus payments will be made unless we achieve 90% of the pro forma
contribution margin target in the financial plan as well. if we achieve all three metrics at the plan levels, then
each participating executive officer will receive a bonus payment at his or her target percentage of salary. A
maximum bonus payment of two times the target percentagé will be paid under the Performance-Based Bonus
Plan for Executives if actual revenues exceeds the plan target by more than 20%, actual operating.income
exceeds the plan target by more than 30%, and actual proforma operating margin exceeds the plan target by more
than 20%. When actual performance falls between the 90% level and 1209 and 130% levels for revenues,
operating income and pro forma contribution margin, as applicable, a bonus payment shall be made according to
a formula based on the revenue, operating income and pro forma contribution margin targets. In establishing
operating income and operating margin levels for this plan we do not take account of certain income or expense
items that we did not anticipate in establishing the plan and that are not reflective of the effectiveness of our
operations, such as charges associated with acquisitions,

We choose to pay bonuses if we achieve less than 100% of our targets, because we do not believe it is
effective to have a 100% cliff payment of bonus tied to complete achievement of our financial plan, which, as
further discussed below, is not certain of achievement in any given year. That is, we believe that it is important to
continue to motivate our executives for improved performance even when it becomes evident that plan levels of
operating results will not be attained. We selected 90% as the threshold for this purpose because this would still
represent substantial attainment of our financial plan.

In addition to the Performance-Based Bonus Plan for Executives, our Chief Executive Officer also
participates in the Additional Performance-Based Bonus Plan for the CEQ (“CEQO Bonus Plan”). The purpose of
this plan is to strengthen the focus of our Chief Executive Officer on key corporate goals and strategic corporate
ohjectives that are identified by our Board of Directors by making an even higher percentage of the CEQ’s target
compensation subject to the achievement of performance goals. Under the CEO Bonus Plan, we establish a target
percentage of salary that will be paid for the achievement of specific corporate goals that are developed and
weighted for the fiscal year by our Board of Directors. Under this plan, following the end of each fiscal year the
board will determine the percentage to which these goals have been attained. That percentage of attainment is
then muttiplied by the target percentage to reach an achievement percentage. Finally, the achievement percentage
is multiplied by the same percentage by which the target percentage is multiplied under the Performance-Based
Bonus Plan for Executives described above to determine the amount of payout under the CEQ Bonus Plan. As
such, the CEQ is rewarded for the achievement of key goals established by our board only if this is achieved in a
year that we achieve our target levels of operating performance at not less than the 90% level. For fiscal year
2008, the board delegated authority under the CEQ Bonus Plan to the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the
Chairman of the Compensation Committee to establish performance goals, and their weighting, and to determine
the percentage to which these goals had been achieved.
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We also have a two-component bonus program for our Vice President of World Wide Sales. This vice
president participates in the Performance-Based Bonus Plan with other executives. In addition, this vice president
is eligible to eam a separate bonus under the Special Bonus Plan for the Vice President of Worldwide Sales at a
target percentage of salary based on achievement of the annual contract revenue goal. This bonus begins to
accrue once we achieve 80% of plan revenue, with an achievement percentage accruing at the rate of five percent
for each one percent that actual revenues exceed the 80% threshold, reaching a 100% achievement percentage if
actual revenue reaches 100% of the plan. To the extent that revenue exceeds the plan, the vice president’s
achievement percentage increases by two percentage points for each one percentage point that revenue exceeds
the plan. The amount of bonus that can be earned under this plan is not subject to @ maximum limit. After the
acquisition of Chipidea, this bonus program was amended to add an additional target percentage of salary based
on achievement of the contract revenue goal for the Analog businesses.

In the case of each of the Bonus Plans, our Compensation Committee {and the Board of Directors with
respect to the CEO, retains the discretion to grant bonuses in amounts that are higher or lower than the amounts
determined under the formula provided in each of the Bonus Plans.

In connection with our hiring of individuals to serve as executive officers, we may agree to pay certain
relocation or similar bonuses or agree to certain minimum payments of our performance bonuses as we believe is
necessary to allow us to attract such individual and to allow us to provide an optimal compensation package.

Equity Compensation. We grant our U.S. executive officers equity awards in the form of stock options. We
believe that because stock options have value only if the price of our stock increases after the date of grant, that
they effectively connect compensation with increased stockholder value. In addition, our stock options help
retain key employees because they typically become exercisable over a vesting period of 36 months and if not
exercised are forfeited if the employee leaves the employ of the Company. The vesting schedule also helps keep
employees focused on our long-term performance. In fiscal 2006, the Board of Directors reduced the term of
options granted under the Company’s equity-based compensation plans from ten years to seven years in order to
reduce the expense of such option under SFAS No. 123R, and at that time reduced the standard vesting schedule
from 50 to 36 months. The Compensation Committee reviews the trends and data regarding equity compensation
for executives in the peer group and considers the recommendations of the CEO in light of prior grants and the
desire to retain executives in granting annual stock option renewals,

We make annual grants of stock options to our executive officers. In July 2006 our Compensation
Committee determined that the annual grants would be made each year on August 15 (or on the next business day
if August 15 fails on a weekend). We grant new hire stock option awards to new executives. New hire grants are
made on the last Thursday of each month to all employees (including executives) who commenced employment
by the Monday immediately preceding the last Thursday of the month.

Benefits. We also provide our executives with benefits that are generally available to all our salaried
employees in the particutar geography, such as for U.S. executives participation in our employee stock purchase
plan, health insurance, 401(k) plan (under which the Company matches contributions up to $2,500 in order to
encourage employees to invest in the savings program) and a deferred compensation program available to all
employees at a level of director and above. For further discussion, see “Nonqualified Deferred Compensation™
below. The Company does not provide a traditional defined retirement plan, so the deferred compensation
program provides a means for U.S. executives to structure their own savings plan. In addition, four of our
executives, Mr, Bourgoin, Mr. Franca, Mr. Dias and Mr. Holtzinger, received automobiles or automobile
allowances in fiscal 2008, as they each were in positions requiring numerous visits to customer and other offsite
meetings or in a geography where such benefit is standard for executives.

Relationship of the Compensation Elements. We view the elements of compensation as related but distinct.
The level of each compensation element is based in part, but not exclusively on competitive benchmarking
consistent with our key compensation objectives. We do aot have a policy for allocating compensation between
our cash compensation, which is paid as salary or eamed as bonus each year, and our equity compensation, which
may be regarded as long term compensation because of the vesting provisions and the length of the option term.
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Fiscal 2008 Compensation

The compensation of our executive officers for fiscal 2008 was consistent with the objectives and programs
discussed above. The named executive officers, other than our Chief Executive Officer, received salary increases
of 2% to 6%, except for Dr. Franca, who received a salary increase of 11.1% effective from the date of the
acquisition of Chipidea, and Mr. Dias who received no increase. OQur Chief Executive Officer’s base salary for
fiscal 2008 increased by 6.25% from that of fiscal 2007.

No bonuses were paid to our executive officers for fiscal 2008 under the Performance-Based Bonus Pian for
Executives or the CEO Bonus Plan under the reset half-year plan other than a performance bonus payment that
was gnaranteed to an executive officer in connection with his employment by us in fiscal 2008. For fiscal 2008
the target level of bonus under the Bonus Plan was 70% of base salary for our Chief Executive Officer and 40%
of base salary for our other executive officers. The operating plan for fiscal 2008 was set with the same approach
as used in prior years, which was to establish somewhat aggressive, but achievable, levels of growth. To put this
approach into the context of our compensation, we have used a similar bonus program since fiscal 2000. In the
nine fiscal years from fiscal 2000 to fiscal 2008, our operating results, and resulting bonuses, exceeded the target
levels three times, and our operating results fell below the 90% threshold five times, resulting in no bonus
payments. One executive hired during the fiscal year received a bonus of $25,000 as he was guaranteed a 10%
bonus for each of the first two fiscal years.

The Vice President of Worldwide sales received an additional bonus of $43,837.30 under the plan for which
he is eligible that is based on annual revenue, as described above.

We granted options in August 2007 to our CEO of 135,000 shares and to each of our other executive
officers of between 55,000 and 75,000 shares. Consistent with the decisions made by the Board of Directors in
fiscal 2006, these options have a seven-year term and vest over 36 months,

Fiscal 2009 Compensation

Our Compensation Committee has established the basic elements of compensation for our executives for
fiscal 2009. The salary for our Chief Executive Officer was not increased and salaries for the other named
executive officers increased by 0% to 6%. Our Chief Executive Officer and other executive officers will
participate in the Performance-Based Bonus Plan for Executives, which will operate in the same manner as
described above for the CEQ and the other executives, including the use of the business plan established by our
Board of Directors as the target for plan bonuses, except that the bonus percentage target for the COO was
increased from 40% to 45%. The revenue targets for the overall corporate performance and for each business
group’s performance are those that formed the basis for the financial plan for fiscal 2009, and contribution
margin amounts are the respective amounts that have been incorporated into the plan for the business groups.

In addition, the Vice President of Worldwide Sales participates in the Special Bonus Plan which establishes
a percentage of base salary target for achievement of the contract revenue goals for each Business Group for
fiscal 2009 and the CEO and the COO each participate in additional bonus plans with target percentages of 30%
and 15% respectively which are based on achievement of individual goals set by the board.

We granted options in August 2008 to our CEO of 75,000 shares and to each of our other executive officers
of between 40,000 and 100,000 shares. Consistent with the decisions made by the Board of Directors in fiscal
2006, these options have a seven-year term and vest over 36 months.

Change in Control Agreements

We have entered into change in control agreements with our executive officers. These agreements provide
that upon a change in control, the officer’s options and shares of restricted stock will become fully vested and the
officer may elect, within six months following the change in control, 1o have his or her options “cashed oul”
based on the closing NASDAQ price on the day prior to the cash-out election. In addition, if the officer is
terminated without cause, or voluntarily terminates for good reason, within 24 months after a change in control,
the officer is entitled to receive a lump sum cash payment equal to 24 months salary. For further discussion, see

19




“Potential Payments on Termination or Change” below. We believe that the “single trigger” provision for the
acceleration of equity awards only upon change of control is appropriate as this allows the executive to receive
the benefits associated with equity ownership in a change of control situation at the same time as our
stockholders generally. Further, this provision will encourage executives to remain in our employ throughout the
uncertainty that may exist in a potential change of control situation. With regard to the “double trigger” for
severance paymenis in the event their employment is terminated within 24 months under specified
circumstances, we recognize that executives are frequently not afforded the opportunity to continue in the
employ of the acquiring company following a change of control transaction, and we believe that our change of
control agreements will motivate our executives to remain in our employ through any change of control
transaction in which we may become involved. Further, we believe the change of control agreements enable our
executives to focus on the performance of their duties and to provide us with advice about a potential change in
control without being distracted about the effects of the transaction on their continued employment.

On March 7, 2008, the Company entered into a separation agreement with W. Patrick Hays, a former
executive. Under the terms of the agreement, Mr. Hays’ last day of employment was March 7, 2008, at which
time he ceased to be an employee of the Company. Mr. Hays received a lump sum severance payment equal to
eight-months and sixteen days of salary and eight months of COBRA premiums.

Potential Payments upon Change in Control and Termination

If a change in control of MIPS had occurred on June 30, 2008 (the last day of the 2008 fiscal year) and the
employment of each of the named executive officers was terminated without cause or resigned for good reason
on the same date, the value of each executive officer’s severance and accelerated option vesting would be the
amount shown in the table below. For purposes of the following table, we have assumed that (i) the price per
share of MIPS’ common stock is equal to the closing price per share on June 30, 2008, which was the last trading
day before MIPS® fiscal year-end, (ii} options are substituted or assumed in connection with the change in
control, and (jii) the value of any option that may be accelerated is equal to the excess of the closing price for a
MIPS share on June 30, 2008 over the option’s exercise price (i.e., the full “spread” value of the option).

Estimated
Total Value of
Severance Option
Name Payment (§) Acceleration (§)  Total ($)
JOhn E.BOUPEOIN .. vt oottt $850,000 $93,750 $943,750
Maury AUSTI . ..ottt it e $620,000 5 — $620,000
Mervin S. Kato (1) - .ottt e e e e $ —_ 58 — $ —
Sandy Creighton .. ..ot $519,792 $37,500 $557,292
W.Patrick Hays (2) . ...t $ — 5} — 3 -
Brad HOMZINGEr ... ..ttt iaaaiee e $504,666 5 — $504.666
Mark Tyndall .. ... . . e $508,800 8} — $508,800

(1) Mr. Kato served as our Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer from January 2006 and as our
Vice President, Finance from May 2001 to January 2006 as our Corporate Controller from May 1998 fo
January 2006. Mr. Kato resigned effective February 15, 2008. As such, he would not have received any
payment upon a change in control as of June 30, 2008.

(2) Mr. Hays served as our Vice President, Engineering from November 2004 until his resignation, effective
March 7, 2008. As such, he would not have received any payment upon a change in control as of June 30,
2008.

Tax Treatment of Executive Compensation

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, provides that compensation in excess of
$1 million paid to the chief executive officer or to any of the other three most highly compensated executive
officers of a company (excluding the chief financial officer) will not be deductible for federal income tax
purposes unless such compensation is paid pursuant to one of the performance-based exceptions under
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Section 162(m). Our primary objective in designing and administering compensation policies is to support and
encourage the achievement of our long-term strategic goals and to enhance stockholder value. When consistent
with this compensation philosophy. we also intend to attempt to structure compensation programs such that
compensation paid there under will be tax deductible by us. In general, stock options granted under our stock
option plans are intended to quality under and comply with the “performance based compensation” exemption
provided under Section 162(m), thus excluding from the Section 162(m} compensation limitation any income
recognized by executives pursuant to such stock options.

The following table summarizes compensation information for our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer and each of the other three most highly compensated executive officers as of June 30, 2008, as well as for
one individual who was not serving as an executive as of June 30, 2008, but who qualified for disclosure. These
officers are referred 10 as the named executive officers.

Summary Compensation Table for Fiscal 2008

Non-Equity
Steck Option  Incentive Plan  All Other
Bonus  Awards Awards Compensation Compensation Total
Name and Principal Position Year Salary ($)  ($X1) ($)(2) $)(3) ($)(4) ($) 3)
John E. Bourgoin ....... 2008 $425,000 — $62,625 $645,164 §$ —_ $ 3,067(5) $1,135,856
Chief Executive Officer 2007 $400,000 — $62,625 $512,746 3$550,477(4) $ 3,229(5) $1,529,077
and President
Maury Austin (8) ....... 2008 $ 89,423 — — $35,183 § — $ 264605 % 127,252
Vice President, Chief 2007 $ — — — 3 — § — 3 —  $ —
Financial Officer
Mervin S, Kato (6) ...... 2008 $161,589 — % — $514228 $ - $ 32,196(5) $ 708,013
Vice President, Chief 2007 $247,209 — S$11,300 $470366 $146,728(4) $ 3,101(5) $ 878,704
Financial Officer
Sandy Creighton ....... 2008 $259,896 — $22,600 $308,432 § — $ 29835 % 593917

Vice President, Human 2007 $254,800 $38,220 $22,600 $245,820 $151,224 $ 312005 % 715,784
Resources

W. Patrick Hays (9) ..... 2008 $192.809 § —_ — $439,140 § — $220247(5) $ 861,197
Vice President, 2007 $270,3%0 § 500 — $439,194 $160,487 § 632(5) F 871,203
Engineering

Brad Holtzinger ........ 2008 $252,333 —_ — $403,294 $ 43,837(5) §  584(5) $ 700,048
Vice President, 2007 $238,050 — — $340,918 3243.654(4) $  632(5) $ 823,254
Worldwide Sales

Mark Tyndall (7) ....... 2008 $254,400 — — $364,121 % — % 29725 % 621,493
Vice President, 2007 $240,000 — — $287.829 $142449 § 500005 % 675278

Business Development

(1) Amounts consist of bonuses earned for services rendered in fiscal 2008.

(2) Stock awards consist only of restricted stock awards. Amounts shown do not reflect compensation actually
received by the named executive officers. Instead the amounts shown are the compensation costs recognized in
our financial statements for the fiscal year noted in accordance with provisions of SFAS No. 123R. These
compensation costs reflect awards granted prior to, and that vested during, the fiscal years noted. There were
no restricted awards granted in fiscal 2008. See Note 13 of the consolidated financial statements in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2007 regarding the assumptions underlying the valuation of
equity awards and Note 15 in cur Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2008.

(3) Amounts shown do not reflect compensation actually received by the named executive officer. Instead the
amounts shown are the compensation costs recognized in our financial statements for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2008 and 2007 in accordance with provisions of SFAS No. 123R. See Note 13 of the consolidated
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financial statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2007 and Note 15 for
the year ended Jure 30, 2008 regarding the assumptions underlying the valuation of equity awards.

Amounts consist of bonuses earned for services rendered in fiscal 2008. The bonuses to Mr. Bourgoin were
earned under our Performance-Based Bonus Plan for Executives and our CEO Bonus Plan, The bonuses to
Mr. Kato, Ms, Creighton, and Mr. Hays were earned under our Performance-Based Bonus Plan for
Executives. The bonuses to Mr. Holtzinger were eamned under our Performance-Based Bonus Plan for
Executives and our Special Bonus Plan for the Vice-President of Worldwide Sales.

Represents matching contributions under MIPS’ 401(k) plan and life insurance premiums paid by MIPS on
behalf of the executive.

M. Kato served as our Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer from January 2006 and as our
Vice President, Finance from May 2001 to January 2006 as our Corporate Controller from May 1998 to
January 2006. Mr. Kato resigned effective February 15, 2008.

Mr. Tyndall resigned as Vice President, Business Development, effective September 2, 2008.
Mr. Austin has served as our Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, since March 2008.

Mr. Hays served as our Vice President, Engineering from November 2004 until his resignation, effective
March 7, 2008.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards in Fiscal Year 2008

The following table provides details regarding all plan-based awards granted to the named executive officers

in fiscal 2008.
Estimated Future Payouts under
Non-Eq:i‘t:a:ﬁge(rit)ive Plan All other Option  Exercise or Base
Awards: Number of  Price of Option Grant Date Fair Value
Grant Threshold Target Maximum Securities Underlying Awards of Stock and Option
Name Date % %) %) Options (#) (2} {%/Share) Awards (3) (D
John E. Bourgoin . ... 8/15/07 — — — 135,000 7.80 $476,766
N/A $0 3297500 $595,000 — — —
N/A $0 $127,500 $255,000 -— — —
Maury Austin ...... 3127108 — — — 250,000(5) 396 $436,050
$0 §$ 35769 § 71,538 — — —
Mervin S. Kate ..... 8/15/07 _ — —_ 55,000 7.80 $194,238
N/A $0 $101,850 $203,700 — — —
Sandy Creighton . ... 8/15/07 — — — 65,000 7.80 $229,554
N/A $ 0 $103,958 $207,917 — — —
W. Patrick Hays .... 8&15/07 _— — _ 60,000 7.80 $211,896
N/A $0 5111401 $222.802 — — —
Brad Holtzinger . . . .. 8/15/07 — — - 75,000 7.80 $264,870
N/A $§0 $100533 $201,866 — — —
N/A $0 563083 4 — — —
Mark Tyndall ....... 8/15/07 - — — 75,000 7.80 $264,870
N/A $0 $101,760 $203,520 — — -
(1) Amounts shown are estimated payouts for fiscal 2008 to Mr. Bourgoin under our Performance-Based Bonus

Plan for Executives and our CEQ Bonus Plan, to Mr. Austin, Mr. Kato, Ms. Creighton, Mr. Hays and
Mr. Tyndall under our Performance-Based Bonus Plan for Executives and to Mr. Holtzinger under our
Performance-Based Bonus Plan for Executives and our Special Bonus Plan for the Vice-President of
Worldwide Sales. Mr. Austin’s estimated payouts were prorated based on the base salary earned by
Mr. Austin in fiscal 2008.
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All options were granted under our Long-Term Incentive Plan and generally have exercise prices equal to
the fair market value on the date of grant. In general, the options vest in thirty-six equal monthly
installments, unless otherwise noted. The equity awards identified in the table below are also reported in the
table entitled, “Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End,” below.

The value of a stock award or option award is based on the fair value as of the grant date of such award
determined pursuant to SFAS No. 123R.

There is no maximum amount under the Special Bonus Plan for the Vice President of Worldwide Sales. The
bonus has a 25% of base salary based on achievement of the annual contract revenue goal in the
corporate financial plan (25% accrues linearly at contract revenue performance levels of 0-100% of
the corporate financial plan, but does not pay until 80% of the contract revenue goal in the corporate
financial plan is achieved), plus an additional bonus of 2% for each 1% contract revenue increase above the
annual contract revenue goal in the financial plan. In addition, the Special Bonus Plan provides for an
additional bonus of up to 15% of base salary based on achievement of the annual contract revenue goal in
the financial plan for the Analog Business Group (15% accrues linearly at contract revenue performance
levels of 0-100% of the Analog Business Group financial plan, but does not pay until 80% of the contract
revenue goal in the Analog Business Group financial plan is achieved), plus an additional bonus of 2% for
each 1% contract revenue increase above the annual contract revenue goal in the Analog Business Group
financial plan. The payout is subject to adjustment on the discretion of the CEQ and upon the advice and
consent of the Compensation Committee. The financial plan is the Statement of Operations approved
annually by the Board of Directors for the fiscal year which includes an annual corporate contract revenue
goal to be used for the purposes of the 25% additional bonus above, and subsequent to the acquisition of
Chipidea, also includes an annual Analog Business Group revenue goal to be used for the purposes of the
15% additionat bonus above.

The vesting schedule provides for one-third of the total shares to become vested 12 months from the grant
date with 1/36" of the total shares vesting each month thereafter for the remaining 24 months,

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table sets forth all outstanding equity awards held by our named executive officers at June 30,

2008, the end of the 2008 fiscal year. The equity granted in 2008 is reported in the following table and in the
table entitled, “Grants of Plan-Based Awards™, above,

Option Awards Stock Awards
Numiber of Number of Number of Market value
securities securities shares of of shares of
underlying underlying or units of or units of
unexercised  unexercised Option stock that stock that
options (#) options (#) Option Exercise  Expiration  have not have not
Name Exercisable Unexercisable Price (S) Daie Vested (#) Vested ($)
John E. Bourgoin ............ 700,000 —_ $ 8.31 5/17/12
150,000 - $ 295 8/7/12

Maury Austin . .............. — 250,000(6) $ 3.96 3R271s

82,500 52,500(1) $ 647 8/15/13
123,750 11.250(2) $ 635 921112
135,000 15,000(3) $ 501 9/17/14
550,000 —{4) $3.388 8/12/13
37,500 97,500(15) § 7.80 8/15/14
— 12,500(12) $46,875
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Option Awards

Stock Awards

Name

Mervin S. Kato

Sandy Creighton . .. ..........

W.Patrick Hays .............

Brad Holtzinger

Mark Tyndall

(1)
(2)
3)
4
&)
©

Number of Number of Number of Market value
securities securities shares of of shares of
underlying underlying orunitsof  orunits of
unexercised  unexercised Option stock that stock that
options (#) options (#) Option Exercise Expiration  have not have not
Exercisable Unexercisable Price (S) Date Vested (#) Vested ($)
5,438 — $18.375 5/15/09(14)
50,375 —_ $ 1644 5/15/09(14)
35,000 — $ 801 5/15/09(14)
100,000 — $ 3.388 5/15/09(14)
35,556 — $ 6.11 5/15/09(14)
32,667 — $ 647 5/15/09(14)
135,000 _ $ 899 5/15/09(14)
36,000 — $ 452 5/15/09(14)
40,000 — $ 205 5/15/09(14)
48,000 — $ 8.01 5/15/09(14)
14,625 — $ 1644 5/15/09(14)
3,562 — $18.375 5/15/09(14)
13,750 —{15y §$ 7.80 5/15/09(14)
68,000 4,000(5) 3 6.l 8/29/12
73,600 6,400(7) $ 4.52 8/9/14
230,000 —(4) $3.3388 8/12/13
75,000 _ $ 294 712512
225,000 — $ 831 ST
44000 28,000(1) $ 647 8/15/13
18,056 46,944(15) $ 7.80 8/15/14
— — — —  5,000(13) $18,750
38,782 — $ 838 3/7/09(14)
75,000 — $ 611 3/7/09(14)
36,000 — 3 647 371/09(14)
161,218 —_ 5 838 3/7/109(14)
10,000 — $ 7.80 3/7/09(14)
43,452 — $ 940 12/20/11
1,548 — $ 940 12/20/11
12,000 1,200(9) $ 5.02 7/29/14
177,778 22,222(10y $ 547 10/27/12
9,600 —_ $ 449 10/15/13
20,400 - $ 4.80 10/15/13
36,056 22,944(1) $ 647 8/15/13
17,000 1,000(5) $ 6ll 8/29/12
18,400 1,600(7) $ 452 8/9/14
6,800 — § 502 7/29/14
20,833 54,167 $ 7.80 8/15/14
166,667 83,333(8) $ o614 6/29/13
20,833 54,167(15) $ 7.80 8/15/14

Options granted on 8/15/06 vest monthly over 36 months beginning on 9/15/06.

Options granted on 9/21/05 vest monthly over 36 months beginning on 10/21/05.

Options granted on 9/17/04 vest monthly over 50 months beginning on 10/17/04.

Options granted on 8/12/03 vest monthly over 50 months beginning on 9/12/03.

Options granted on 8/29/05 vest monthly over 36 months beginning on 9/29/05.

Options granted on 3/27/08 vest 33% on 3/27/09 and then vest monthly in 2.7% increments beginning on

4/27109.
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(7) Options granted on 8/9/04 vest monthly over 50 months beginning on 9/5/04.

(8) Options granted on &/29/06 vest 33% on 6/29/07 and then vest monthly in 2.7% increments beginning on
7/29/07,

(9) Options granted on 7/29/04 vest 24% on 7/5/05 and then vest monthly in 2% increments beginning on
B/5/05

(10) Options granted on 10/27/05 vest 33% on 10/27/06 and then vest monthly in 2.7% increments beginning on
10/27/06.

{11} Options granted on 10/18/03 vest monthly in 2% increments beginning on 9/12/03.

(12) Restricted stock granted on September 17, 2004 vests in 25% annual increments beginning on
September 17, 2005.

(13) Restricted stock granted on August 5, 2004 vests in 25% annual increments beginning on August 5, 2005.
(14) Executive officers have one year from the date of termination to exercise vested shares.

(13) Options granted on 8/15/07 vest monthly over 36 months beginning on 9/15/07.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

The following table shows all stock options exercised and the value realized upon exercise and all siock
awards that vested and the value realized upon vesting by the named executive officers during fiscal 2008.

Option Awards Stock Awards

Number of Number of
Shares Value Realized Shares Value Realized
Acquired on  on Exercise ($) Acquiredon on Vesting ($)

Name Exercise (#) 1) Vesting (#) 2

JohnE. Bourgoin ......... ... ... ... ... . ..., — — 12,500 $94,625
Maury Austin ...... ... — — -— —
MervinS. Kato ........ ... ... ... il — — 2,500 $20,125
Sandy Creighton . ........ ... ... ... — — 5,000 $40,250
W. Patrick Hays ........ ... ... . ... ..., — — - —
Brad Holtzinger ........... .. ... . ... . o i .. — — — —
Mark Tyndall ........ ... .. ... i i, — —_ — _

{1) WValue is the difference between the option exercise price and the fair market value of MiPS common stock
on the date of exercise, multiplied by the number of shares covered by the option.

(2) Value is the fair market value of the underlying shares on the date of vesting multiplied by the number of
shares covered by the stock award.

Pension Benefits

MIPS named executive officers received no benefits in fiscal 2008 from MIPS under pension plans.
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Nongqualified Deferred Compensation

The following table shows certain information for the named executive officers under the Non-Qualified
Deferred Compensation Plan.
Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation for Fiscal 2008

Aggregate

Executive Registrant Aggregate Aggregate Balance at
contributions  Contributions Loss in Withdrawals/ Last Fiscal

in Last Fiscal in Last Fiscal  Last Fiscal  Distributions  Year end

Name Year ($) (1) Year ($) Year ($) (2) (%) D

JohnE. Bourgoin ................. ... .. $275,239 — $ (61,682) —  §$735,140
Maury Austin ......... . i — — — — —
MervinS. Kato ............. ... .. ..., $ 77,788 — $ (17,2100 $137,391 $291978
Sandy Creighton ........................ $185,263 — $(100,488) —  $663,438

W.Patrick Hays ............ ... ........ — — —_ — —_
Brad Holtzinger ................. ... ... — — — — —
Mark Tyndall ............... ... . ..., — — — — —

(1) The entire amounts were included in the compensation information in the “Summary Executive
Compensation” table as part of each named executive officer’s fiscal 2007 compensation.

(2) There were no above-market or preferential earnings included in these amounts.

(3) The entire amounts were included in either the compensation information in the “Summary Executive
Compensation” table or in compensation reported in previous years.

Plan Overview

The MIPS Technologies, Inc. Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan is designed to provide
participants with an opportunity to supplement their retirement income through the deferral of pre-tax income.
Participants in the Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan may defer up to 100% of compensation.
Compensation includes regular salary, bonus awards and commissions. Participants in the Non-Qualified
Deferred Compensation Plan have the option to choose from a portfolio of investment options and may change
their investment allocation periodically. Amounts earned on the assets invested by participants are determined
based upon the earnings of the investments selected by the participants. Payments under the Non-Qualified
Deferred Compensation Plan may be paid in a lump sum or in up to ten equal annual installments as selected by
the participant. In addition, payment will be made upon retirement, termination, hardship, death or disability.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

On March 7, 2008, the Company entered into a separation agreement with W. Patrick Hays, a company
executive and former Vice President, Engineering. Under the terms of the agreement, Mr. Hays’ last day of
employment was March 7, 2008, at which time he ceased to be an employee of the Company. Mr. Hays received
a lump sum severance payment equal to eight-months and sixteen days of salary and eight months COBRA
premiums,

Kenneth Coleman, Director and Chairman of the Compensation Committee, is the father-in-law of the
Director of Global Corporate Services, Emest Evans. He does not have direct management or control over
Mr. Evan’s responsibilities and does not recommend or approve Mr. Evan’s salary. Mr. Coleman does approve
the annuaj stock option renewal grants as a member of the Compensation Committee but he does not recommend
the amounts of the grants. The recommendation is from Mr. Evan’s manager with input from Human Resources
and the annual renewals are subject to approval by the CEO. Mr. Evans’ compensation in fiscal 2008 was
$143,880, which included salary, bonus and matching contributions under MIPS” 401(K) plan, and was granted
an option on August 15, 2007 to purchase 7,500 shares of our common stock with an exercise price of $7.80.

Nuno Franca is the brother of Dr. Jose Franca, who was the former CEO of Chipidea and became a member
of our Board of Directors and the President and General Manager of the Analog Business Group after Chipidea
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was acquired by MIPS. Nuno Franca holds the position of Division Director of CAD and Technology. Nuno
Franca's compensation was $156,093 for the period from acquisition of Chipidea (August 27, 2007) to June 30,
2008 as calculated by using the average exchange rate for the period August 27, 2007 to June 30, 2008.

Ana Gomes, sister-in-law of Dr. Jose Franca, was in the Legal Department of the Analog Business Group
through April 2008, at which time she resigned her employment and entered into a mutual separation agreement.
Ms. Gomes' compensation was $222,376 for the period from the acquisition of Chipidea (August 27, 2007) to
June 30, 2008 as calculated by using the average exchange rate for the period August 27, 2007 to June 30, 2008.

A derivative action entitled In re MIPS Technologies, Inc. Derivative Litigation, Case No. C-06-06699-
RMW, was filed on October 27, 2006, in the United States District Court, Northern District of California, against
certain current and former MIPS officers and directors and MIPS as a nominal defendant. The complaint in the
action alleged that the individual defendants breached their fiduciary duties and violated California and federal
securities laws as a result of, among other things, purported backdating of stock option grants, insider trading and
the dissemination of false financial statements. Plaintiff sought to recover purportedly on behalf of MIPS,
unspecified monetary damages, corporate governance changes, equitable and injunctive relief, and fees and
costs, A motion to dismiss the amended consolidated complaint was granted on August 13, 2008, without leave
for plaintiff to amend.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Under Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, our directors, executive officers, and any persons
holding more than 10% of our common stock are required to report to the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the NASDAQ National Market their initial ownership of our stock and any subsequent changes in that
ownership. Based on a review of Forms 3, 4 and 5 filed pursuant to the Exchange Act furnished to us, we believe
that during fiscal 2008, our officers, directors and holders of more than 10% of our common stock filed all
Section 16(a) reports on a timely basis.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The management of MIPS is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of MIPS. The independent auditors are responsible for auditing the
consolidated financial statements. It is the responsibility of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee to
oversee these activities. '

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee has reviewed and discussed with MIPS’ management the
audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008,

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee has discussed with Emst & Young LLP, MIPS’
independent auditor, the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, 89 and 90
relating to communications with Audit Committees.

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee has received and reviewed the written disclosures and the
letter from Ernst & Young LLP required by Independence Standard No. 1, “Independence Discussions with
Audit Committees”, and the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee has discussed with Ernst & Young
LLP their independence.

Based on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
recommended to the Board of Directors that the audited consolidated financial statements be included in MIPS’
annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

William M. Kelly, Chairman
Anthony B. Holbreok
Robin L. Washington
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STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2008 ANNUAL MEETING

If you want us to consider including a proposal in next year's Proxy Statement, you must deliver it in
wriiing 1o MIPS at 1225 Charleston Road, Mountain View, California 94043, Attention: Assistant Secretary, no
later than June 3, 2009.

Our by-laws provide that stockholders wishing to nominate a director or present a proposal at next year's
annual meeting, but not wishing to have such nomination or proposal included in our Proxy Statement, must
submit specified information in writing to MIPS at the above address no later than September 12, 2009 but no
sooner than August 14, 2009,

OTHER MATTERS

We know of no other matters to be submitted at the annual meeting. If any other matters properly come
before the meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy to vote the shares they
represent as the Board of Directors may recommend.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Stuart J. Nichols
Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate
Secretary
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PART 1
Item 1. Business
General

MIPS Technologies, Inc. is the world’s second largest semiconductor design IP company and the largest
provider of analog IP worldwide based on worldwide revenue in 2007. With more than 250 worldwide
customers, MIPS Technologies is the only company that provides a combined portfolio of processors, analog IP
and software tools for the SoC (System on Chip) market. We operate with two business Groups, the Processor
Business Group and the Analog Business Group. Our technology is broadly used in markets such as mobile
consumer electronics, digital entertainment, wired and wireless communications and networking, office
automation, security, microcontrollers, and automotive. Our customers are global semiconductor companies. We
offer our customers high-performance, easy-to-use functionality at a fraction of the cost and time to market that
internal development would require. Our customers pay us license fees for processor architectural and product
rights, design and implementation services within the ABG, as well as royalties based on processor unit
shipments.

Processor Business Group

Our microprocessor business model is based on the licensing of embedded processor IP in the form of both
architectures and implementations. Embedded processor IP requires considerable development effort in order to
create a product, but once created, it can be licensed for use to multiple parties and distributed electronically. We
license our IP products for prices ranging from a few hundred thousand dollars to millions of dollars depending
upon the technology involved and the specifics of the license. Once our [P has been incorporated into our
licensees’ products, which may take several months to several years, we are eligible to receive royalties from our
licensees.

We have developed standards for both 32-bit and 64-bit computing. We license our industry-standard
MIPS32 and MIPS64 instruction-set architectuses, application specific extensions (ASEs), core designs and other
related IP to semiconductor companies and system original equipment manufacturers {system OEMs). Together
with our architecture licensees, we offer a broad variety of embedded processors that scale across multiple
markets in standard, custom, semi-custom and application-specific products. We currently have approximately
180 license agreements with approximately 100 companies around the world offering approximately 940 MIPS-
based chips for the embedded market. Forty-nine licensees paid royalties in fiscal 2008 on shipments of more
than 410 million units.

The markets and applications that benefit from the MIPS architecture continue to expand. As transistor
density increases and as per unit manufacturing costs continue to drop, more and more high volume markets are
moving to 32-bit or 64-bit processing power. While our products serve a broad cross-section of these markets, we
will continue to focus and target high-growth and high-volume markets where the cost or performance
advantages of our products have significant value.

Analog Business Group

The addition of Chipidea in August 2007, now operating as the Analog Business Group (ABG) of MIPS
Technologies, has allowed us to grow the base of products we offer to the larger set of customers. Analog and
mixed signal P are used in most SoCs. These are the same integrated circuits that usually require a
microprocessor core, permitting us to sell both kinds of products to the same customers for the same applications
in many circumstances. Analog and mixed signal IP are difficult to develop properly, and the number of well-
trained engineers in this field is much smaller than for digital circuitry. With the acquisition of Chipidea, we have
gained a particularly strong team of such designers for the development and sale of commercial analog IP.

We offer a wide array of RF, analog and mixed-signal technologies worldwide—and our customers are
prominent in high-growth, high-volume markets, including wireless, digital media, power management, data
transfer and connectivity. Our analog expertise has positioned us as a leading provider of outsourced analog IP—-
delivering a comprehensive and diverse library of proven IP in today’s leading processes across a wide array
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of foundries. Our customer base for the ABG has grown from Chipidea’s 20 customers five years ago to more
than 150-—including 13 of the world’s top 15 semiconductor companies—at the end of fiscal 2008. The ABG’s
operations are headquartered in Portugal with design operations in other European and Asian countries.

MIPS Technologies, Inc. was incorporated in Delaware in June 1992. Our predecessor, MIPS Computer
Systems, Inc., was founded in 1984 and was acquired by Silicon Graphics in 1992. We were separated from the
business of Silicon Graphics, effective June 1, 1998. Our principal executive office is located at 1225 Charleston
Road, Mountain View, California 94043-1353, and our telephone number at that address is {(650) 567-5000. Qur
website address is www.mips.com. References to “MIPS,” “we,” “us,” “management,” “our,” or the “Company”
means MIPS Technologies Inc. and our consolidated subsidiaries.

For financial information regarding revenue derived from our international licensees, and assets outside the
United States, see Note 17 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Industry Background

Since the acceptance of the Fabless business model for semiconductor providers, companies have been able
to leverage standards in foundry processes, electronic design automation, or EDA, tools and intellectual property
to enable a world wide industry of hundreds of companies designing and developing and supplying SoC
solutions. Continuing rapid advances in semiconductor technology have enabled the integration of very large
numbers of transistors on single integrated circuit silicon chips. The same capability enables lower cost, lower
power, and higher performance per function in those chips. During the 1990s and continuing in the 2000’s, the
state of the silicon technology art reached the point where truly powerful computers could be integrated as
embedded microprocessors which could be built at a manufacturing cost of well under a dollar; these products
also require the connectivity and functionality supported by our Analog Business Group. It is now cost-effective
for system OEMSs to embed these processors and analog IP blocks into a wider range of electronic products and
systems, offering new generations of products. The availability of low-cost, high-performance processors and the
development of SoC technology have contributed to the emergence and rapid growth of the market for embedded
systems, particelarly for portable devices, advanced digital consumer, mobile wireless and broadband
communications, microcontrollers, automotive and business products.

Processor Business Group

Embedded processor systems are broadly defined as microcontrollers and SoCs that include processors
incorporated into devices other than personal computers, workstations, servers, mainframes and minicomputers,
Today, the market for these embedded processors is much larger than the personal computer market in terms of
processor unit velumes. A very large portion of this market consists of 4-bit, 8-bit, 16-bit and 32-bit
microcontrollers embedded primarily into low-cost, automobile and consumer products such as home appliances,
fax machines, printers, and telephone answering machines. The growing need for performance is opening more
and more of the embedded processor market to 32-bit and 64-bit embedded processors. The use of these
advanced processors provides a material advantage to the system builder, and the market for 32-bit and 64-bit
processors has grown from a few million units in the mid-1990s to more than four and a half billion units at the
end of calendar year 2007.

Digital consumer and business preducts that incorporate low-power and high-performance processors can
offer advanced functionality such as realistic 3-D graphics rendering, digital audio and video, and
communications and high-speed signal processing. Examples include digital TV’s, set-top boxes, DVD Blu-Ray
recorders, broadband access devices such as cable modems, Passive Optical Networks (PONs) and Digital
Subscriber Lines (DSL) modems, Voice-over IP (VolP) enabled devices, video game consoles, processor-based
smart cards, digital cameras, 802.11 wireless networking devices and printers (including home and office
printers, as well as all-in-one printer, fax, and copier multi-function peripherals). To meet the demands of the
digital consumer and business products markets, system OEMs rely on semiconductor companies to design and
deliver critical components within demanding price and performance parameters. In order to supply products for
these markets, semiconductor suppliers are increasingly combining their own IP into SoCs with that of third-
party suppliers, such as our IP, in the form of processor cores and other functional blocks.
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The MIPS Ecosystem

Processors are unlike many other kinds of semiconductors, such as memories, which interface with other
components in a highly standardized manner. Each processor architecture has its own unique language called an
instruction set. The specifics of the architecture and its instruction set have a major impact on the cost,
performance and power of the end product, and require a range of supporting third party products and know-how.

Only a few processors are used widely enough to generate broad third party support to create a de facto
standard, and MIPS is one of these. The system developer has access through third parties to a broad array of
software and engincering development tools such as compilers, debuggers and in-circuit emulation testers,
middleware, and application platforms and reference designs. The collective effect of this collateral work is what
we call the “ecosystem.” The availability of this supportive technology is an incentive for anyone building a new
system to stay with the standard. Such ecosystems serve as barriers to entry for anyone attempting to create new
standards for processor architectures in the embedded market.

Over 100 companies form the MIPS Ecosystem, including Green Hills Software, MontaVista Software and
Wind River Systems, and provide more than 250 producis in support of the MIPS architecture. Popular operating
systems compatible with our architecture include Cisco Systems’ 10S, Express Logic’s ThreadX, Mentor Graphics
Corporation’s Nucleus, Microsoft Corporation’s Windows CENET, MontaVista Software’s Linux, and Wind
River's VxWorks and Linux. This broad range of third-party support allows system OEMs to save cost and shorten
the time required to design the MIPS processor technology throughout their portfolios and get to market rapidly.

Customers

We have approximately 100 licensees that develop, manufacture or have manufactured and sell silicon
solutions based on the MIPS architecture, processors and cores. We have two major types of licensees:
architecture licensees that license design rights and independently develop their own MIPS-compatible cores and
implementation licensees that license processor core implementations from MIPS—which are normally inserted
directly into their own SoCs containing other elements of their system.

Through MIPS’ flexible approach to licensing architectural IP, our licensees are able to design optimized
semiconductor products for multiple segments of the embedded market broadening the market reach beyond
markets addressed by processor cores designed and licensed by MIPS—resulling in what we believe is the
broadest offering of embedded processor solutions in the world. Architecture licensees may also license our
processor core implementations to fill gaps in their product families.

Products

We develop and license our processor designs in two forms. We generate both high-level description
language representations of our cores called synthesizable, or “soft,” cores, and process-optimized or “hard”
cores which are silicon process specific implementations expressed in an electronic data format that can be used
almost directly to create masks used in the production process. Synthesizable cores are more flexible. Customers
can specify a number of configuration options on synthesizable cores, such as the size of the included memory,
and have control over which silicon technology is targeted with the final product. This allows our synthesizable
core customers flexibility in sourcing production of their chips from competing foundries.

“Hard” cores have the advantage that most of the work required to gain a precise expectation of the actual
results in terms of size, speed, and power has been completed by MIPS or one of our design service providers.
The benefit may be faster time-to-market with less risk and less development cost. Any pasticular hard core can
be used in one technology from one foundry only and configuration parameters have been predetermined by
MIPS similar to IP products from our Analog Business Group.

Designs. We provide flexible, modular processor and related core designs that meet a range of
performance, power and cost needs, and enable our licensees to provide both standardized and customized
semiconductor products more quickly to system OEMSs. These designs include:

MIPS32 4KE Cores. The 4K family, 4KSd, 4KE family and MIPS32 M4K processor cores are high-
performance, low-power, small die size 32-bit core designs for custom system-on-a-chip applications. All
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these core designs are available in synthesizable formats and are designed for easy integration with a wide
variety of custom logic and peripherals. These cores have been widely licensed by the majority of our
processor licensees and are broadly utilized in SoCs shipping in production today, both as the main
processor or as subsystem controllers in SoCs using multiple processor cores.

MIPS32 24K Cores. We believe that the 24K core family is designed to be scalable to future
generations of silicon process technology. With 24K and 24KE licensing having started in fiscal 2004,
royalty contributions from 24K MIPS-Based SoCs are growing but are not yet a material part of our overall
royalties. The 24KE core leverages the high performance 24K micro-architecture and efficiently adds DSP
functionality. This significantly reduces overall SoC die area, cost and power consumption as well as system
complexity when compared to a system solution employing both a MIPS core and a DSP core. The 24K and
24KE cores have been lcensed to approximately half of our licensees, including Atheros, Broadcom,
Infineon, K-Micro, Micronas, NECEL, NXP, PMC-Sierra, Scientific Atlanta, Sigma Designs, Trident,
Toshiba and others.

MIPS 34K Cores. In September 2005, we started shipping the 34K core family which provides both
the DSP and multithreading (MT) ASEs. The 34K core family’s MT capabilities allow the user to take
advantage of the fact that embedded systems run multiple program tasks or threads of execution in parallel
and that system performance limitations from memory- access timing can be improved by efficiently
switching tasks from one that is waiting for data to another that is ready to execute. The 34K family has
been licensed by twelve companies including Broadcom, LSI, Mobileye and PMC-Sierra.

MIPS 74K Cores. In May 2007, we introduced the MIPS32 74K core family as the industry’s first
fully synthesizable processors to surpass 1 GHz using industry standard libraries and Electronic Design
Automation (EDA) flows. The 74K core family is based on MIPS’ next-generation superscalar
microarchitecture with out-of-order instruction dispatch. The distinguishing feature of the 74K family is that
it provides all the essential advantages for high-performance SoC design, while significantly reducing
overall die area, cost, and power consumption. To date, the 74K family has been licensed by seven
companies, including Broadcom and Infineon.

MIPS 1004K Cores. In April 2008, we introduced the MIPS32® 1004K™ Coherent Processing
System {CPS) as the industry's first multi-threaded multiprocessor [P core. Incorporating multi-threading in
each core in a coherent multi-core architecture enables the 1004K multiprocessor to surpass the performance
of multi-core systems based on single-threaded processor cores. This performance boost essentially is “free”
in both hardware and software, as the additional hardware threads in the cores are minimal in size relative to
a typical SoC design, and multi-threading makes use of the same Symmetric "Multiprocessing (SMP)
versions of operating systems and software programming models as coherent multi-core platforms. The
1604K has been licensed by two companies, with PMC-Sierra announcing their licensing of this core.

MIP332 and MIPS64 Architectures. The MIPS32 and MIPS64 architectures have been the foundation
of the MIPS embedded processor environment for many years. As such, they provide a reliable, widely
used, target for software and other collateral products. MIPS maintains the architectural standard and
evolves it in a manper consistent with advancing needs while assuring both backward compatibility and the
flexibility to innovate with the architecture in the future. This maintains both the current software and tools
investment for MIPS and our customers while providing real opportunity to build for advanced needs.
Architecture licensees include Broadcom, Cavium Networks, NECEL, PMC-Sierra, RMI, SiCortex, and
Toshiba.
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Application Specific Extensions. ASEs provide design flexibility for our application-specific products
and are licensed to our architecture licensees as optional, additional features to use in designing processors.
The ASE may also be incorporated into MIPS cores to provide extended capability for code compression,
3D graphics, security, DSP math functions, multi-threading and multi-core applications.

We also perform development work in a broad range of areas that highlight the competitive strengths of our
product offerings. Examples of this work include the open source development work dene for Linux kernel and
GNU compilers that optimize both Linux and the compilers for each of our cores offered to our customers. MIPS
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also supports the MIPS version of Linux at http://www.linux-mips.org. The MIPS Linux kernel work is the basis
for Linux offerings by our licensees as well as commercial offerings by companies such as MontaVista, Timesys
and Wind River. Additionally, we do development work on audio codec products, such as Dolby AC-3, that
support our customer’s product needs and highlight the efficiency of our cores in these applications.

Analog Business Group

Analog and Mixed signal inclusion is increasing in SoC’s. This IP ranges from basic functions like Digital
to Analog Converters to system interface functions. SoC solutions require a broad variety of analog functionality.
QOur products address data conversion, audio, power management, and Internet Protocol connectivity both wired
and wireless and we believe this represents the broadest range of analog products offered by a single supplier as
well as the largest supplier of analog TP. We believe that there continue to be substantial growth opportunities for
an independent provider of analog IP, as an analysis of the Analog IP market shows that about 20% of this
market is outsourced today, with the balance of the demand served by captive design teams,

Customers specify the foundry and process node as analog designs, with sensitive signal and noise margins,
are dependent on specific process characteristics. We deliver solutions in a broad range of processes, with over
200 GDSII databases shipped in Calendar Year 2007 in over 40 processes including commercial foundries and
foundries operated by Integrated Device Manufacturers (IDMs).

Data Conversion: Developers must provide higher levels of SoC integration in deep submicron
technologies in the wired and wireless domains. MIPS offers a complete portfolio of silicon-proven IP from
single blocks to complete analog-front-end (AFE) solutions for WiMax/Wibro (WMAN) and WiFi
(WLAN); UWB for wireless USB, WiMedia, other WPAN networks, video or data communications;
Blu-ray Disk™ storage, touch screen interface, HDMI for DTV, set-top boxes and Blu-Ray DVD systems.

Aundio and Power Management: MIPS provides both Audio and Power Management IP blocks,

Audio processing is essential to mobile phones, portable media players (PMP, MP3, etc.); digital
cameras; camcorders; CD, DVD and Blu-ray Disc™ recorders; HDTV; set-top boxes; and a host of other
electronic products where size and power consumption are critical design criteria. Additionally, advanced
portable products such as GPS navigation devices and smart phones need to set themselves apart from
similar products by adding value with audio capabilities, continuously creating an expanding marketplace
for audio processing. To address this market, MIPS Technologies offers a comprehensive family of portable,
easy-to-integrate and low-risk audio IP. This includes advanced high-performance, low power and compact
Hi-Fi audio technology, enabling advanced audio functions like power saving Class-D/G drivers, parametric
equalization and automatic level control usually only available in costly standalone ICs.

MIPS Technologies® power management solutions are suitable for a wide variety of electronic devices,
including PMP/MP3 players, CD and minidisk players and recorders, AAC/WMA/multi-format players and
recorders, PDAs, mobile phones and smart phones, digital still cameras/video cameras, mobile GPS and
DTV receivers, 802.11 and WiMAX receivers, audio and video set-top boxes and more. MIPS has an
extensive portfolio of power management IP cores, from individual blocks to complete power management
units (PMUs), silicon-proven in deep submicron technologies.

IP Connectivity: Developers need high quality and flexible IP solutions with low power dissipation
and compact area. With the increase in complexity required to implement modern, multi-function SoCs, the
integration effort is a major bottleneck. MIPS offers a combination of hard IP, soft IP and firmware that
isolates complexity and mitigates the risk of integrating advanced connectivity solutions including USB
Interfaces (USB link controllers + USB PHY), HDMI multimedia interfaces and mobile interfaces. MIPS
Technologies offers an ever-expanding portfolio of silicon-proven and certified IP for a broad range of
applications, including mobile phones, portable media players, digital still cameras, game consoles and
set-top boxes.

MIPS Technologies has more than 80 USB customers worldwide and more than 30 USB2.0 certified
products in mass production. More than 200 million chips have been produced with its USB 2.0 solutions.
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MIPS was first in the market to certify USB IP in TSMC 65LP, and was also first to launch a USB OTG
controller, USB using 2.5V transistors, an HSIC PHY and an LPM controller.

IP Wireless Solutions. 'With today's ubiquitous wireless connectivity, the world's reliance on mobile
consumer electronic products is increasing. Consumers want audio, video and data connectivity in one
low-cost, high-performance wireless device. MIPS offers a comprehensive portfolio of RF and wireless
connectivity solutions. MIPS' wireless solutions are optimized for embedded integration either in an SoC or
SiP, with minimum external components and low power consumption. With an extensive portfolic of RF
and wireless IP combined with a broad mixed-signal portfolio and deep expertise, MIPS offers complete
systems from antenna input to digital baseband, including mobile TV tuners, satellite receivers, UWB
transceivers, WiMAX/WIAN transceivers with MIMO (Multiple Input and Multiple Output channels) and
RF building blocks. MIPS’ wireless 1P solutions are ideal for a wide variety of producis and applications
such as mobile TV and DTV, automotive and batiery operated satellite receivers, mobile phones with GPS,
wireless USB, WPAN, high data range and short range communications, WiMAX and WLAN, wireless
mouse and keyboard, wireless handheld equipment, radio remote control and video transmission.

Customers. Qur ABG customer base has grown within the last five years from 20 to more than 150—
including 13 of the world’s top 15 semiconductor companies.

Markets and Applications

The primary markets addressed by our actual and potential customers include:

Digital Consumer Products. Together with our existing semiconductor licensees, we license both our
processor and analog IP products into solutions for a wide variety of sophisticated, high-volume, digiial
consumer products,

Set-Top Boxes. Set-top boxes (STBs) provide the interface between signals transmitted in either
digital or analog formats over the air, over cables or from satellites. As worldwide standards for
transmission move to digital, enabling better frequency spectrum utilization, the STB performance demands
are increasing. As such, they are becoming sophisticated digital appliances with feaiures like high-
definition, video-on-demand and personal video recording, which has driven performance requirements as
well as multiple connectivity standards such as Ethernet, MOCA (Media over Coax), Wireless, USB and
HDMI. MIPS-Based silicon is included in systems by DISH Network, (Galaxis, Motorola, Pace, Pioneer,
TiVo, and Cisco’s Scientific-Atlanta. Our licensees in this market include AMD’s ATI Consumer products
business, Broadcom. Entropic, Motorola, NECEL, NXP, Scientific Atlanta, Toshiba and Zoran.

Automotive Telematics Products. An important new automotive application, telematics, provides a
new level of visual information from sources such as global positioning systems (GPS) with mapping and
routing, traffic congestion and other useful information for travelers. Sophisticated displays require
substantial processing power as well as fast GPS lock time to render the display in real-time and companies
such as NECEL and Toshiba are supplying MIPS-based chips for telematics.

Video Games. Video games represent a highly specialized high-volume opportunity, which is served
by our design rights licensees such as NECEL, Sony and Toshiba. Key design wins in this market include
the Sony PlayStation 2 and the Sony PSP.

Digital Television.  As the world shifts from analog to digital transmission of television programming,
the SoCs used in digital televisions are upgrading to 32-bit processors with extensive use of analog IP.
Licensees such as ATI, Micronas, NECEL, NXP, Sigma Designs, Trident, Toshiba and Zoran provide SoCs
to LG, Philips, Samsung, Sharp, Sony, Toshiba and other digital television OEM’s.
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Broadband Products. High-speed connectivity to networks outside the enterprise is becoming
increasingly important for businesses as well as home users. Products that provide such connectivity include
cable modems, DSL. modems, 802.11 wireless IC’s, 802.16 WiMax IC’s and PON. Approximately one
billion people currently have Internet access, with 217 million of those enjoying broadband access. These
subscriber numbers are expected to double by 2010. Access points must handle fast data, voice and video
with the lowest possible latency and next-to-perfect up-time. Other burdens include user authentication, link
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security and data encryption. Qur licensees in this market include Atheros, Broadlight, Broadcom,
Centillium, Infineon Technologies, Metalink, Ralink and Texas Instruments.

Digital Cameras. Digital Still Cameras (DSC) and Digital Video Cameras (DVC) perform many
computations beyond just compressing the captured image. This includes auto-focus, aperture and speed
selection based on various light metering schemes, as well as possible lens distortion corrections. The menu
graphics, font rendering, USB interface and battery charge monitoring all draw on MIPS processor and
analog IP product offerings. Licensees in this market include Megachips, Toshiba and Zoran.

Other Digital Consumer Products. Other digital consumer applications for our 32-bit and 64-bit
processors inciude Windows-based terminals, mobile telecommunications products, and Blu-Ray™ and
standard DVD players and recorders.

Business Products. We and our licensees have also developed solutions that serve the needs of
businesses.

Office Automation Products. MIPS-Based processors are being used in high-end and mid-range
office automation applications, such as laser printers with products from K-micro, Marvell Semiconductor,
NECEL, PMC-Sierra and Toshiba.

Networking Equipment. The MIPS architecture is a leading architecture in networking routers and
switches. Our licensees, including Cavium Networks, RMI (Raza Microelectronics, Inc), and Wintegra,
supply chips based on our technology to Cisco Systems, Extreme Networks, Nortel Networks and Lucent.

Microcontrallers. 32-bit microcontrollers (MCU’s) are increasingly become important alternatives to
8-bit and 16-bit MCU’s. MCU’s are moving to standard 32-bit processor IP with increasing amounts of
analog IP for support of embedded peripherals such as USB, LCD controllers, audio codecs with on board
flash and RAM memory blocks. Industrial Control, Office Automation, Home Appliances, Automotive,
peripheral controllers for Consumer Electronics and Smart cards are the dominant markets addressed by
these off the shelf standard products. Licensees serving this market include Microchip, Innova Card, Sharp
and Toshiba.

Research and Development

We believe that our future competitive position will depend in large part on our ability to develop new and
enhanced processors, analog IP cores and related technology solutions in a timely and cost-effective manner. We
believe that these capabilities are necessary to meet the evolving and rapidly changing needs of semiconductor
companies and system OEMs in our target markets. To this end, we have assembled a team of highly skilled
engineers who possess significant experience in the design and development of complex processors and analog IP
blocks. We use this base of experience, and the technologies that we have developed, to enhance our product
offerings and value propositions and develop a broader line of products that are optimized for various applications.
Our strategy is to use a modular approach that emphasizes re-usable, licensable IP blocks. We believe that
increased flexibility and modularity will allow our licensees to provide high-performance, cost-effective and low
power customized products more quickly to their customers.

Our research and development expenses were $36.5 million in fiscal 2008, $33.1 million in fiscal 2007, and
$27.1 million in fiscal 2006. At June 30, 2008, our engineering staff involved in engineering design services and
research and development activities totaled 405 persons compared to 116 employees at June 30, 2007 reflecting
the increase in R&D personnel associated with the acquisition of Chipidea in August 2007. As business
conditions dictate we intend to adjust the level of technical personnel for our engineering activities. We conduct
the majority of our research and development activities in our Mountain View, California corporate headquarters,
our Lisbon, Portugal Analog Business Group headquarters and our Porto, Portugal location. We have smaller
design teams in other locations in Europe, the United States and Asia.

Sales and Marketing
We reach our customers through different sales channels, consisting of:

Direct Sales. 'We have an internal sales force, which calls directly on potential licensees worldwide. Our
sales force consists of both direct sales personnel and “systems architects” who provide technical pre-sale
assistance to our customers and potential customers. Most of MIPS’ licenses are derived from this activity.
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Sales Agents. From time to time we employ representatives in certain areas where specialized account
knowledge or cultural skills are critical to success.

Indirect Distribution Channels. We have expanded our reach into applications and markets with unique
needs by adding indirect distribution channels. These distribution channels include foundries, such as
Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporation (SMIC), Taiwan Semicenductor Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd. (TSMC), and United Microelectronics Corporation (UMC); ASIC companies such as K-micro, NEC
Electronics Corporation (NECEL), and design service companies such as Avnet ASIC Israel, CSMC, Inc., Open-
Silicon, Socle Technology Corporation and Wipro Limited.

In addition to these sales channels, we track the use of products based on MIPS IP by a variety of system OEMs
in the embedded market. A number of digital consumer and business products incorporate the MIPS [P, including
set-top boxes from Motorola, Inc. and Cisco’s Scientific Atlanta business, DVD recorders from Philips Electronics
and Toshiba Corporation, Sony Corporation PlayStation 2 and PSP video game systems, Konika Minolta Holdings
digital cameras, HP laser printers, and Cisco routers. We participate in various sales and technical efforts directed 1o
system OEMs, and our strategic marketing organization is focused on building value and brand awareness of MIPS
among system OEMs. These efforts may result in direct license agreements from these OEMs or in the QEMs
expressing a preference or requirement for MIPS-Based SoC solutions from their semiconductor suppliers.

We generally license our IP products on a non-exclusive and worldwide basis to semiconductor companies
who, in turn, sell products incorporating these technologies to system OEMs. Although the precise terms of our
contracts vary, they typically provide for technology license fees for developed, or currently available technology
or engineering service fees that relate to technology under development, which may be payable up-front or upon
the achievement of certain milestones such as provision of deliverables by us or production of semiconductor
products by the licensee, Each of these types of contracts is a non-exclusive license for the underlying intellectual
property. While we may be required to perform certain services to render the inteliectual property suitable for
license under an engineering service contract, we continue to own the intellectual property that we develop. We
also have the right to license to other licensees the intellectual property developed under engineering service
agreements. Our Processor contracts generally provide for annual maintenance fees and for the payment of
royalties to us based on a percentage of the net revenue earned by the licensee from the sale of products
incorporating our technology or, in some cases, based on unit sales of such products. Qur Analog Business Group
contracts also generally provide for annual maintenance fees and may also contain requirements for the payment
of royalties based on a percentage of the net revenue earned by the licensee from the sale of products
incorporating our technology or, in some cases, based on unit sales of such products. Overall Royalty revenue for
the ABG is not material at the present time but over time we expect the royalty revenue generated by ABG to
increase as more Analog IP is developed. We also offer licensees the option to license our technology on a
single-use, multiple use or unlimited-use basis, and may provide licensees with various technical support,
training and consulting services.

In fiscal 2008 and 2007, we had one customer, Broadcom that accounted for more than 10% of our revenue. In
fiscal 2006, we had two customers, Broadcom and Toshiba that individually accounted for more than 10% of our
total revenue. The revenue derived from Broadcom was primarily from royalties. For further discussion, please see
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation—Revenue.”

Backlog

Historically the company has not reported backlog because we did not believe that backlog was a
meaningful measure for understanding our historical processor business or revenues. In addition, royalties have
generally accounted for a substantial portion of our revenue. Since royalty payments and the related revenue are
generally based on sales, with no guaranteed minimums, our royaity revenue does not factor into backlog
calculations. Similarly, from time to time, we have PBG license agreements in place under which we may receive
future revenue if our customer achieves certain of their own milestones. Insofar as many factors including market
conditions and customer product success determine the milestone achievement, we do not believe these potential
future payments should be characterized as backlog.
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With the addition of Chipidea in August 2007 the amount of engineering service contracts for technology
under development is expecled to increase as a percentage of overall revenue. Currently backlog associated with
these projects varies significantly and does not provide a predictable basis to calculating projected quarterty
revenue. There are many issues that impact the timing of when backlog will be recognized as revenue including
the timing of customer payments, the achievement of billing milestones, the timing of Company technical
deliverables and the customer acceptance of those deliverables if contractually required. Backlog is expected to
contribute less than 10% of total revenues in fiscal 2009. Thus, in the near term backlog amounts outstanding at
any given time are not currently viewed as a meaningful indicator of our future quarterly revenue.

Intellectual Property

Qur patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets and other intellectual property rights are critical to our
success, and we rely on a combination of patent, trademark, copyright and trade secret laws to protect our
proprietary rights, Qur failure to obtain or maintain adequate protection of our intellectual property rights for any
reason could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operation and financial condition.

Despite our efforts to protect our intellectual property rights, unauthorized parties may attempt to copy or
otherwise use our technologies, including the marketing and sale of unauthorized MIPS-compatible clones in
particular geographies. We intend to protect vigorously our intellectual property rights. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to enforce our rights or prevent other parties from designing and marketing such
unauthorized MIPS-compatible products.

We own more than 400 patent properties (patents and applications) worldwide on various aspects of our
technology. There can be no assurance that patents will be issued from any patent applications we submit, that
any patents we hold will not be challenged, invalidated or circumvented or that any claims allowed from our
patents will be of sufficient scope or strength to provide meaningful protection or any commercial advantage to
us. In addition, patent rights which we have obtained will expire from time to time, with expiration dates ranging
from 2008 to after 2025. We are not able to predict the extent to which third parties may use information
contained in expired patents to successfully compete against us.

We also rely on unpatented trade secrets to protect our proprietary technology. No assurance can be given
that others will not independently develop or otherwise acquire the same or substantially equivalent technologies
or otherwise gain access to our proprietary technology or disclose such technology or that we can ultimately
protect our rights to such unpatented proprietary technology. In addition, no assurance can be given that third
parties will not obtain patent rights to such unpatented trade secrets, which patent rights could be used to assert
infringement claims against us.

We also use licensing agreements, and employee and third party nondisclosure and assignment agreements,
to limit access to and distribution of our proprietary information and to obtain ownership of technology prepared
on a work-for-hire or other basis. There can be no assurance that the steps we have taken to protect our
intellectual property rights will be adequate to deter misappropriation of such rights or that we will be able to
detect unauthorized uses and take immediate or effective steps to enforce our rights. There can also be no
assurance that the steps we have taken to obtain ownership of contributed intellectual property will be sufficient
to assure our ownership of all proprietary rights.

From time to time we may wish to negotiate rights to third party intellectual property. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to negotiate commercially attractive intellectual property licensing arrangements
with third parties in the future.

MIPS designs, architectures and extensions are subject to patent, copyright and trademark protection. MIPS,
MIPS-3D, MIPS16e, SmartMIPS, MIPS32, MIPS64, MIPS-Based, MIPS-Verified, MIPS Technologies logo,
4K, 4Kc, 4Km, 4Kp, 4KE, 4KEc, 4KEm, 4KEp, 4KSd, M4K, 24K, 24Kc, 24Kf, 24KE, 24KEc, 24KEf, 34K,
34Kc, 34Kf, 74K, 74Kc, 74Kf, 1004K, 1004Kc, 1004Kf Pro Series, and CorExtend are among the trademarks or
registered trademarks of MIPS Technologies, Inc. in the United States and other countries. This report also
contains trademarks and registered trademarks of other companies.
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Competition

The market for embedded processors and cores and analog 1P is highly competitive and characterized by
rapidly changing technological needs and capabilities. We believe that the principal competitive factors in the
SoC markets are legacy software compatibility, manufacturing and licensing cost, performance, functionality,
customizability and power consumption. In markets served by our Analog Business Group, a broad range of
companies offer competing products and capabilities; as the largest supplier of analog IP our ability to broadly
leverage our analog capabilities is a key differentiator. Competitive challenges in development of analog IP
include the ability to satisfy the breadth of products requested by customers from foundries in differing process
nodes. Our customers in both product lines seek a range of products that provide multiple price performance
points to allow them to offer their own rich product lines.

QOur processors and cores compete with those of ARM Holdings ple, Tensilica Incorporated, ARC
International (UK) Limited, and PowerPC, a product family developed and marketed by AMCC, IBM
Corporation and Freescale Semiconductor. We also compete against certain semiconductor manufacturers, whose
product lines include processors for embedded and non-embedded applications, including x86 processors from
Advanced Micro Devices, Inc. and Intel Corporation. In addition, we may face competition from the producers of
clones that implement part of the MIPS architecture, including early-developed portions of the MIPS architecture
that are no longer subject to patent protection in particular geographies.

To remain competitive, we must continue to differentiate designs from those available or under
development by the internal design groups of semiconductor companies, including our current and prospective
licensees. Competition from internal design teams is especially critical for our ABG group given the current
propensity of this market to develop this technology internally. Many of these internal design groups have
substantial programming and design resources and are part of larger organizations, which have substantial
financial and marketing resources. There can be no assurance that internal design groups will not develop
products that compete directly with our designs or will not actively seek to participate as merchant vendors in the
intellectual property component market by selling to third-party semiconductor manufacturers or, if they do, that
we will be able to compete with them successfully. To the extent that these alternative technologies provide
comparable performance at a lower or similar cost than our technology, semiconductor companies may adopt and
promote these alternative technologies. Certain competitors have more extensive name recognition and customer
bases, as well as greater financial and marketing resources than us, and as such, competition could adversely
affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Employees

As of June 30, 2008, we had 512 employees. Of this total, 405 were engineers involved in engineering
design services and in research and development, 59 were in sales and marketing and 48 were general and
administrative employees. Our future success will depend in part on our ability to atiract, retain and motivate
highly qualified technical and management personnel who are in great demand in the semiconductor industry.

Available Information

Our Internet website is located at http://www.mips.com. We make available free of charge on our website
our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments
to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, as soon as reasonabiy
practicable after we electronically file such material with, or fumnish it to, the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or SEC. Other than the information expressly set forth in this annual report, the information
contained, or referred to, on our website is not a part of this annual report.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our success is subject to numerous risks and uncertainties, including those discussed below. These factors
could hinder our growth, cause us 1o sustain losses or have other adverse effects on us, which could individually
or collectively cause our stock price to decline. The following list is not exhaustive and you should carefully
consider these risks and uncertainties before investing in our common stock.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2008, we completed the acquisition of Chipidea, and there are
numerous risks associated with this acquisition. In August 2007, we completed the acquisition of Chipidea,
a Portuguese company that supplies analog and mixed signal intellectual property for the digital consumer,
wireless and connectivity markets. The purchase price for this acquisition was $147 million in cash paid at
closing, with contingent obligations to issue up to 610,687 shares of common stock {or to pay the cash value of
such shares) based on the performance of the Chipidea business.

This is a substantially larger acquisition than any that we have previously completed and involves
technology and products that are largely new to us. Many of the risks discussed below under “We may encounter
difficulties with future acquisitions that could harm our business” may be enhanced as a result of the Chipidea
acquisition. Among the many risks associated with the acquisition are the following:

« the challenges and expense associated with integrating and managing a large acquired business, which
challenge will be further complicated by the geographical distance between our headquarters in California
and the Chipidea headquarters in Portugal,

» our dependence on the MIPS management team to manage the Chipidea business, and integrate it with
our existing business;

+ the possible adverse impact to us of the recent resignation of Jose Franca, founder and CEQ of Chipidea
prior to the acquisition, and the ongoing risk of the loss of additional key personnel whose ongoing
employment with us could be important to our ability to continue to advance the Chipidea technology and
to effectively market and sell its products;

« diversion of our management team’s attention as we seek to capitalize on the opportunities presented by
this acquisition may adversely affect our ability to operate our existing business.

We may not achieve the advantages that we envisioned when we decided to complete this acquisition. In the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 we recorded substantial charges for the impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
from this acquisition, as our updated forecasts for the business showed lower near and long term profitability
than we had estimated at the time of completing the acquisition. Supporting the licensing of analog and mixed
signal IP is relatively more labor intensive than that of our microprocessor IP business, and we cannot be assured
of our ability to achieve operating results from this business that correspond to those that we can achieve in our
existing business. If we are not as successful as we anticipated with the Chipidea business, our future operating
results and financial condition would be adversely affected.

We used all of our cash to complete the acquisition of Chipidea. We used all of our available cash and
short term investments to complete the acquisition of Chipidea and in connection with the acquisition incurred
debt under a revolving credit agreement. This use of cash dramatically reduces our liquidity, and if we encounter
difficulty in generating cash from the operation of our business we may be required to curtail our operations or
take other acts that could adversely affect our ability to be successful over the longer term. In addition, we have
not previously incurred debt for borrowed money. We have taken on Jonger term financing to replace this
Revolving Credit Agreement, and have repaid it. Silicon Valley Bank has provided a loan to us on July 3, 2008 in
the amount of $15 million for a term loan due and payable in monthly installments over four years and a
revolving credit line in the amount of $10 million. Under the terms of a Loan and Security Agreement we must
pay off all amounts due under the Revolving Credit Agreement or extend the agreement on or before July 2,
2009. Loans under the new facility are secured by virtually all of our assets, and the facility contains affirmative
and negative covenants that impose restrictions on the operation of our business. We cannot be assured that we
will be able to repay this debt on or before its due date. We will be required to make interest payments for so
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long as this debt is outstanding. This incurrence of long term debt could adversely affect our operating results
and financial condition and the sale of equity securities could be on terms that are dilutive to our existing
stockholders. Further, the covenants contained in the credit facility may prevent us from taking advantage of
opportunities that are otherwise available to us or could cause an earlier acceleration of the facility. We may not
be able 1o obtain favorable credit terms related to any debt that we may incur in the future.

Our quarterly financial results are subject to significant fluctuations that could adversely affect our
stock price. Our quarterly financial results may vary significantly due to a number of factors. In addition, our
revenue components are difficult to predict and may fluctuate significantly from period to period. Because our
revenues are somewhat independent of our expenses in any particular period, it is difficult to accurately forecast
our operating results, Our operating expenses are based, in part, on anticipated future revenue and a very high
percentage of our expenses are fixed in the short term. As a result, if our revenue is below expectations in any
quarter, the adverse effect may be magnified by our inability to adjust spending in a timely manner to
compensate for the revenue shortfall. Therefore, we believe that quarter-to-quarter comparisons of our revenue
and operating results may not be a good indication of our future performance. Our acquisition of Chipidea will
increase the challenge that we face in planning and predicting our future operating results. It is possible that in
some future periods our results of operations may be below the expectations of securities analysts and investors.
In that event, the price of our common stock may fall.

Factors that could cause our revenue and operating results to vary from quarter to quarter include:

+ our ability to identify attractive licensing opportunities and then enter into new licensing agreements on
terms that are acceptable to us;

« our ability to successfully conclude licensing agreements of any significant value in a given quarter,
particularly as we have become more reliant on larger transactions in PBG;

+ the financial terms and delivery schedules of our contractual arrangements with our licensees, which may
provide for significant up-front payments, payments based on the achievement of certain milestones or
extended payment terms;

* the demand for products that incorporate our technology;
* our ability to develop, introduce and market new intellectual property;

* the establishment or loss of licensing relationships with semiconductor companies or digital consumer,
wireless, connectivity and business product manufacturers;

* the timing of new products and product enhancements by us and our competitors;

+ changes in development schedules, research and development expenditure levels and product support by
us and semiconductor companies and digital consumer, wireless, connectivity and business product
manufacturers; and

+ uncertain economic and market conditions.

The success of our business depends on maintaining and growing our contract revenue. Contract
revenue consists of technology license fees paid for access to our developed technology and engineering service
fees related to technology under development. Our ability to secure the licenses from which our contract
revenues are derived depends on our customers, including semiconductor companies, digital consumer, wireless,
connectivity and business product manufacturers, adopting our technology and using it in the products they sell.
Our Processor Business Group (PBG) contract revenue increased 28% in fiscal 2005, declined 12% in fiscal
2006, increased by 42% in fiscal 2007 and declined by 23% in fiscal 2008. In our PBG, we entered into a number
of unlimited use license agreements with our customers, Under these agreements, customers generally pay a
larger fixed up-front fee to use a number of our cores in unlimited SoC designs during the term of the agreement,
which is generally between 4 and 7 years. The number of licensed cores can vary from one core to every core
currently available. We recognize all license revenues under these unlimited use license agreements upon
execution of the agreement, provided all revenue recognition criteria had been met. Contract revenue from
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unlimited use license agreement was 699% in fiscal 2008, 49% in fiscal 2007, and 32% in fiscal 2006 of the total
PBG license and contract revenue. Historically, a license-based business can have strong quarters or weak
quarters depending on the number and size of the license deals closed during the quarter. We cannot predict
whether we can maintain our current contract revenue levels or if contract revenue will grow. Our licensees are
not obligated to license new or future generations of our products, so past contract revenue may not be indicative
of the amount of such revenue in any future period. If we cannot maintain or grow our contract revenue or if our
customers do not adopt our technology and obtain corresponding licenses, our results of operations will be
adversely affected.

Our ability to achieve design wins may be limited unless we are able to develop enhancements and
new generations of our intellectual property. Our future success will depend, in part, on our ability to
develop enhancements and new generations of our processors, cores or other intellectual property that satisfy the
requirements of specific product applications and introduce these new technologies to the marketplace in a timely
manner. If our development efforts are not successful or are significantly delayed, or if the characteristics of our
IP product offerings and related designs are not compatible with the requirements of specific product
applications, our ability to achieve design wins may be limited. Our failure to achieve a significant number of
design wins would adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Technica! innovations of the type critical to our success are inherently complex and involve several risks,
including:

s our ability to anticipate and timely respond to changes in the requirements of semiconductor companies,
and original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, of digital consumer, wireless, connectivity and business
products;

+ our ability to anticipate and timely respond to changes in semiconductor manufacturing processes;

« changing customer preferences in the digital consumer, wireless, connectivity and business products
markets;

s+ the emergence of new standards in the semiconductor industry and for digital consumer, wireless,
connectivity and business products;

« the significant investment in a potential product that is often required before commercial viability is
determined; and

» the introduction by our competitors of products embodying new technologies or features.

Our failure to adequately address these risks could render our existing IP product offerings and related
designs obsolete and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. In addition, we
cannot assure you that we will have the financial and other resources necessary to develop 1P product offerings
and related designs in the future, or that any enhancements or new generations of the technology that we develop
will generate revenue sufficient to cover or in excess of the costs of development.

In our Processor business we depend on royalties from the sale of products incorporating our
technology, and we have limited visibility as to the timing and amount of such sales. Our receipt of
royalties from our licenses depends on our customers incorporating our technology into their products, their
bringing these products to market, and the success of these products. In the case of our semiconductor customers,
the amount of such sales is further dependent upon the sale of the products by their customers into which our
customers’ products are incorporated. Thus, our ability to achieve design wins and enter into licensing
agreements does not assure us of future revenue. Any royalties that we are eligible to receive are based on the
sales of products incorporating the semiconductors or other products of our licensees, and as a result we do not
have direct access to information that will help us anticipate the timing and amount of future royalties. Factors
that negatively affect our licensees and their customers could adversely affect our business. The success of our
direct and indirect customers is subject to a number of factors, including:

» the competition these companies face and the market acceptance of their products;
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« the engineering, marketing and management capabilities of these companies and technical challenges
unrelated to our technology that they face in developing their products; and

« their financial and other resources.

Because we do not control the business practices of our licensees and their customers, we have little
influence on the degree to which our licensees promote our technology and do not set the prices at which
products incorporating our technology are sold.

We rely on our customers to correctly report to us the number or dotlar value of products incorporating our
technology that they have sold, as these sales are the basis for the royalty payments that they make to us. We
have the right under our licensing agreements to perform a royalty audit of the customer’s sales so that we can
verify the accuracy of their reporting, and if we determine that there has been an ovcr—reported or under-reported
amount of royalty, we account for the results when they are identified.

If we do not compete effectively in the market for SoC intellectual property cores and related designs,
our business will be adversely affected. Competition in the market for SoC intellectval property and related
designs is intense. Our products compete with those of other designers and developers of IP product offerings, as
well as those of semiconductor manufacturers whose product lines include digital, analog and/or mixed signal
designs for embedded and non-embedded applications. In addition, we may face competition from the producers
of unauthorized clones of our processor and other technology designs. The market for embedded processors in
particular has recently faced downward pricing pressures on products. We cannot assure you that we will be able
to compete successfully or that competitive pressure will not materially and adversely affect our business, results
of operations and financial condition,

In order to be successful in marketing our products to semiconductor companies, we must differentiate our
intellectual property cores and related designs from those available or under development by the internal design
groups of these companies, including some of our current and prospective licensees. Many of these internal design
groups have substantial engineering and design resources and are part of larger organizations with substantial
financial and marketing resources. These internal design groups may develop products that compete with ours.

Some of our existing competitors, as well as a number of potential new competitors, have longer operating
histories, greater brand recognition, larger customer bases as well as greater financial and marketing resources
than we do. This may allow them to respond more quickly than we can to new or emerging technologies and
changes in customer requirements. [t may also allow them to devote greater resources than we can to the
development and promotion of their technologies and products.

We may incur restructuring charges in the future, which could harm our results of operations. In
January 2008, we announced plans to reduce our workforce with the objective of reducing our Processor
Business Group operating expenses. These actions resulted in a restructuring charge in fiscal 2008 of $1.6
million, comprised of employee severance costs, facilities exit costs, and asset write-offs. In addition, on
August 13, 2008, we announced a plan to reduce the Company’s operating costs by a reduction in employee
headcount. This plan involves the termination of employees in our facilities in the United States, Israel and
Europe. We expect to complete all actions under the restructuring by June 30, 2009. We expect to incur
aggregate costs associated with this plan of approximately $6.5 million to $7.5 million. It is expected that the
majority of these charges will consist of employee severance charges. These restructuring activities may not be
sufficient to appropriately align our operating expenses with our revenue expectations. If we have not sufficiendy
reduced operating expenses or if revenues are below our expectations, we may be required to engage in
additional restructuring activities, which could result in additional restructuring charges. These restructuring
charges could harm our results of operations. Further, our restructuring plans could result in a potential adverse
effect on employee capabilities that could harm our efficiency and our ability to act quickly and effectively in the
rapidly changing technology markets in which we sell our products.

QOur operations in foreign countries are subject to political and economic risks, With the acquisition
of Chipidea we have substantially expanded our operations outside the United States. In addition to the main
Chipidea facilities in Portugal, we also have operations in Belgium, China, France, Macau, Norway, Switzerland
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and Poland as well as sales offices in China, Germany, Japan, Israel, Korea and Taiwan. We expect our
international sales to grow, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of sales. Our operations in countries
outside the U.S. subject us to risks, including:

« changes in tax laws, trade protection measures and import or export licensing requirements;

« potential difficulties in protecting our intellectual property;

+ changes in foreign currency rates;

« restrictions, or taxes, on transfers of funds between entities or facilities in different countries; and
+ changes in a given country’s political or economic conditions.

As a result of one or more of these risks, our operating costs could increase substantially, our flexibility in
operating our business could be impaired, our taxes could increase, and our sales could be adversely
affected. Any of these items could have an adverse affect on our financial condition or results of operations.

We depend on our key personnel to succeed. Our success depends to a significant extent on the
continued contributions of our key management, technical, sales and marketing personnel, many of whom are
highly skilted and difficult to replace. This dependence is enhanced with our acquisition of Chipidea, as our
ability to successfully operate this business in the future will depend significantly on our ability to retain key
Chipidea management and employees. We cannot assure that we will retain our key officers and employees.
Competition for qualified personnel, particularly those with significant experience in the semiconductor, analog,
mixed signal and processor design industries, remains intense. The loss of the services of any of our key
personnel or our inability to attract and retain qualified personnel in the future could make it difficult to meet key
objectives, such as timely and effective project milestones and product introductions which could adversely
affect our business, results of operations and financial condition,

Changes in effective tax rates or adverse outcomes from examination of our income tax returns could
adversely affect our results. Our future effective tax rates could be adversely affected by earnings being lower
than anticipated in countries with low statutory tax rates, by changes in the valuation of our deferred tax assets
and liabilities, or by changes in tax laws or regulations or the interpretation of tax laws or regulations. We
operate in countries other than the United States and occasionally face inquiries and examinations regarding tax
matters in these countries. There can be no assurance that the outcomes from examinations will not have an
adverse effect on our operating results and financial condition.

We may be subject to litigation and other legal claims that could adversely affect our financial
results. From time to lime, we are subject to litigation and other legal claims incidental to our business. In
addition, it is standard practice for us to include some form of indemnification of our licensees in our core and
architecture license agreements, and from time to time we are engaged in claims by our licensees with respect to
these obligations. It is possible that we could suffer unfavorable outcomes from litigation or other legal ctaims,
including those made with respect to indemnification obligations, that are currently pending or that may arise in
the future. Any such unfavorable outcome could materially adversely affect our financial condition or results of
operations.

We may be subject to claims of infringement. Significant litigation regarding intellectual property rights
exists in our industry. As we grow our business and expand into new markets that other companies are
developing in, the risk that our technology may infringe upon the intellectual property rights of others increases.
We cannot be certain that third parties witl not make a claim of infringement against us, our licensees, or our
licensees’ customers in connection with use of our technology. Any claims, even those without merit, could be
time consuming to defend, result in costly litigation and/or require us to enter into royalty or licensing
agreements. These royally or licensing agreements, if required, may not be available on acceplable terms to us or
at all. A successful claim of infringement against us or one of our licensees in connection with its use of our
technology could adversely affect our business.

From time (o time, we receive communications from third parties asserting patent or other rights allegedly
covering our products and technologies. Based upon our evaluation, we may take no action or we may seek to
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obtain a license, redesign an accused product or technology, initiate a formal proceeding with the appropriate
agency (e.g., the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office) and/or initiate litigation. There can be no assurance in any
given case that a license will be available on terms we consider reasonable or that litigation can be avoided if we
desire to do so. If litigation does ensue, the adverse third party will likely seek damages (potentially including
treble damages) and may seek an injunction against the sale of our products that incorporate allegedly infringed
intellectval property or against the operation of our business as presently conducted, which could result in our
having to stop the sale of some of our products or to increase the costs of selling some of our products. Such
lawsuits could also damage our reputation. The award of damages, including material royalty payments, or the
entry of an injunction against the sale of some or all of our products, could have a material adverse affect on us.
Even if we were to initiate litigation, such action could be extremely expensive and time-consuming and could
have a material adverse effect on us. We cannot assure you that litigation related to our intellectual property
rights or the intellectual property rights of others can always be avoided or successfully concluded.

Even if we were to prevail, any litigation could be costly and time-consuming and would divert the attention of
our management and key personnel from our business operations, which could have a material adverse effect on us.

Our intellectual property may be misappropriated or expire, and we may be unable to obtain or enforce
intellectual property rights. We rely on a combination of protections provided by contracts, including
confidentiality and nondisclosure agreements, copyrights, patents, trademarks, and common-law rights, such as
trade secrets, to protect our intellectual property. We cannot assure you that any of the patents or other intellectual
property rights that we own or use will not be challenged, invalidated or circumvented by others or be of sufficient
scope or strength to provide us with any meaningful protection or commercial advantage. Policing the unauthorized
use of our intellectual property is difficukt, and we cannot be certain that the steps we have taken will prevent the
misappropriation or untauthorized use of our technologies, particularly in foreign countries where the laws may not
protect our proprietary rights as fully as in the United States. As part of our business strategy, we license our
technology in multiple geographies including in countries whose laws do not provide as much protection for our
intellectual property as the laws of the United States and where we may not be able to enforce our rights. In
addition, intellectual property rights which we have obtained in particular geographies may and do expire from time
to time. As a result, we cannot be certain that we will be able to prevent other parties from designing and marketing
unauthorized MIPS compatible products that others will not independently develop or otherwise acquire the same or
substantially equivalent technologies as ours, or that others will not use information contained in our expired patents
to successfully compete against us. Moreover, cross licensing arrangements, in which we license certain of our
patents but do not generally transfer know-how or other proprietary information, may facilitate the ability of cross-
licensees, either alone or in conjunction with others, to develop competitive products and designs. We also cannot
assure you that any of our patent applications to protect our intellectual property will be approved, and patents that
have issued do expire over time. Recent judicial decisions and proposed legislation in the United States may
increase the cost of obtaining patents, limit the ability to adequately protect our proprietary technology, and have a
negative impact on the enforceability of our patents. In addition, effective trade secret protection may be unavailable
or limited in certain countries. If we are unable to protect, maintain or enforce our intellectual property rights, our
technology may be used without the payment of license fees and royalties, which could weaken our competitive
position, reduce our operating results and increase the likelihood of costly litigation.

We have recorded long-lived assets, and our results of operations would be adversely affected if their
value becomes impaired. Although we took a substantial charge in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 for the
impairment of goodwill and acquired intangible assets associated with the Chipidea acquisition and prior
acquisitions, we continue to carry substantial amounts of acquired intangible assets and goodwill. If we complete
additional acquisitions in the future, our acquired intangible asset amortization expenses could further increase,
and we may be required to record additional amounts of goodwill. In addition, we have made investments in
certain private companies which could become impaired if the operating results of those companies change
adversely. We evaluate our long-lived assets, including acquired intangible assets, goodwill and investments in
private companies for impairment on an annual basis or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable from its estimated future cash flows.
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In the future, if we make a further determination that our long-lived assets are impaired, we will have to
recognize additional charges for the impairment. We cannot be sure that we will not be required to record
additional long-lived asset impairment charges in the future. Our determination of fair value of long-lived assets
relies on management’s assumptions of our future revenues, operating costs, and other relevant factors. If
management’s estimates of future operating results change or if there are changes to other assumptions such as
the discount rate applied to future cash flows, the estimate of the fair value of our reporting uniis could change
significantly, which could result in additional goodwill impairment charges.

We cannot be assured that our recent restructurings will sufficiently reduce our expenses relative to
future revenue and may have to implement additional restructuring plans in order to reduce our operating
costs. We have implemented restructuring plans in the past to reduce our operating costs, including plans
announced in January and August 2008. We may not realize fully the anticipated benefits of the restructuring
plans, which may lead to additional future restructurings to align our expenses with our anticipated revenue. If
we are required to do so, we likely would incur additional amounts of matertal restructuring charges.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
Ttem 2. Properties

Our executive, administrative and technical offices currently occupy approximately 55,000 square feet in a
building leased in Mountain View, California. This lease will expire on May 31, 2009.

At June 30, 2008, we owned an administrative and technical facility in Portugal obtained through the
Chipidea acquisition and held through a capitat lease. This facility is approximately 28,621 square feet.

We also lease a facility in Beaverton, Oregon. The facility is approximately 7,000 square feet and it is
occupied by sales and engineering personnel. The lease will expire June 30, 2012.

We lease sales offices in Japan, Taiwan, Korea, China, Belgium, Germany, France, Poland, Portugal and
Israel, technical office spaces in the United Kingdom and United States and an administrative office space in
Switzerland. These leases range from 9 months to 10 years.

We believe that these facilities are adequate to meet our current needs but we may need to seek additional
space in the future.

Ttem 3. Legal Proceedings

A derivative action entitled In re MIPS Technologies, Inc. Derivative Litigation, Case
No. C-06-06699-RMW, was filed on October 27, 2006, in the United States District Court, Northern District of
California, against certain current and former MIPS officers and directors and MIPS as a nominal defendant. The
complaint in the action alleges that the individual defendants breached their fiduciary duties and violated
California and federal securities laws as a result of, among other things, purported backdating of stock option
grants, insider trading and the dissemination of false financial statements. Plaintiff seeks to recover
purportedly on behalf of MIPS, unspecified monetary damages, corporate governance changes, equitable and
injunctive relief, and fees and costs. A motion to dismiss the consolidated complaint was granted on January 11,
2008, with leave for plaintiff to amend. Plaintiff filed an amended complaint and MIPS filed a second motion to
dismiss which was granted without leave to amend on August 13, 2008. It is not clear what, if any, action
plaintiff will take in response to the court's granting of the motion.

From time to time, we receive communications from third parties asserting patent or other rights allegedly
covering our products and technologies. Based upon our evaluation, we may take no action or we may seek to
obtain a license, redesign an accused product or technology, initiate a formal proceeding with the appropriate
agency (e.g., the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office) and/or initiate litigation. For additional information
regarding intellectual property litigation, see Part I, Item LA. Risk factors—*We may be subject to claims of
infringement”.
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.
No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the quarter ended June 30, 2008.
Item 4A. Executive Officers of the Registrant.

Our executive officers and their ages as of June 30, 2008, were as follows:

Name Age Position

John E. Bourgoin ......... 62 Chief Executive Officer and President

Maury Austin . ........... 50  Chief Financial Officer

Sandy Creighton ......... 55  Vice President, Human Resources

John Derrick . ............ 40  President and Chief Operating Officer

Sergio PenaDias ......... 43 Vice President of Operations

Jose Epifanio da Franca ..., 53  President and General Manager, Analog Business Group

Brad Holtzinger .......... 46  Vice President, Worldwide Sales

Stuart J. Nichols .. ........ 48  Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary

Mark Tyndall ,........... 43 Vice President, Business Development and Corporate Relations

John E. Bourgoin has served as our Chief Executive Officer since February 1998 and our President since
September 1996. Mr. Bourgoin has served on our board of directors since May 1997,

Maury Austin has served as our Chief Financial Officer since March, 2008. He had more than 25 years of
corporate finance experience including executive positions at Apple Computer and General Electric Company.
Mr. Austin served as SVP & CFO of Portal Software, Inc, from June 2005 until its acquisition and integration
into Oracle Corporation in November 2006. Prior to Portal, Mr. Austin was SVP and CFO for Southwail
Technologies from 2004 to 2005. Prior to his employment with Southwall Technologies, Inc., Mr. Austin was
SVP and CFO for Vicinity Corporation from 2000 until its acquisition by Microsoft Corporation in 2003.

Sandy Creighton has served as our Vice President, Human Resources and Corporate Administration since
February 2006. From June 1998 to February 2006, Ms. Creighton served as our Vice President, General Counsel
and from June 1998 to April 2006 as Secretary.

John Derrick has served as our President and General Manager of the company's newly formed Processor
Business Group since January 2008. In July, 2008 Mr. Derrick was promoted to Chief Operating Officer. Prior to
joining MIPS, Mr. Derrick worked in the semiconductor and systems market. Throughout 2007, Mr. Derrick
worked with several venture firms and early stage private companies. Mr. Derrick served as General Manager of
Intel Corporation's Acceleration Product Division from October 2005 through July of 2006 and as CEO and
Chief Strategy Officer of Conformative Systems from May 2003 through September 2005 prior to its acquisition
by Intel Corporation. Prior to his role at Conformative Systems he was an Entrepreneur in Residence at Austin
Ventures from September 2002 through May 2003.

Sergio Pena Dias has served as Vice President of Operations. Before assuming his position with MIPS
Technologies, Mr. Dias was executive vice president and chief financial officer at Chipidea, where he had
corporate-wide responsibilities for finance and administration, legal, human resources, quality, information
management systems and investor relations. Prior to his position at Chipidea Mr. Dias worked in various
financial positions at Oracle Corporation for 14 years. Mr. Dias resigned from the company effective August 31,
2008.

Jose Epifanio da Franca has served as our President & General Manager of Analog Business Group. Before
assuming his current position, Dr. Franca was president, chairman and CEO of Chipidea-Microelectrénica, 5.A.,
which he co-founded in 1997, Under his leadership, Chipidea became the world's number one provider of analog/
mixed-signal intellectual property. Mr. Franca has served on our board of directors since August 2007.
Mr. Franca resigned as an employee of the Company effective September 3, 2008.
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Brad Holtzinger has served as our Vice President, Worldwide Sales since October 2005. Mr. Holtzinger
served as Vice President of Sales for the Americas region from July 2004 to October 20035 and as Director of
Sales for the Americas from May 2003 to July 2004. Mr. Holtzinger joined us in December 2001 and served as
the Director of Systems Solutions until May 2003.

Stuart J. Nichols has served as our Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary since
November 2007. Mr. Nichols brings more than 20 years of legal experience to his role as the company's senior
legal advisor. Before assuming his current position, he was vice president and general counsel at KLA-Tencor
Corporation, where he had executive responsibility for legal, corporate environmental health and safety, and
corporate security. Prior to that, he was vice president, general counsel and secretary for Phoenix Technologies
Ltd., and general counsel for Samsung Semiconductor, Inc.

Mark Tyndall has served as our Vice President, Business Development and Corporate Relations since June
2006. Prior to joining us, Mr. Tyndall was Vice President, Business Development and North America investor
relations at Infineon Technologies. Mr. Tyndall resigned from the Company effective September 2, 2008.

There are no family relationships between any of our executive officers.
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PARTII

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities.
COur common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq Globat Select Market under the symbol “MIPS”.

COMMON
STOCK
HIGH LOW
FISCAL YEAR 2008
Foumth QUarter . ... e e e $ 465 $340
Third QUANET . . . ... e e $ 475 $3.10
SeCOnd QUATET . ...\ ittt et e e e $ 799 $4.83
TSt QUM T . . o $10.03 $7.36
COMMON
STOCK
HIGH LOW
FISCAL YEAR 2007
Fourth Uarter . . .o $ 924 $8.39
0740 T ¢ O $ 992 38.12
Second QUarer ... .. ... e e $ 888 3$6.74
FIrst QUAN e . ..t e e $ 719 3536

As of August 31, 2008, there were approximately 3,682 stockholders of record of our common

stock.

Because most of our common stock is held by brokers and other institutions on behalf of stockholders, we are
unable to estimate the total number of stockholders represented by these record holders. We have never paid or
declared any cash dividends on our common stock or other securities and do not anticipate paying cash dividends

in the foreseeable future.
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‘ PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares the cumulative total return to stockholders for our common stock, our Class
B common stock, the Nasdag Stock Market Index—U.S., and the RDG Semiconductor Composite Index. The
graph assumes that $100 was invested in our Class A common stock and in each index on June 30, 2003. On
November 14, 2003, we effected a re-combination of our Class A and Class B common stock into a single class
. of common stock. The cumulative total return for our common stock reflects the performance of our Class A
‘ common stock prior to the re-combination and the performance of our single class of common stock following
the re-combination, No dividends have been declared or paid on our Class A, Class B or common stock.
| Stockholder returns over the indicated period should not be considered indicative of future stockholder returns.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Among Mips Technologies, Inc., The NASDAQ Composite index
And The RDG Semiconductor Composite Index
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$300 -
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-—B— Mips Technologies, Inc. — A — Mips Technologies, In¢. - Class B
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*$100 invested on 6/30/03 in stock & index-including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending June 30.
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data.

You should read the selected consolidated financial data set forth below together with “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation” and our consolidated financial
statements and the notes to those statements included elsewhere in this report. The selected consolidated
statements of operations data for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2008, 2007, 2006, 2005 and 2004, and the
selected consolidated balance sheet data as of June 30, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2003, set forth below have been
derived from our consolidated financial statements which have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent
auditors for all years. The selected consolidated balance sheet data as of June 30, 2004 set forth below have not
been audited and are derived from our books and records.

We are organized in two business groups, the Processor Business Group (PBG) and the Analog Business
Group (ABG). The PBG provides industry-standard processor architectures and cores for digital consumer and
business applications. The ABG includes the Chipidea operation and provides analog and mixed-signal IP that
produces cost-efficient SoC applications and turnkey solutions.

Fiscal year ended June 30,
2008 (1) 2007 2006 2005 2004
(In thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:

Revenue:
Royalties . . ... .. . . i e $ 46,386 $ 44422 $ 36,675 $ 29,988 $ 23,439
License and Contractrevenue ................... 58,407 38,888 27,379 31,231 24446
Totalrevenue ............cciiiieinininn. 104,793 83,310 64,054 61,219 47,885
Costs and expenses:
Costof contract revenue . ...................... 32,161 1,663 1,246 553 592
Research anddevelopment . ..................... 36,478 33,068 27,14 21,427 23,518
Salesand marketing .. ........... ..., 24,394 22,255 18,455 14,902 11,984
General and administrative ..................... 28,860 20,960 12,229 10,312 8,549
Acquired-in process research and development (2) . . . 6,350 — 570 — —
Impairment of Goodwill and Acquired Intangible
Assets (3) L. 103,107 — —_ — —
Restructuring charge (4) .. ...................... 1,559 — — 271 3,233
Total costs and expenses ................... 232,909 77,946 59,604 47471 47876
Operating income {(loss) .. .......................... (128,116} 5,364 4,450 13,748 9
Other income (expense), nel .............ovvinnn.nn. (4,081) 6,470 4,373 2,750 634
Income (loss) before incometaxes . ................... (132,197) 11,834 8,823 16,498 643
Provision (benefit) for income taxes .................. (362) 3,351 (2,198} 1,312 2,358
Netincome (l0oss) .. ... ... i, $(131,835) § 8483 % 11,021 § 15186 % (1,715
Per basic share amounts:
Net income (loss) per basicshare .................... $ Gons 019% 026 % 0373 0.0
Per diluted share amounts:
Net income (loss) per diluted share . .................. S @BOoS 018% 025 % 0345 0.04)
June 30,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
{In thousands)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cashequivalents .......................... $ 13,938 $119,039 $101,481 $ 91,686 $ 78,335
Working capital ..... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... (25,125) 133,314 117,251 100,944 82,107
Total assets .. ... .o e 152,744 174,862 147939 127,546 108,703
Total long-term liabilities . .......................... 29,496 5,726 2,966 2,938 2,038
Total stockholders” equity .......................... 44920 149,882 133,230 108,683 89,749




(1) Consolidated statement of operations data for 2008 includes the operations of Chipidea for the period from
August 27, 2007 through June 30, 2008. As a result, 2008 is not fully comparable to prior periods.

(2) Acquired in-process research and expenses are in connection with the Chipidea acquisition in fiscal 2008
and the FS2 acquisition in 2006 (see Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements),

(3) Represents impairment charges recorded to write down the carrying value of ABG and PBG related
goodwill and acquired intangible assets. See Part II, Item 7 “MD&A—Impairment Analysis.”

(4) Restructuring charge primarily relates to our restructuring activities initiated in October 2002, May 2003
and January 2008. See Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements for more details of the 2008
restrucluring.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulis of Operations.

You should read the following discussion and analysis together with our consolidated financial statements
and notes to those statements included elsewhere in this report. Except for the historical information contained
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, this discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and
uncertainties including statements regarding our expectation for specific aspects of our results of operations in
fiscal 2009. Our actual results could differ materially from those indicated in these forward-looking statements as
a result of certain factors, as more fully described under “Risk Factors,” and other risks included from time to
time in our other Securities and Exchange Commission reports, copies of which are available from vs upon
request. The forward-looking statements within this Annual Report on Form 10-K are identified by words such as
“believes,” “anticipates,” “expects,” “intends,” “may” and other similar expressions. However, these words are
not the exclusive means of identifying such statements. We undertake no obligation 1o update any forward-
looking statements included in this discussion.

(LTS L1

Introduction

MIPS Technologies, Inc. is the world’s second largest semiconductor design IP company and the largest
provider of analog IP worldwide based on worldwide revenue in 2007. With more than 250 worldwide
customers, MIPS Technologies is the only company that provides a combined portfolio of processors, analog IP
and software tools for the SoC market. We operate with two business Groups, the Processor Business Group and
the Analog Business Group. Qur technology is broadly used in markets such as mobile consumer electronics,
digital entertainment, wired and wireless communications and networking, office automation, security,
microcontrollers, and automotive, Qur customers are global semiconductor companies. We offer our customers
high-performance, easy-to-use functionality at a fraction of the cost and time to market that internal development
would require. Our customers pay us license fees for processor architectural and product rights, design and
implementation services within the ABG, as well as royalties based on processor unit shipments. The majority of
the PBG license fees are for existing IP and the revenue recognition associated with the delivery of the IP is
generally immediate. Since many of the ABG License projects are configured for a particular customer
application the revenue associated with these projects will be recognized over the life of the project which can be
as little as two weeks or as long as two years.

The addition of Chipidea in August 2007, now operating as the Analog Business Group (ABG) of MIPS
Technologies, has allowed us to grow the base of products we offer to the larger set of customers. Analog and
mixed signal [P are used in most SoCs. These are the same integrated circuits that usually require a
microprocessor core, permitting us to sell both kinds of products to the same customers for the same applications
in many circumstances. Analog and mixed signal IP are difficult to develop properly, and the number of well-
trained engineers in this field is much smaller than for digital circuitry. With the acquisition of Chipidea, we have
gained a particularly strong team of such designers for the development and sale of commercial analog IP.

Overview

After growing revenues 30% from fiscal 2006 to fiscal 2007, we acquired Chipidea in August 2007 to take
advantage of what is expected to be a relatively faster growing Analog IP market to improve our overall revenue
growth rate, Our growth strategy is to combine the royalty revenues generated by licensee shipments and

24




additional Processor Licensee fees with the new analog design and license capabilities provided by the Chipidea
acquisition. Fiscal 2008 revenue included $29.2 million of revenue from our ABG segment which did not exist
before the Chipidea acquisition was completed.

Royalties within the PBG are based on actual shipments of licensee products tied to Licensee contracts signed
in the past. Typically royalties will begin to be realized by MIPS two to four years after the initial license contract in
signed. Thus, over time, these license contracts can produce a material revenue stream as more and more licensee
products containing MIPS [P are sold into the market. Increases in MIPS processor royalty revenue is a function of
how many licensee end user products are shipped into the market place and the average royalty rate.

To the extent that large licensees outsource a larger portion of their analog design services and IP
development, MIPS expects its Analog business to generate further growth in the business. We believe that
another key factor for the success of the ABG segment will be our ability to closely manage and improve its
gross margins over time as more 1P is created and more “off the shelf” IP can be sold. Royalties within the ABG
product lines are historicaily less common and are not material to total revenue at this time. However, we expect
that royalties from licensed ABG IP will grow as a percentage of ABG sales over the next several years.

Fiscal 2008 revenue increased 26% compared to fiscal 2007 due to an increase in both royalty and license
and contract revenue. Royalty revenue increased by 4% primarily due to the addition of royalties from the ABG
of $0.8 million and an increase in annual PBG royalty unit volumes offset in part by a decline in the average
royalty rate of chips sold by our licensees. License and contract revenue increased by 50% over the comparable
period in fiscal 2007 due to the revenue contribution from ABG of $28.4 million. The ABG contribution was
offset in part by a 23% decline in PBG license revenue from $38.9 million to $30.0 million.

Fiscal 2008 Operating Expenses of $89.7 (net of the impairment of goodwill and acquired intangible assets
of $103.1 million, restructuring costs of $1.6 million and acquired in—process research and development costs of
$6.4 million) increased by $13.5 million or 18% over the comparable period in fiscal 2007. The increase was
primarily due to the addition of Chipidea operating expenses of $10.3 million, Fiscal 2008 Operating Expense
included $5.8 million of deferred purchase price consideration expense related 1o payments to the founders of
Chipidea in connection with the acquisition.

As aresult of the cash acquisition of Chipidea, our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities decreased
by approximately $131 million in fiscal 2008. To help fund the acquisition and current operating requirements, in
August 2007 we entered into a short-term revolving loan agreement of $35 million. On July 3, 2008, we paid off the
outstanding balance of the short-term revolving loan in connection with entering into a new SVB financing.

In the fourth quarter of 2008, we evaluated our goodwill and acquired intangible assets recorded in
connection with the Chipidea acquisition and concluded that a significant reduction in value was required given
the softening overall market for IP and delays experienced in realizing expected synergies. We also concluded
that impairment charges should be recorded with respect to other acquisitions and investments. Accordingly,
2008 operating results included $103.1 million impairment of goodwili and acquired intangible assets, of which
$101.4 million was associated with the ABG (Chipidea).

In August 2008, we anncunced a corporate restructuring to better integrate the ABG and reduce overall cost
structure. As a result, we expect to reduce approximately 15% of our employees and to reduce quarterly
operating costs by approximately $5.0 million, These reductions in personnel and operating expenses are
expected to be fully achieved prior to the end of its fiscal second quarter ending December 31, 2008. As a result
of the restructuring, MIPS expects to generate sufficient cash flow in the coming guarters to begin to pay down
the revolving credit facility thus improving its overall liquidity position.

2008 Impairment Analysis

In the fourth quarter of 2008, pursuant to its accounting policy, the Company conducted an impairment test
of goodwill. As a result of this analysts, the Company concluded that the carrying amount of goodwill assigned
to its ABG segment exceeded the implied fair value and recorded an impairment charge of approximately
$88.9 million, which is included in the caption “Impairment of goodwill and acquired intangible assets” in its

25




2008 consolidated statement of operations. The impairment charge was determined by comparing the carrying
value of goodwill assigned to the reporting unit (ABG Segment) as of June 30, 2008, with the implied fair value
of the goodwill. The Company considered both the income and market approaches in determining the implied
fair value of the goodwill, which requires estimates of future operating results and cash flows of the reporting
unit discounted using estimated discount rates ranging from 18 percent to 24 percent. The estimates of future
operating results and cash flows were principally derived from an updated long-term financial forecast, which is
developed as part of the Company’s strategic planning cycle conducted annually during the Company’s fourth
quarter. The decline in the implied fair value of the goodwill and resulting impairment charge was primarily
driven by the softening overall market for IP and delays experienced in realizing expected synergies resulting in
our updated long-term financial forecasts showing lower estimated near-term and longer-term profitability
compared to estimates developed at the time of the completion of the acquisition. This updated long-term
financial forecast represents the best estimate that the Company’s management has at this time and the Company
believes that its underlying assumptions are reasonable. However, actual performance in the near-term and
longer-term could be materially different from these forecasts, which could impact future estimates of fair value
of the Company’s reporting units and may result in further impairment of goodwill.

The outcome of the Company’s goodwill impairment analysis indicated that the carrying amount of certain
acquisition related intangible assets or asset groups may not be recoverable. The Company assessed the
recoverability of the acquisition related intangible assets or asset groups, as appropriate, by determining whether
the unamortized balances could be recovered through undiscounted future net cash flows. The Company
determined that certain of the acquisition related developed product technology associated with its ABG and
PBG segments were impaired primarily due to the revised lower revenue forecasts associated with the products
incorporating such developed product technology. The Company measured the amount of impairment by
calculating the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeded their estimated fair values, which were
based on projected discounted future net cash flows. As a result of this impairment analysis, the Company
recorded an impairment charge of $14.2 million, which is included in the caption “Impairment of goodwill and
acquired intangible assets” in its 2008 consolidated statement of operations, $12.5 million of the intangible asset
impairment related to the ABG and $1.7 million related to the PBG.

Cur Operating Segments

Prior to fiscal year 2008, we operated in one reportable business group. In the first quarter of fiscal 2008,
following the acquisition of Chipidea, we organized into two business groups, the Processor Business Group
(PBG) and the Analog Business Group (ABG). These segments were determined based upon our internal
organization and management structure and are the primary way in which the CODM is provided with financial
information.

The major segments we serve are as follows:
(i) Processor Business Group:

The PBG provides industry-standard processor architectures and cores for digital consumer and business
applications. This group designs and licenses high performance 32- and 64-bit architectures and cores, which
offer smaller dimensions and greater energy efficiency in embedded processors. Markets served by the PBG
segment include digital set-top boxes, digital televisions, DVD recordable devices, broadband access devices,
digital cameras, laser printers, portable media players, microcontrollers and network routers.

(ii) Analog Business Group:

The ABG includes the Chipidea operation and provides analog and mixed-signal IP that produces cost-
efficient System-on-Chip (SoC) applications and turnkey solutions. The ABG IP portfolio covers all fundamental
functions in the analog and mixed-signal electronic space, including data conversion, clock management, power
management, radio connectivity, physical connectivity, and voice audio and video processing. Market segments
served by the ABG segment are wireless communications, power line communications, data communications,
video, audio and voice signal processing, xDSL modems, set-top boxes, multimedia and digital consumer
electronics.
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For further descriptions of our operating segments, see Note 17 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in this annual repori. Our reportable segments are the same as our operating segments.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles,
which require us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. We regularly evaluate our accounting estimates and assumptions. We base our estimates and assumptions
on historical experience and on various other factors that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results inevitably will differ from the estimates, and such
differences may require material adjustments to our financial statements.

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect the significant judgments and estimates we use
in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition.
Rovyalty Revenue

We classify all revenue that involves the sale of a licensee’s products as royalty revenue. Royalty revenue is
recognized in the quarter in which a report is received from a licensee detailing the shipments of products
incorporating our IP components, which is generally in the quarter following the sale of the licensee’s product to
its customer. Royalties are calculated either as a percentage of the revenue received by the seller on sales of such
products or on a per unit basis. We pericdically engage a third party to perform royalty audits of our licensees,
and if these audits indicate any over-or under-reported royalties, we account for the results when they are
identified.

License and Contract Revenue
Processor Business Group

We derive revenue from license fees for the transfer of proven and reusable 1P components or from
engineering services. We enter into licensing agreements that provide licensees the right to incorporate our IP
components in their products with terms and conditions that have historically varied by licensee. Revenue earned
under contracts with our licensees is classified as either contract revenue or royalties. We recognize revenue in
accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 104, Revenue Recognition (SAB 104), and for multiple
deliverable arrangements we follow the guidance in Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) 00-21, Revenue
Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables (EITF 00-21), to determine whether there is more than one unit of
accounting. To the extent that the deliverables are separable into multiple units of accounting, we then allocate
the total fee on such arrangements to the individual units of accounting using the residual method. We then
recognize revenue for each unit of accounting depending on the nature of the deliverable(s) comprising the unit
of accounting (following SAB 104).

We derive revenue from license fees for currently available technology or from engineering services for
technology under development. Each of these types of contracts includes a nonexclusive license for the
underlying IP. Fees for contracts for currently available technology include: license fees relating to our IP,
including processor designs; maintenance and support, typically for one year; and royalties payable fotlowing the
sale by our licensees of products incorporating the licensed technology. Generally, our customers pay us a single
upfront fee that covers the license and first year maintenance and support. Qur deliverables in these arrangements
include (a) processor designs and related IP and (b) maintenance and support. The license for our [P, which
includes processor designs, has standalone value and can be used by the licensee without maintenance and
support. Further, objective and reliable evidence of fair value exists for maintenance and support based on
specified renewal rates. Accordingly, (a) license fees and (b) maintenance and support fees are each treated as
separate units of accounting. Total upfront fees are allocated to the license of processor designs and related IP
and maintenance and support using the residual method. Designs and related IP are initially delivered followed
by maintenance and support. Objective and reliable evidence of the fair value exists for maintenance and support.
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However, no such evidence of fair value exists for processor designs and related IP. Consistent with the residual
method, the amount of consideration allocated to processor designs and related IP equals the total arrangement
consideration less the fair value of maintenance and support, which is based on specified renewal rates,
Following the guidance in SAB No. 104, fees for or allocated to licenses to currently available technology are
recorded as revenue upon the execution of the license agreement when there is persuasive evidence of an
arrangement, fees are fixed or determinable, delivery has occurred and collectability is reasonably assured. We
assess the credit worthiness of each customer when a transaction under the agreement occurs. If collectability is
not considered reasonably assured, revenue is recognized when the fee is collected. Other than maintenance and
support, there is no continuing obligation under these arrangements after delivery of the IP.

Contracts relating to technology under development also can involve delivery of a license to [P, including
processor designs. However, in these arrangements we undenake best-efforts engineering services intended to
further the development of certain technology that has yet to be developed into a final processor design. Rather
than paying an upfront fee to license completed technology, customers in these arrangements pay us milestone
fees as we perform the engineering services. If the development work results in completed technology in the
form of a processor design and related IP, the customer is granted a license to such completed technology at no
additional fee. These contracts typically include the purchase of first year maintenance and support commencing
upon the completion of a processor design and related IP for an additional fee, which fee is equal to the renewal
rate specified in the arrangement. The licensee is also obligated to pay us royalties following the sale by our
licensee of products incorporating the licensed technology. We continue to own the IP that we develop and we
retain the fees for engineering services regardless of whether the work performed results in a completed
processor design. We develop IP with intent to license it to multiple customers. Typically our cost of
development of such IP significantly exceeds the license revenue from a particular customer arrangement. Costs
incurred with respect to internally developed technology and engineering services are included in research and
development expenses, as they are not directly related to any particular licensee, license agreement, or license
fees. Fees for engineering services in contracts for technology under development, which contracts are performed
on a best efforts basis, are recognized as revenue as services are performed subseguent to the execution of the
arrangement; however, we limit the amount of revenue recognized to the aggregate amount received or currently
due pursuant to the milestone terms. As engineering activities are best-efforts and at-risk and because the
customer must pay an additional fee for the first year of maintenance and support if the activities are successful,
the maintenance and support is a contingent deliverable that is not accounted for upfront under contracts relating
to technology under development.

Analog Business Group

License agreements provide for the performance of engineering services involving design and development of
customized analog and mixed signal IP from basic building blocks to complete subsystems, including the
development of new IP or configuring existing IP to customer’s specifications. Fees are determined based on a
number of factors including direct cost and the value of the underlying technology. We expect to earn gross margins
for each agreement. We recognize revenue from these arrangements under Statement of Position (SOF) No. 81-1,
Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type Contracts (SOP 81-1), for
licensing of new IP development or configuration of existing IP to a customer’s specification. Revenue is
recognized on a percentage of completion basis from the signing of the license and design agreement through
silicon validation for new IP development and through the completion of all outstanding obligations for
configuration of existing IP. The amount of revenue recognized is based on the total license fees under the license
agreement and the percentage of completion is measured by the actual costs incurred to date on the project
compared to the total estimated project cost. Revenue is recognized only when collectability is probabie. The
estimates of project costs are based on the IP specifications and prior experience of the same or similar IP
development and are reviewed and updated regularty by management. Under the percentage of completion method,
provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are recognized in the period in which the likelihood of
such losses is determined. Licensing of existing IP that does not require any configuration is recognized upon
delivery of the IP and when all other revenue recognition criteria under SAB 104 have been met. Direct costs
incurred in the design and development of the IP under these arrangements is included in cost of contract revenue.
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Maintenance and Support

Certain arrangements in the PBG and ABG also include maintenance and support obligation. Under such
arrangements, we provide unspecified upgrades, bug fixes and technical support. No other upgrades, products or
other post-contract support are provided. These arrangements are generally renewable annually by the customer.
Maintenance and support revenue is recognized at its fair value ratably over the period during which the
obligation exists, typically 12 months. The fair value of any maintenance and support obligation is established
based on the specified renewal rate for such maintenance and support. Maintenance and support revenue is
included in license and contract revenue in the statement of operations and was $4.6 million, $4.2 million and
$3.9 million in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Income Taxes. Significant judgment is required in determining our worldwide income tax provision. In the
ordinary course, there are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax outcome is uncertain. Some
of these uncertainties arise as a consequence of revenue sharing and cost reimbursement arrangements among related
entities and segregation of foreign and domestic income and expense to avoid double taxation. Although we believe
that our estimates are reasonable, no assurance can be given that the final tax outcome of these matters will not be
different from that which is reflected in our historical income tax provisions and accruals. Such differences could
have a material effect on our income tax provision and net income in the pertod in which such determination is made.

We record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not
to be realized. In order for us to realize our deferred tax assets, we must be able to generate sufficient taxable
income in those jurisdictions where the deferred tax assets are located. We have provided a full valuation
allowance against our U.S. net deferred tax assets due to our history of net losses, difficulty in forecasting future
results and belief that we cannot rely on projections of future taxable income to realize deferred tax assets.
Significant management judgment is required in determining our deferred tax assets and liabilities and valuation
allowances for purposes of assessing our ability to realize any future benefit from our net deferred tax assets. We
intend to maintain this valuation allowance until sufficient positive evidence exists to support the reversal of the
valuation allowance, Future income tax expense will be reduced to the extent that we have sufﬁmem positive
evidence to support a reversal of, or decrease in, our valuation allowance.

We calculate our current and deferred tax provision based on estimates and assumptions that could differ from
the actual results reflected in income tax returns filed during the subsequent year. Adjustments based on filed
returns are generally recorded in the period when the tax returns are filed and the tax implications are known,

The amount of income taxes we pay is subject to ongoing audits by federal, state and foreign tax authorities,
which often result in proposed assessments. For example, the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”™) has completed its
examination of our fiscal year 2002 federal income tax return and has issued a notice of proposed adjustment. Our tax
provision for fiscal 2006 was affected by a settlement reached with the IRS in May 2006 that resulted in a reversal of
$4.2 million in fiscal 2006. However, our future results may include favorable or unfavorable adjustments to our
estimated tax liabilities in the period the assessments are made or resolved or when statutes of limitation on potential
assessments expire. As a result, our effective tax rate may fluctuate significantly on a quarterly basis.

We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on July 1, 2007. The cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48 on July 1, 2007
is recognized as a change in accounting principte, recorded as an adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated
deficit on the adoption date. As a result of the implementation of FIN 48, we recognized a decrease of approximately
$0.3 million in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits related 1o tax positions taken in prior periods, which resulted
in a decrease of $0.3 million in accumulated deficit. The total amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits was $3.7
million as of July 1, 2007 (the date of adoption of FIN 48) and $13.8 million as of June 30, 2008. The increase in the
gross unrecognized tax benefits from July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2008 was primarily related to amounts assumed in the
Chipidea acquisition, Also, the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the
effective tax rate was $0.8 million as of July 1, 2007 and $3.0 million as of June 30, 2008. A reconciliation of the
beginning and ending balances of the total amounts of unrecognized tax are as follows {in thousands):

Balance at July 1, 2007 . . .. ... e e $ 3,749
Gross increases related to tax positions forcurrent year .......... .. .. oL, 9,043
Gross increases related to tax positions forprioryear ............ ... ... ..l 1,179
Gross decreases related to tax positions forprioryear ........... ... i i (123)
Balance at June 30, 2008 .. ... ... L $13,848
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Acquisitions. The company accounts for acquisitions using the purchase method as required by Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141, “Business Combinations.” Under SFAS No. 141, the
acquiring company allocates the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair values at the date of acquisition, including intangible assets that can be identified and named. The
purchase price in excess of the fair value of the net assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Among other
sources of relevant information, the company uses independent appraisals and actuarial or other valuations to
assist in determining the estimated fair values of the assets and liabilities. In performing our purchase price
allocation in order to determine the valuation of the purchased intangible assets, we consider, among other
factors, our intentton for future use of acquired assets, analyses of historical financial performance and estimates
of the future performance acquired products. The fair value of intangible assets is determined by using an income
and market approach which is based on estimates and assumptions determined by management. These
approaches require estimates of future operating results and cash flows of the acquired entity discounted using
estimated discount rates. The rates utilized to discount net cash flows to their present values are based on our
weighted average cost of capital and are determined after consideration of our rate of return on debt capital and
equity and the weighted average return on invested capital.

Goodwill.  Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets acquired. In accordance with the provisions of FASB Statement No. 142, Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets (SFAS 142), goodwill amounts are not amortized, but rather are tested for
impairment at least annually or more frequently if there are indicators of impairment present. The Company
performs its annual goodwill impairment analysis in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. The Company
evaluates whether goodwill has been impaired at the reporting unit level by first determining whether the
estimated fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value and, if so, by determining whether the
implied fair value of goodwill within the reporting unit is less than the carrying value. Fair values are determined
by discounted future cash flow analyses. As a result of the Company’s impairment analysis in the fourth quarter
of 2008, the Company recorded an impairment charge related to the goodwill initially recognized as a result of
the acquisition of Chipidea (see Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets including Acquisition Related Intangible Assets. For long-lived assets
other than goodwill, the Company evaluates whether impairment losses have occurred when evenis and
circumstances indicate that these assets might be impaired and the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be
generated by those assets are less than the carrying amounts of those assets. If less, the impairment losses are
based on the excess of the carrying amounts of these assets over their respective fair values. Their fair values
would then become the new cost basis. Fair value is determined by discounted future cash flows, appraisals or
other methods. As a result of the Company’s impairment analysis in the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company
recorded an impairment charge related to certain acquisition-related intangible assets associated with its ABG
and PBG (see Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

Stock-Based Compensation. Prior to July 1, 2005, we accounted for our stock-based employee
compensation arrangements under the intrinsic value method prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (APB No. 25), as allowed by SFAS No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-based Compensation (SFAS No. 123), as amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation—Transition and Disclosure (SFAS No. 148).

Under the provisions of APB No. 25, compensation expense is recognized for options to purchase our
common stock that were granted with an exercise price lower than fair market value of our common stock on the
measurerment date. The compensation expense is equal to the excess of fair market value of our common stock
over the exercise price. We have elected to amortize compensation expense over the vesting period based on an
accelerated attribution method. Under this attribution method, we separate a grant with graded vesting terms into
multiple tranches. Each tranche includes the number of shares that vest during a twelve month period.
Compensation cost for each tranche is recognized as if each tranche were a separate award.

Under the provisions of APB No. 25, no expense was recognized for options to purchase our common stock
that were granted with an exercise price equal to fair market value at the date of grant. No expense was
recognized in connection with purchases under our employee stock purchase plan in fiscal year 2005.
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Effective July 1, 2005, we adopted SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment (SFAS No. 123R} using the
medified prospective method which requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee
stock options, 10 be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair value. The fair value is estimated at the
date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with weighted average assumptions for the activity under
our stock plans. Option pricing model assumptions such as expected term, expected volatility, and risk-free interest
rate, impact the fair value estimate. Further, the forfeiture rate impacts the amount of aggregate compensation. These
assumptions are subjective and generally require significant analysis and judgment to develop. When estimating fair
value, some of the assumptions will be based on or determined from external data and other assumptions may be
derived from our historical experience with share-based payment arrangements. The appropriate weight to place on
historical experience is a matter of judgment, based on relevant facts and circumstances.

As a result of the adjustment to our term and vesting schedule in July 2005 for stock options awarded under our
1998 and 2002 Plans, we do not believe that we are able to rely on our historical exercise and post-vested termination
activity to provide relevant data for estimating our expected term for use in determining the fair value of these
options. Therefore, as allowed by Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107, Share-Based Payment, we have opted 1o use
the simplified method for estimating our expected term equal to the midpoint between the vesting petiod and the
contractual term.

We currenily estimate volatility by considering the implied volatility derived from publicly traded options to
purchase cur common stock and our historical stock volatility,

The risk-free interest rate is the implied yield currently available on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with a
remaining term equal to the expected term used as the input to the Black-Scholes model.

We estimate forfeitures using a weighted average historical forfeiture rate. Our estimates of forfeitures will
be adjusted over the requisite service period based on the extent to which actual forfeitures differ, or are expected
to differ, from their estimate.

Results of Operations—Years Ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006

Our results of operations are discussed below. Following the discussion of the results of operations, we
discuss our operating performance by segments.

Revenue. Total revenue primarily consists of royalties, license and contract revenue, Royalties are based
upon sales by licensees of products incorporating our technology. License and contract revenue consists of
technology license fees generated from new and existing license agreements for developed technology and
engineering service fees generated from contracts for technology under development. Technology license fees
vary based on, among other things, whether a particular technology is licensed for a single application or for
multiple or unlimited applications, and whether the license granted covers a particular design or a broader
architecture. Our revenues in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 were as follows (in millions):

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Change in Change in
Percent Percent
2008 2007  2007-2008 2006  2006-2007
Revenue
Royalties ......... ... ... $ 464 3444 4%  $36.7 21%
Percentage of Total Revenue ........................ 44% 53% 57%
License and Contract Revenue . . ..................... $ 584  $389 50% 27.4 42%
Percentage of Total Revenue . ....................... 36%  47% _43%
Total Revenue . ... ... ... ... ... 0 . .. $1048 3833 26%  $64.1 30%

Fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007.  The 4% increase in royalties primarily resulted from the addition of
royalties from the ABG of $0.8 million following the acquisition of Chipidea in August 2007 and an increase in
PBG royalty volumes offset in part by a decline in the average royalty rate on chips scld by our licensees. The
50% increase in contract revenue is due to the addition of contract revenues from the ABG following the
Chipidea acquisition in August 2007. In fiscal 2008, contract revenues from the ABG were $28.4 million. The

31

-y
=
=
=1
J—i.
T
=




ABG entered into 98 new contracts in fiscal 2008, Revenue from the ABG contracts is generally recognized on a
percentage of completion basis over the period of contract performance. The ABG revenue increase was offset in
part by a decrease in license revenue generated by the PBG of $8.9 million. There were 25 new agreements
executed by the PBG in fiscal 2008 compared to 31 in fiscal 2007. License fees generated by the previous
generation MIPS 24k core product family decreased by $9.8 million and fees generated by the MIPS architecture
family decreased $3.2 million compared to the corresponding period in fiscal 2007, These decreases were
partially offset by an increase in fees generated by the newer generation MIPS 34K core product families by $2.6
million. In our PBG, we entered into a number of unlimited use license agreements with our customers. Under
these agreements, customers generally pay a larger fixed up-front fee to use one or more of our cores in unlimited
SoC designs during the term of the agreement, which can be up to 7 years. We recognize all license revenues
under these unlimited use license agreements upon execution of the agreement, provided all revenue recognition
criteria had been met. Contract revenue from unlimited use license agreements was $16.3 million in fiscal 2008
as compared with $15.5 million in fiscal 2007.

Fiscal 2007 compared 1o fiscal 2006. The 21% increase in royalties primarity resulted from a $10.9
million increase in royalties due to an increase in unit shipments and an increase in the overall number of
licensees reporting, offset in part by a $3.2 million decrease in royalties from our pre-IPO legacy agreements due
to declining unit shipments. The 42% increase in contract revenue was primarily due to an increase in fees
generated from license agreements for developed technology from the MIPS architecture product family which
resulted from both new licenses of this technology and existing licensees and an increase in revenue from the
MIPS32 24K core product family, offset in part by a decrease in revenue from the MIPS32 34K product family.
There were 31 new license agreements completed for developed technology in fiscal 2007 compared to 25 new
license agreement completed in fiscal 2006. Contract revenue from unlimited use license agreements was $15.5
million in fiscal 2007 as compared with $6.7 million in fiscal 2006.

International revenue accounted for approximately 53% of our total revenue in fiscal 2008, 53% of our total
revenue in fiscal 2007 and 51% of our total revenue in fiscal 2006. The majority of this revenue has been
denominated in U.S. dollars. We expect that revenue derived from international licensees will continue to
represent a significant portion of our total revenue.

Cost and Expenses.  Our cost and expenses in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 were as follows (in millions):
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

Change in Change in
Percent Percent
2008 2007 2007-2008 2006 2006-2007

Cost and Expenses

Cosis of Contract Revenue . ...................... $322 $1.7 I1834% §$ 12 33%
Research and Development . ...................... $ 36.5 $33.1 10%  $27.1 2%
Salesand Marketing . ... ............... ... $ 244 §$223 10%  $18.5 21%
General and Administrative . ...................... $ 289 $210 38%  §12.2 1%
Acquired in-process research and development ....... $ 64 5§ — — $ 0.6 —
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets .. ....... $103.1 $ — — 5 — —
RESIUCTUTING . oo\ vve e e e e e et iin e $ 16 § — — $ — —

Cost of Contract Revenue. Cost of contract revenue includes salaries, depreciation, and the amortization of
intangible assets used to deliver the associated developed technologies. The majority of these costs are
technology development costs associated with the ABG license and contract revenues.

Fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. The increase in cost of contract revenue in fiscal 2008 over fiscal
2007 is due to the additional cost of revenue associated with ABG products. The ABG’s revenue is generated by
projects which include the design and development of technology that is related to the specific requirements of
particular licensees and license agreements. As such, the cost of revenue for the ABG is substantially higher than
is the case for the PBG whose products generally do not contain custom configurations. In addition, the 2008
increase included $8.2 million of amortization of Chipidea acquired intangible assets.

Fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006. The increase in cost of contract revenue in fiscal 2007 over fiscal
2006 is primarily due to additional costs associated with acquired third party software used in our products.
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Research and Development. Research and development expenses include salaries and contractor and
consultant fees, as well as costs related to workstations, software, and computer aided design tools utilized in the
development of new technologies. The costs we incur with respect to internally developed technology and
engineering services are included in research and development expenses as they are incurred and are not directly
related to any particular licensee, license agreement or license fee.

Fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. The increase in research and development expenses in fiscal 2008
over fiscal 2007 was primarily due to an increase in overall operating expense of $2.6 million related to the
research and development employees in the ABG. In addition, research and development costs increased by $3.8
million due to the accrual of deferred purchase price consideration amounts payable to the founders of Chipidea
in connection with the Chipidea purchase agreement. This increase was somewhat offset by decreases of $1.9M
in bonus earned under our PBG bonus plans as we did not meet plan targets in the PBG in fiscal 2008 and by
decreases of $0.7 million in salary and benefit expenses in PBG due to lower headcount and the January 2008
restructuring.

Fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006. Research and development expenses increased in fiscal 2007 due to
an increase of $3.4 million in salary and benefits expense due to an increase in average headcount of 18
employees and an increase in bonus expense of $1.5 million as targets under our fiscai 2007 bonus plans were
achieved. In addition, depreciation and amortization expense increased by $1.3 million due to an increase in our
computer-atded tool asset base to support our increasing headcount and to fees paid to a third party of $0.6
million for milestones completed under a development agreement. These increases were partially offset by a
decrease in FAS123R non-cash stock-based compensation expense of $1.2 million related to a non-recurring
charge for the options that were the subject of the Denmark lawsuit settlement reached in September 2005.

QOur research and development staff increased to 405 persons at June 30, 2008, compared to 116 persons at
June 30, 2007 and a staff of 102 at June 30, 2006 reflecting the acquisition of R&D personnel at Chipidea. The
ABG research and development personnel related expenses are recorded within the research and development
caption of the Consolidated Statements of Operations unless they are performing development services directly
relaied to customer programs, under which case their related expenses are included as costs of contract revenue.

Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expenses include sataries, commissions and costs associated
with third party independent software development tools, direct marketing and other marketing efforts. Our sales
and marketing efforts are directed at establishing and supporting our licensing relationships. We utilize one
integrated Sales Force to sell both ABG and PBG products.

Fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007

The increase in sales and marketing expense for fiscal 2008 over fiscal 2007 was primarily due to an
increase in operating expense of $3.1 million related to corporate sales and marketing expenses from Chipidea. In
addition, there was an increase in salary expense of $1.2 million related to additional headcount in fiscal 2008.
These increases were somewhat offset by a decrease in commission and bonus expense of $1.5 million reflecting
a decrease in commissionable revenue in PBG products and a decrease in bonus earned as we did not fully meet
plan targets in fiscal 2008. Additionally, there was a decrease of $0.8 million in consulting expense primarily due
to the termination of a contract with a sales agent in Taiwan and lower spending on third party marketing
projects.

Fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 20006.

Sales and marketing expense increased in fiscal 2007 primarily due to an increase of $2.1 million in
commission and bonus expense as a result of an increase in commissionable revenue and an increase in bonus
and profit sharing expenses as targets under our fiscal 2007 bonus plans were achieved. In addition, increases in
headcount ted to an increase in salary and benefits expense of $1.0 million. There was also an increase of
$539,000 in stock-based compensation expense due to modification expense of $0.2 million caused by the
extension of the exercise period of certain options as well as headcount increases. These increases were partially
offset by a decrease in marketing project related costs of $0.5 million due to milestones completed under ongoing
projects in the prior fiscal year.
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Our sales and marketing staff was 59 people at June 30, 2008 compared to 55 employees at June 30, 2007,
and 46 employees at June 30, 2006.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses comprise salaries, legal fees including
those associated with the establishment and protection of our patent, trademark and other intellectual property rights
which are integral to our business and expenses related to compliance with the reporting and other requirements of a
publicly traded company including directors and officers liability insurance and financial audit fees.

Fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007

The increase in general and administrative expenses of $7.9 million in fiscal 2008 over fiscal 2007 was
primarily due to an increase of operating expense of $4.6 million related to the general and administrative
function from Chipidea. There was also an increase in outside services expense of $1.3 million related to increase
in legal, audit, and integration expenses, which was partially offset by lower expenses in fiscal 2008 related to
the investigation of our historical stock option practices. General and administrative costs also increased by $2.0
million due to the accrual of deferred purchase price consideration amounts payable to the founders of Chipidea
in connection with the Chipidea purchase agreement. Travel expense increased in fiscal 2008 by $0.3 million
primarily due to the increase in travel associated with the Chipidea integration effort. These increases, in addition
to the miscellaneous increases of $1.8 million resulied from increases in headcount and consulting expenses,
were partially offset by a decrease in bonus expense of $1.4 million as we did not fully meet plan targets in fiscal
2008 and a $0.7 million charge in fiscal 2007 related to employee stock compensation for which there was no
similar expense in 2008.

Fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006. General and administrative expenses increased in fiscal 2007
primarily due to an increase in fees for legal, accounting, and audit services of $4.6 million due to the
investigation of our historical stock option practices. There was also an increase in bonus expense of $2.1 million
as targets under our fiscal 2007 bonus plans were achieved as well as a $0.7 million charge related to employee
stock compensation. In addition, headcount growth of 5 employees resulted in an increase in salary and benefits
expense of $0.9 million.

Our general and administrative staff increased to 48 employees at June 30, 2008, compared to 25 employees
at June 30, 2007, and to 20 employees at June 30, 2006, as we added more headcount due to acquisition of
Chipidea.

Acquired In-process Research and Development

Fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. In August 2007, we completed the acquisition of Chipidea. The fair
value of the in-process technology was determined by estimating the present value of the net cash flows we
believed would result from the acquired technology. Because technological feasibility of certain of the acquired
technology had not been established and no future alternative use for the in-process technology existed at the
time of the acquisition, we recorded a charge of $6.4 miilion in fiscal 2008 for the acquired in-process research
and development expense upon completion of the acquisition.

Fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006, In September 2005, we completed the acquisition of FS2, a design
services and development tools company based in Lake Oswego, Oregon, for cash consideration. F$2’s products
and services provide value to our customer base by improving performance analysis and de-bugging capability
and accelerating time to market of their products. We recorded a charge in fiscal 2006 of $0.6 million for
purchased in-process research and development expenses upon completion of the acquisition because
technological feasibility of the acquired technology had not been established and no future alternative uses
existed. The fair value of the projects was determined by estimating the present value of the net cash flows we
believed would result from the acquired technology.

Restructuring. In the third quarter of fiscal 2008, we announced plans to reduce operating costs in our
processor business group by terminating the employment of certain employees in our United States locattons and
by closing our research and development center in the United Kingdom. In total, 28 employees were terminated
during fiscal 2008, resulting in approximately $0.9 million in severance and benefits costs recorded as
restructuring expense. All of the impacted employees were terminated by March 31, 2008. In addition, asset
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disposal and transfer costs of approximately $0.3 million, and facilities costs of approximately $0.4 million were
recorded as restructuring expense in fiscal 2008 related to contract cancetlation costs, termination of office lease
and other closure costs from the United Kingdom research and development center. We did not have any
restructuring acuivities in fiscal 2007 and 2006.

Other Income, Net.  Other income, net in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 were as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended June 34,
2008 2007 2006
Y gl ) 1§V O $ 1,132 %6656 $4,413
Inlerest EXPEISE . . . ottt s e e e e (1,746) (4) )
Other ..o e (3,467) (182) (38)
OtherinCome, NBL . ... .ottt et e $(4,081) $6470 34,373

The decrease in interest income in fiscal 2008 compared with prior years was due to a lower average cash and
investment balance in fiscal 2008. The increase in Other Expense in fiscal 2008 was primarily due to a write down
in the value of equity held in a privately held Fabless semiconductor company of $2.3 million. The increase in
interest income in fiscal 2007 was primarily due to higher cash and investment balances and higher interest rates.

Income Taxes. In fiscal 2008, we recorded an income tax benefit of approximately $0.3 million. The
annual effective rate is lower than the applicable combined federal and state statutory rate primarily due to the
impairment of goodwill, foreign taxes, and other items not deductible for tax purposes. In fiscal 2007, we
recorded an income tax provision of $3.4 million at an annual effective rate of 28%. This is primarity the result
of foreign withholding tax on royalties and license fees, and foreign income tax in jurisdictions where there is
taxable income.

Segment Operating Metrics
Processor Business Group (PBG}

PBG net revenue of $75.6 million in 2008 decreased by $7.7 million or 9% compared to net revenue of
$83.3 million in 2007. PBG net revenue decreased primarily as a result of the $8.9 million decrease in license
and contract revenue. This decrease was partially offset by a $1.2 million increase in royalty revenues.

PBG net revenue of $83.3 million in 2007 increased by $19.3 million or 30% compared to net revenue of
$64.0 million in 2006. The 2007 increase in PBG revenue was due to an $11.5 million increase in license and
contract revenue and a $7.8 million increase in royalty revenue as compared to the prior year.

PBG gross margin of $73.7 million in 2008 decreased by $7.9 million or 9% compared to gross margin of
$81.6 million in 2007. The gross margin decrease was substantially driven by the $7.7 million decrease in PBG
revenue in 2008 as compared to 2007.

PBG gross margin of $81.6 million in 2007 increased by $18.8 million or 30% compared to gross margin of
$62.8 million in 2006. The gross margin increase was substantially driven by the $19.3 million increase in PBG
revenue in 2007 as compared to 2006.

Analog Business Group (ABG)

In 2008, ABG net revenue was $29.2 million with a gross margin of $6.6 million. As the ABG segment was
organized in connection with the Chipidea acquisition in 2008, there was no revenue or gross margin from ABG
prior to 2008,

Impact of Currency

Certain of our international licensees pay royalties based on revenues that are reported in a local currency
and translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rate in effect when such revenues are reported by the licensee. To
date, the majority of our revenue from international customers has been denominated in U.S. dollars. However, to
the extent that sales by our manufacturing licensees are denominated in foreign currencies, royalties we receive
on such sales could be subject to fluctuations in currency exchange rates.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

At June 30, 2008, we had cash, cash equivalents and marketable investments of $13.9 million, a reduction of
$131 million from June 30, 2007. This significant decrease represents the impact of the cash acquisition of
Chipidea in August, 2007. We completed this acquisition for an aggregate cash purchase price, including
expenses, of approximately $148 million. In connection with the acquisition we established a $35 million credit
facility to fund a portion of the acquisition costs and support our working capital needs. As of June 30, 2008 we
had an outstanding balance of $16 million under this facility which was due to expire in August 2008.

Two of our critical goals for fiscal year 2008 related to improving our liquidity position. We spent
considerable management time on our goals to refinance the company and to restructure our business with the
primary intent to generate positive cash flow throughout fiscal 2009.

On July 3, 2008 we entered into a new credit facility with Silicon Valley Bank (SVB). This new facility
includes a four year term loan of $15 million and a revolving credit line in the amount of $10 million due on
July 2, 2009. Loans under this facility are secured by virtually all of our assets with the exception of IP, and the
facility contains affirmative and negative covenants that impose restrictions on the operation of our business.
Proceeds from this new facility were used to pay off the prior loan balance.

Our second major liquidity improvement goal was to financially restructure the company. On August 13®
we announced a broad restructuring plan designed to reduce $5 million in costs of sales and operating expenses
per quarter. With the reduction in interest and principle payments associated with the new loan and the operating
cost reductions being implemented in the first and second fiscal quarters in 2009 we expect to improve our
liquidity position throughout the fiscal year.

For complete statements of cash flows for fiscal 2007 and 2008, see our consolidated financial statements in
[tem 8.

At June 30, 2007, we had cash, cash equivalents and marketable investments of $144.9 million, an increase
of $23.7 million from June 30, 2006, and working capital of $133.3 million. In fiscal 2007, we primarily
generated cash from operations and financing activities and we used cash primarily for investing activities.

For fiscal 2008, our operating activities provided net cash of 2.2 million. The 2008 net loss was substantiaily
offset by non-cash activities specifically related to Chipidea, including (i) $101.4 million impairment of Chipidea
goodwill and acquired intangible assets, (i) $8.2 million of amortization of Chipidea acquired intangible assets
and (jii) $6.4 million of acquired in-process research and development. Other non-cash charges of $3.8 million of
depreciation, $1.7 million impairment of PBG acquired intangible assets, $1.2 million of PBG intangible assct
amortization, $7.9 million of stock compensation expense and the $2.3 million unrealized loss of a private
company investment accounted for the majority of the remaining adjustments to operating cash flows in 2008,

For fiscal 2007, our operating activities provided net cash of $27.5 million primarily reflecting our net
income adjusted for non-cash charges including stock-based compensation under SFAS No. 123R, depreciation
expense and amortization of intangibles. In addition, cash was generated by an increase in accrued compensation
due to earned bonuses and commissions, and other accrued current liabilities due to costs from our stock option
investigation and financial restatement and payments due from purchases of computer-aided time-based design
licenses. In addition, cash increased from tong-term liabilities due to extended payment terms for computer-aided
time-based licenses. The net cash provided by these sources was partially offset by an increase in accounts
receivable due to new license agreements signed near the end of the year, and an increase in other assets
primarily due to purchases of computer-aided time-based licenses, and an increase in the cash surrender value on
life insurance policies of $0.3 million.

For fiscal 2006, our operating activities provided net cash of $13.1 million primarily reflecting our net
income and adjustments for in-process research and development charges related to the FS2 acquisition and by
non-cash charges including stock-based compensation under SFAS No. 123R, depreciation expense and
amortization of intangibles. In addition, cash was generated by an increase in income taxes payable due to tax
payment provisions for the period. The net cash provided by these sources was partially offset by an increase in
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accounts receivable due to new license agreements signed near the end of the year, an increase in other assets
primarily due to prepaid royalties net of amortization of $0.5 million and an increase in the cash surrender value
on life insurance policies of $0.6 million, and a decrease in accrued compensation which included $1.5 miilion in
executive bonus and performance bonus payments from our prior fiscal year.

Net cash used in investing activities was $125.6 million for fiscal 2008. The primary driver of cash outflow
from investing activities was the usage of $148.1 million for the Chipidea acquisition including $27.2 milltion in
cash that was used to set up the required acquisition escrow accounts (see Note 4 to the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for more details). We also used $3.4 million of cash for capital expenditures. These uses of
cash were partially offset by $25.9 million of cash provided from the maturity of marketable investments.

Net cash used in investing activities was $10.4 million for fiscal 2007 primarily due to net purchases of
marketable investments and capital expeaditure. Net cash used in investing activities was $8.3 million for fiscal
2006 primarily due to investments made in two privately-held companies, as well as our acquisition of First
Silicon Solutions, Inc. Net cash used in investing activities was $5.5 million for fiscal 2005 primarily due to net
purchases of marketable investments and capital expenditures.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $19.6 million in fiscal 2008. Net cash provided by short-term
debt financing of $15.6 million was the primary driver of cash provided by financing activities. In addition, we
also received $3.7 million from the issvance of common stock from stock option exercises and purchases under
our employee stock purchase plans and $0.3 million from net capital lease activities.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $0.4 million in fiscal 2007 and $5.1 million in fiscal 2006. Net
cash provided by financing activities for 2007 and 2006 consisted primarily of net proceeds to us from the
i1ssuance of common stock upon the exercise of stock options and purchases under our employee stock purchase
plans.

Our future liquidity and capital requirements could vary significantly from quarter to quarter, depending on
numerous factors, including, among others:

* from time to time we have certain significant payments to suppliers including Computer Aided Design
(CAD) system vendors required under long term purchase agreements. These payments vary and can be
up t6 $3 million a quarter,

« from time to time we have certain significant payments to investors relating to prior acquisitions, These
payments can range up 1o $2.5 million a quarter.

* our ability to continue to generate cash flow from operations.

« financing activities under borrowing arrangements. Our borrowing availability with SVB varies according
to MIPS’ accounts receivable and recurring royalty revenues and other terms and conditions described in
the loan and security agreement,

* the costs associated with capital expenditures and our land and building in Portugal.

» level and timing of restructuring activities. In August 2008, we announced a corporate restructuring to
better integrate the ABG and reduce overall cost structure. Also, see Note 7 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional details on our restructuring activities.

We believe that we have sufficient cash and borrowing capabilities to meet our projected operating and
capital requirements for the foreseeable future and at least the next twelve months. However, we may in the
future be required to raise additional funds through public or private financing, sirategic relationships or other
arrangements. Additional equity financing may be dilutive to holders of our common stock, and debt financing, if
available, may involve restrictive covenants. Our failure to raise capital when needed could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
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Contractual Obligations
Our contractual obligations as of June 30, 2008, were as follows:

Payments due by period
(in thousands)

Less than 1-3 3-5  More than

Total 1 year years years 5 years
Contractual Obligations
Operating lease obligations (1) .. ................ ... ... ... $11,828 $ 3,492 $ 3,511 $2,518 $2,307
Capital lease obligations (2) ........ . ... . i i, 9,531 8,623 817 91 —
Purchase obligations (3} .. ... ... . il 8,681 5628 3,053 — —
DEbl(4) ..o e e 18,894 18,816 78 — —
Other short-term liabilities reflected on our Balance Sheet (5) ... 29,104 29,104 — — —
Other long-term liabilities and obligations (6) ................ 10,919 — 10,919 — —
Total oo e $88,957 $65,663 $18,378 $2,609 $2,307

(1) We lease office facilities and equipment under non-cancelable operating leases that expire through 2016. In
connection with the lease for our Mountain View headquarters, we have entered into a letter of credit as a
security deposit with a financial institution for $0.3 million, which is guaranteed by a time-based certificate
of deposit. In addition, we have entered into letters of credit of approximately $2.7 million with various
financial institutions in Portugal, Belgium, Norway, and France in association with certain building leases
and government grants.

(2) Commitments due under our capital leases for equipment and property, of which we expect $7.5 million will
be paid off from proceeds we receive in connection with a financing transaction for our land and building in
Lisbon, Portugal.

(3) Outstanding purchase orders for ongoing operations. Payments of these obligations are subject to the
provision of services or products. Purchase obligations have increased by approximately $1.2 million since
June 30, 2007 primarily due to purchases of computer aided design licenses and additional purchase orders
from the ABG.

(4) Debt includes $16.0 million due under a revolving credit agreement, $2.5 million due under various credit
lines and 0.2 million primarily due to a loan with a government agency in Portugal, and related future
interest payments. The $16.0 miilion debt was paid in full in July 2008 and replaced by a new facility with a
term loan and revolving credit facility (see Note 18 in the Consolidated Financial Statements for more
details).

(5) Other short-term liabilities includes: $15.0 million related to an escrow account related to the Chipidea
acquisition completed in August 2007, which was scheduled to settle twelve months from the acquisition
date, $7.4 million related to an escrow account for the Chipidea deferred purchase price consideration which
settled in August 2008, of which the other half of the payment will be due 24 months from the acquisition
date as noted in (6) below, $2.5 million related to a payment associated with the sale of a building, $2.3
million due to shareholders of a company acquired by Chipidea prior to August 2007, and $1.9 million in
payables for computer aided design licenses not included in outstanding purchase orders.

(6) Other long-term liabilities and obligations include: $2.5 million due to employees under a deferred
compensation plan, under which distributions are elected by the employees, and $7.4 million liabilities
related to an escrow account for the consideration due upon continued services provided by former
shareholders of Chipidea, half of which was settled in August 2008 as noted in (5) above, and $1.0 million
in payables for computer aided design licenses not included in outstanding purchase orders.

The table above excludes liabilities under FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes” as we are unable to reasonably estimate the uvltimate amount or timing of settlement.
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Off-Balance-Sheet Arrangements

As of June 30, 2008, we did not have any off-balance-sheet arrangements, as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of
SEC Regulation S-K.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2008, the FASB finalized Staff Position (“FSP”) No. 142-3, Determination of the Useful Life of
Intangible Assets. The position amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension
assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under FASB Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard (“SFAS”™) No. 142, Goodwill and Other Imtangible Assets. The position applies to
intangible assets that are acquired individually or with a group of other assets and both intangible assets acquied
in business combinations and asset acquisitions. FSP 142-3 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. We are currently evaluating the impact of the
pending adoption of FSP 142-3 on our consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (SFAS 157), which defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure, about fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods
within those fiscal years. We are currently assessing the potential effect, if any, of implementing this standard.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), Business Combinations (SFAS 14]R). SFAS 141R
retains the fundamental requirements in SFAS 141 that the acquisition method of accounting (which SFAS 141
called the purchase method ) be used for all business combinations and for an acquirer to be identified for each
business combination, SFAS 141R also establishes principles and requirements for how the acquirer:
{a) recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed,
and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree; (b) recognizes and measures the goodwill acquired in the
business combination or a gain from a bargain purchase; and (c¢) determines what information to disclose to
enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination.
SFAS 141R applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. We are currently
assessing the potential effect, if any, of implementing this standard.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to interest rate risk on investments of our excess cash. The primary objective of our
investment activities is to preserve capital. To achieve this objective and minimize the exposure due to adverse
shifts in interest rates, we invest in high quality short-term maturity commercial paper, municipal bonds, and
money market funds operated by reputable financial institutions in the United States. Due to the nature of our
investments, we believe that we do not have a material interest rate risk exposure.

We are exposed to fluctuations in currency exchange rates because a substantial portion of our revenue has
been, and is expected to continue to be, derived from customers outside the United States. To date, the majority
of our revenue from international customers has been denominated in U.S. dollars. Because we cannot predict the
amount of non-U.S. dollar denominated revenue earned by us or our licensees, we have not historically attempted
to mitigate the effect that currency fluctuations may have on our revenue, and we do not presently intend to do so
in the future.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The following table presents selected quarterly information for fiscal 2007 and 2008 (in thousands except
per share data):

September 30, December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31, March 31, June 30,

2006 2006 2007 2007 2007 2007 2008 2008
Revenue:
Royalties ........... $11,207 $11,188  $10,733 $11,294 $10,519 $12515 $12,556 $ 10,796
Contract revenue .. ... 8,343 9,817 8342 12,386 11,633 13,935 14,767 18,071
Total revenue . .., 19,550 21,005 19,075 23,680 22,152 26,450 27,323 28,867
Costs and expenses:
Cost of contract
revenue .......... 391 378 492 402 3,324 9,379 9,407 10,051
Research and
development ...... 7,774 8,251 8,159 8,884 9,013 9,493 9,315 8,650
Sales and marketing . .. 4,817 5,154 5345 6,939 5,586 6,153 6,056 6,599
General and
administrative . .... 4,311 4,577 4978 7,093 7,009 7,869 6,559 7,422
Acquired in-process
research and
development ...... — — — — 5,440 910 — —
Impairment of goodwill
and acquired
intangible assets . . . . — - — — — — — 103,107
Restructuring ........ — — — — — — 1,279 281
Total costs and
expenses . ..... 17,293 18,360 18974 23,318 30,372 33,804 32,616 136,116
Operating income (loss) ... 2,257 2,645 101 362 (8,220) (7,354) (5.293) (107,249)
Other income (expense),
DEL i ie e 1,430 1,544 1,844 1,653 495 (1,220) (762) (2,594)
Income (loss) before income
LAXES . vt 3,687 4,189 1,945 2,015 (7.725) (8,574) (6,055) (109,843)
Provision {benefit) for
income faxes .......... 1,363 1,601 708 (321) (694) 3,511 (1,798) (1,381)
Net income (loss) ......... $ 2,324 $ 2588 % 1,237 $ 2336 3$(7.031) $(12,085) %(4,257) $(108,462)
Net income (loss} per basic
share ................. $ 005 $ 006 $ 00335 005 $ (0.16) $ (028 % (0.10)F (245
Net income (loss) per
diluted share . .......... $ 005 $ 006 S 003 % 005 §$ (016 $ (028 § (0.10)$S (2.45)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
MIPS Technologies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of MIPS Technologies, Inc. as of June 30,
2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the
years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006. Our audits also included the financial statemnent schedule listed in the
Index at Part IV, Item 15(a)2. These consolidated financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of MIPS Technologies, Inc. at June 30, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2008, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial
statement schedule, when considered in relation o the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly
in all material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note No. 2 to the consolidated financial statements, MIPS Technologies, Inc. on July 1,
2007, changed its method of accounting for uncertain tax positions and on July 1, 2005, changed its method of
accounting for share based compensation.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of MIPS Technologies, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of
June 30, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control-—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated September 10, 2008 expressed
an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Palo Alto, California
September 10, 2008
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MIPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC,

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

June 30,
2008 2007
ASSETS
Current assets;

Cash and cash equivalents ........... . .. .. . it iiiiiiiniieeannns $ 13938 $119,039
Marketable INVESIMENLS . ... .. .. ittt it it te et ettt et e — 25,845
Accounts receivable, el ... .. . e e e e e 9,866 5,212
Unbilled receivables . ...t o e e e e 4,596 —
Shortterm restricted Cash ... ittt e e e et e e 22,649 —
Prepaid expenses and other currentassets .. ....... ... .cciviiiii i 2,154 2472

Total CUITEDL ASSEES . . . oot ittt oottt e ee ettt rae s n et esaeaeeneenennn 53,203 152,568
Equipment, furniture and property, net ....... e e 16,307 5,781
Intangible assets, DEL ... .. .. ... .t i i i e 18,324 3,369
Goodwill ... e e e 40,624 565
Longtermrestricted cash ... ... ... . 7,385 —
L 71 11 g L1y =1 1. SN PN 16,901 12,579

$152,744 $174,862

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

ACCOUNS PAYADIE . ...ttt e $ 3441 § 503
Accrued labillties ... ... .. i i e i e e e 51,963 16,118
Short-term debt ... .. . i e e e 18,641 —_
IS {5y (=0 B =A< 111 L= O N 4,283 2,633

Total current Habilities . .. .ot vttt e e e ettt i et e, 78,328 19,254
Long-term liabilities ..... ... o i i i 29,496 5,726

107,324 24,980

Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value: 250,000,000 shares authorized at June 30, 2008 and
2007; and 44,325,703 and 43,595,452 shares outstanding at June 30, 2008 and
2007, respectively, net of 58,089 and 54,513 re acquired shares at June 30, 2008

and at June 30, 2007, respectively ... ..o e 44 43
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value: 50,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and

OULSEANAING . . ... ot t  eeeei e e — -—
Additional paid-incapital ........... ... e 252,263 240,444
Accumulated other comprehensiveincome ......... ... ... ... .ol 15,224 435
Accumulated deficit . . ... e ettt e (222,611) (91,040)

Total stockholders” equity . .........c.o i i e 44920 149,882

$ 152,744 $174,862

See accompanying notes.
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MIPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Years ended June 30,

2008 2007 2006
Revenue:
Royalties .. oot e e $ 46386 $44422 $36,675
License and Contract reVeNUe . .. ... ..ottt e ot e eee e aaans 58,407 38,888 27,379
TOAl TEVEIIUE . . ittt et et e et et e et et e e ee et eneenn 104,793 83,310 64,054
Costs and expenses
Costs of COMMEACE TEVEIUE .. ...\ttt sttt et ettt et e 32,161 1,663 1,246
Research anddevelopment ........... ... ... . .. iiiiiinrnninannnn, 36,478 33,068 27,104
Salesand marketing . ..... ... .. ... . . ..., 24394 22,255 18,455
General and administrative ... ... .. 0ttt i i e e 28,860 20960 12,229
Acquired in-process research and development ........................ 6,350 — 570
Impairment of goodwill and acquired intangible assets .................. 103,107 — —
RestrUCIUNINg . . . oo e i e e 1,559 — —
Total costs and eXpenses . ... ..o e e 232,909 77,946 59,604
Operating income (}0S8) ... ... ... . e (128,116) 5,364 4,450
Other income (EXPense), Ml . . . ... i ettt e et (4,081) 6,470 4,373
Income (loss) before Income taxes ... ...ttt e e (132,197y 11,834 8,823
Provision for (benefit from) incometaxes ......... ... .o i, (362) 3,351 (2,198)
Net inCome (0SS} ..ottt e e e e e e e e e e $(131,835) $ 8,483 §$11,021
Net income (loss) perbasic share . ........ ... ... ... .. . ... ..., $ ((300) % 019 $ 026
Net income (loss) per diluted share ............. ... ... ...y, $§ @O0y $ 018 $ 025
Shares used in computing basic net income (loss) pershare ................ 43964 43516 42,894
Shares used in computing diluted net income (loss) pershare ............... 43964 45,891 44,611

See accompanying notes.
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MIPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)
Years ended June 30,
2008 2007 2006
Operating activities:
Net ineome (1088 oottt it it e it e e $(131,835) $ 8,483 $ 11,021
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operations:
DePrecialion . ... ...ttt e e 3,809 2,231 1,628
Stock based compensation. ... ... .. L i e 7,889 7,872 8,332
Acquired in-process research and development ...................... 6,350 — 570
Impairment of goodwill and acquired intangible assets ................ 103,107 — —
Amortization of intangible assets ............ ... ... . o oo 9,364 1,316 1,259
Unrealized loss on private company investment ..................... 2,277 — —
Other non-cashcharges ........ ... ... . .. ... ... 1,222 1,147y  (1,057)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable ... e 6,791 (580) (1,810}
Prepaidexpenses .. ...t e 1,900 685 (262)
O A588T8 o vttt et e e e e 082 (1,600} (1,048)
Accountspayable . ..... ... .. 577 (810} (33)
Accrued Habilities . ... e e (8,509) 7,780 (4,881)
Delerred TBYEIIUE . . ..ottt ettt e e e e (421) 957 (826)
Long-term Rabilities .. ..., .iur it i e (1,022) 2,292 172
Net cash provided by operating activities . ...................... 2,181 27,479 13,065
Investing activities:
Purchases of marketable investments . ............... ... ... ... i, — (67,015 (54,029
Maturities of marketable investments . . ............ ... ... o 25,940 62,000 55,000
Capital expendifures . ... i e (3.412) (5,295 (2,179)
Proceeds from sale of equipment, furniture and property .............. — — 916
Investments in private COMPANY .. ... vrreur e nranernraaennen. —— —_ (4,500)
Acquisition in Chipidea, net . ...... ... ... ... . ... (120,944} — —
Acquisition of First Silicon Solutions Inc.,net . .. .................... — (54) 2,857
Increase inrestrictedcash . ........ ... . ... . . . . . . (27,163) — (676)
Net cash used in investing activities .. ......... ... ... ......... (125,579) (10,364) (8,325 ?
Financing activities: -
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock ... ... . ... ... ... ... .. 3,720 397 5,098 5
Proceeds from short-term debt, net . . ... ... . . ... . ... . ... ... 19,607 — — [
Repayments of short-termdebt ... ... ... ... ... . i (4,021) — — c,:’
Borrowings under capital lease obligations ......................... 546 —_ — m
Repayments of capital lease obligations .. ......... ... .. ... ....... (240) — — :
Net cash provided by financing activities ....................... 19,612 397 5,098
Effect of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents . ..., . ... ....., ... (1,315 46 (43)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . ... ... ... ... .. (105,101) 17,558 9,795
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ......................... 119,039 101,481 91,686
Cash and cash equivalents, endof year .............................. $ 13,938 $119,03¢ $10),481
Supplemental disclosures of cash transactions:
Income taxes paid . ........ .ot § 2230 % 794 § 985 \
Interest paid . .. ... .o $ 1844 § — 3 — '

See accompanying notes.
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MIPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1. Description of Business and Basis of Preseatation

MIPS Technologies, Inc. is a leading global supplier of semiconductor design intellectual property (IP} and
analog [P. MIPS Technologies is the only company that provides a combined portfolio of processors, analog IP
and software tools for the SoC market. We operate with two business Groups, Processor Business Group and
Analog Business Group. Our technology is broadly used in markets such as mobile consumer electronics, digital
entertainment, wired and wireless communications and networking, office automation, security, microcontrollers,
and automotive. We offer our customers high-performance, easy-to-use functionality at a fraction of the cost and
time to market that internal development would require. Our customers pay us license fees for architectural and
product rights, as well as royalties based on processor unit shipments.

The addition of Chipidea in August 2007, now operating as the Analog Business Group (ABG) of MIPS
Technologies, has allowed us to grow the base of products we offer to the larger set of customers. Analog and
mixed signai TP are used in most SoCs. These are the same integrated circuits that usually require a
microprocessor core, permitting us to sell both kinds of products to the same customers for the same applications
in many circumstances. Analog and mixed signal [P are difficult to develop properly, and the number of well-
trained engineers in this field is much smaller than for digital circuitry. With the acquisition of Chipidea, we have
gained a particularly strong team of such designers for the development and sale of commercial analog IP.

Basis of Presentation.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of our wholly owned subsidiaries after
elimination of intercompany transactions and balances.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period, Actual resulis
inevitably will differ from those estimates, and such differences may be material to the financial statements.

Revenue Recognition.
Royalty Revenue

We classify all revenue that involves the sale of a licensee’s products as royalty revenue. Royalty revenue is
recognized in the quarler in which a report is received from a licensee detailing the shipments of products
incorporating our IP components, which is generally in the quarter following the sale of the licensee’s product to
its customer. Royalties are calculated either as a percentage of the revenue received by the seller on sales of such
products or on a per unit basis. We periodically engage a third party to perform royalty audits of our licensees,
and if these audits indicate any over-or under-reported royalties, we account for the results when they are
identified.

License and Contract Revenue
Processor Business Group

We derive revenue from license fees for the transfer of proven and reusable IP components or from
engineering services. We enter into licensing agreements that provide licensees the right to incorporate our IP
components in their products with terms and conditions that have historically varied by licensee. Revenue earned
under contracts with our licensees is classified as either contract revenue or royalties, We recognize revenue in
accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 104, Revenue Recognition (SAB 104), and for multiple
deliverable arrangements we follow the guidance in Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) 00-21, Revenue
Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables (EITF (0-21), to determine whether there is more than one unit of
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accounting. To the extent that the deliverables are separable into multiple units of accounting, we then allocate
the tota! fee on such arrangements to the individual units of accounting using the residual method. We then
recognize revenue for each unit of accounting depending on the nature of the deliverable(s) comprising the unit
of accounting (following SAB 104).

We derive revenue from license fees for currently available technology or from engineering services for
technology under development. Each of these types of contracts includes a nonexclusive license for the
underlying IP. Fees for contracts for currently available technology include: license fees relating to our IP,
including processor designs; maintenance and support, typically for one year; and royaliies payable following the
sale by our licensees of products incorporating the licensed technology. Generally, our customers pay us a single
upfront fee that covers the license and first year maintenance and support. Qur deliverables in these arrangements
include (a) processor designs and related IP and (b) maintenance and support. The license for our IP, which
includes processor designs, has standalone value and can be used by the licensee without maintenance and
support. Further, objective and reliable evidence of fair value exists for maintenance and support based on
specified renewal rates. Accordingly, (a) license fees and (b) maintenance and support fees are each treated as
separate units of accounting. Total upfront fees are allocated to the license of processor designs and related IP
and maintenance and support using the residual method. Designs and related [P are initially delivered followed
by maintenance and support. Objective and reliable evidence of the fair value exists for maintenance and support.
However, no such evidence of fair value exists for processor designs and related IP. Consistent with the residual
method, the amount of consideration allocated to processor designs and related IP equals the total arrangement
consideration less the fair value of maintenance and suppert, which is based on specified renewal rates.
Following the guidance in SAB No. 104, fees for or allocated to licenses to currently available technology are
recorded as revenue upon the execution of the license agreement when there is persuasive evidence of an
arrangement, fees are fixed or determinable, delivery has occurred and collectability is reasonably assured. We
assess the credit worthiness of each customer when a transaction under the agreement occurs. If collectability is
not considered reasonably assured, revenue is recognized when the fee is collected. Other than maintenance and
support, there is no continuing obligation under these arrangements after delivery of the IP.

Contracts relating to technology under development also can involve delivery of a license to IP, including
processor designs. However, in these arrangements we undertake best-efforts engineering services intended to
further the development of certain technology that has yet to be developed into a final processor design. Rather
than paying an upfront fee to license completed technology, customers in these arrangements pay us milestone
fees as we perform the engineering services. If the development work results in completed technology in the
form of a processor design and related IP, the customer is granted a license to such completed technology at no
additional fee. These contracts typically include the purchase of first year maintenance and support commencing
upon the completion of a processor design and related IP for an additional fee, which fee is equal to the renewal
rate specified in the arrangement, The licensee is also obligated to pay us royalties following the sale by our
licensee of products incorporating the licensed technology. We continue to own the IP that we develop and we
retain the fees for engineering services regardless of whether the work performed results in a completed
processor design. We develop IP with intent to license it to multiple customers. Typically our cost of
development of such IP significantly exceeds the license revenue from a particular customer arrangement. Costs
incurred with respect to internally developed technology and engineering services are included in research and
development expenses, as they are not directly related to any particular licensee, license agreement, or license
fees. Fees for engineering services in contracts for technology under development, which contracts are performed
on a best efforts basis, are recognized as revenue as services are performed subsequent to the execution of the
arrangement; however, we limit the amount of revenue recognized to the aggregate amount received or currently
due pursuant to the milestone terms. As engineering activities are best-efforts and at-risk and because the
customer must pay an additional fee for the first year of maintenance and support if the activities are successful,
the maintenance and support is a contingent deliverable that is not accounted for upfront under contracts relating
to technology under development.
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Analog Business Group

License agreements provide for the performance of engineering services involving design and development of
customized analog and mixed signal IP from basic building blocks to complete subsystems, inciuding the
development of new IP or configuring existing IP to customer’s specifications. Fees are determined based on a
number of factors including direct cost and the value of the underlying technology. We expect to earn gross margins
for each agreement. We recognize revenue from these arrangements under Statement of Position (SOP) No. 81-1,
Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type Contracts (SOP 81-1), for
licensing of new IP development or configuration of existing IP to a customer’s specification. Revenue is
recognized on a percentage of completion basis from the signing of the license and design agreement through
silicon validation for new IP development and through the completion of all outstanding obligations for
configuration of existing IP. The amount of revenue recognized is based on the total license fees under the license
agreement and the percentage of completion is measured by the actual costs incurred to date on the project
compared to the total estimated project cost. Revenue is recognized only when collectability is probable. The
estimates of project costs are based on the IP specifications and prior experience of the same or similar 1P
development and are reviewed and updated regularly by management. Under the percentage of completion method,
provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are recognized in the period in which the likelihood of
such losses is determined. Licensing of existing [P that does not require any configuration is recognized upon
delivery of the IP and when all other revenue recognition criteria under SAB 104 have been met. Direct costs
incurred in the design and development of the IP under these arrangements is included in cost of coniract revenue.

Maintenance and Support

Certain arrangements in the PBG and ABG also include maintenance and support obligation. Under such
arrangements, we provide unspecified upgrades, bug fixes and technical support. No other upgrades, products or
other post-contract support are provided. These arrangements are generally renewable annually by the customer,
Maintenance and support revenue is recognized at its fair value ratably over the period during which the
obligation exists, typically 12 months. The fair value of any maintenance and support obligation is established
based on the specified renewal rate for such maintenance and support. Maintenance and support revenue is
included in license and contract revenue in the statement of operations and was $4.6 million, $4.2 million and
$3.9 million in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Marketable Investments. Cash and cash equivalents consists mainly of
cash, money market funds, and other highly liquid investments which have original maturities of three months or
less at the time of acquisition. Investments with original maturities of greater than 90 days at the time of
acquisition but less than one year from the balance sheet date are classified as marketable investments. The fair
value of cash and cash equivalents approximates their recorded value at June 30, 2008 and 2007. We classify our
cash equivalents and marketable investments as available for sale in accordance with the provisions of the
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debr and
Capital Equity Securities. Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses
reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). The amortization of premiums and
discounts on the investments and realized gains and losses, determined by specific identification, are recorded in
other income (expense), net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. There were no material
realized gains or losses in the periods presented.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. We use the following methods to estimate the fair value of
financial instruments: {a) the carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivables, accounts payable
and accrued liabilities approximates their fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments and
{b) avaiiable-for-sale securities are recorded based on quoted market prices.

Currency Translation. The assets and liabilities of international non-U.S. functional currency eantities are
translated into U.S. dollars at the rates of exchange in effect at the end of the period. Revenues and expenses are
translated vsing rates that approximate those in effect during the period. Gains and losses from currency
translation are included in stockholders’ equity in the consolidated balance sheets. Gains and losses from foreign
currency transactions are included in current income.
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Research and Development Expenses. Costs incurred with respect to internally developed technology and
engineering services are included in research and development expenses, as they are not directly related to any
particular licensee, license agreement or license fees. Such costs are expensed as incurred.

Equipment, Furniture and Property. Equipment, furniture and property are stated at cost and depreciation
is computed using the straight-line method. Useful lives of three years are used for equipment and furniture, and
useful lives of up to fifty years are used for buildings. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter
of the remaining life of the improvement or the terms of the related leases.

Computer Aided Design Tools. An increasing number of our computer aided design tools, consisting of
software used to develop our intellectual property, are now acquired through term licenses of three to seven
years. These licenses are recorded in other assets and amortized over the term of the license.

Prepaid Expenses and Qther Current Assets. Prepaid expenses and other current assets consist
principally of amounts paid by us in advance for maintenance contracts on our computer-aided software design
tools which typically cover a one-year period over which the cost is amortized, amounts paid by us in advance
for our directors and officers and business insurance, which typically covers a one year period over which the
cost is amortized, taxes receivable and deferred tax assets.

Accounts Receivable. Accounts receivable includes amounts billed and currently due from customers, net
of the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Unbilled Receivables. Unbilled receivables are primarily related to revenues on contracts that have been
recognized for accounting purposes under the percentage of completion method but have not yet been invoiced 10
customers, We invoice the customer upon completion of the contractual milestone.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses
resulting from the inability of our customers to make required payments. When we become aware of a specific
customer’s inability to pay their outstanding obligation for reasons such as deterioration in their operating resulis
or financial position or bankruptcy proceedings, we record a specific reserve for bad debt to reduce their
receivable to an amount we reasonably believe is collectible, If the financial condition of specific customers were
to change, our estimates of the recoverability of receivables could be further adjusted.

Acquisitions. The company accounts for acquisitions using the purchase method as required by Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141, Business Combinations (SFAS 141). Under SFAS No. 141,
the acquiring company allocates the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair values at the date of acquisition, including intangible assets that can be identified and named. The
purchase price in excess of the fair value of the net assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Among other
sources of relevant information, the company uses independent appraisals and actuwarial or other valuations to
assist in determining the estimated fair values of the assets and liabilities,

Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets acquired, In accordance with the provisions of FASB Statement SFAS No. 142,
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (SFAS 142), goodwill amounts are not amortized, but rather are tested for
impairment at least annually or more frequently if there are indicators of impairment present. The Company
performs its annual goodwill impairment analysis in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. The Company
evaluates whether goodwill has been impaired at the reporting unit level by first determining whether the
estimated fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value and, if so, by determining whether the
implied fair value of goodwill within the reporting unit is less than the carrying value. Fair values are determined
by discounted future cash flow analyses. As a result of the Company’s impairment analysis in the fourth quarter
of 2008, the Company recorded an impairment charge related to the goodwill initially recognized as a result of
the acquisition of Chipidea (see Note 5).

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets including Acquisition Related Intangible Assets. For long-lived assets
other than goodwill, in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. [44, Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (SFAS 144), the Company evaluates whether impairment losses have occurred
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when events and circumstances indicate that these assets might be impaired and the undiscounted cash flows
estimated to be generated by those assets are less than the carrying amounts of those assets. If less, the
impairment losses are based on the excess of the carrying amounts of these assets over their respective fair
values. Their fair values would then become the new cost basis. Fair value is determined using discounted future
cash flows, appraisals or other methods. As a result of the Company’s impairment analysis in the fourth quarter
of 2008, the Company recorded an impairment charge related to certain acquisition-related intangible assets
associated with its Analog Business Group and Processor Business Group (see Note 3).

Stock-Based Compensation. We account for stock-based compensation in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123 (revised 2004) Share-Based Payment (SFAS 123R).
Compensation cost recognized for the year ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, includes: (a) compensation cost for all
share-based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of July 1, 2005, based on the grant date fair value
estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS 123 amortized on an accelerated basis over the
options’ vesting period, and (b) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted subsequent to July 1,
2005, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R amortized on
a straight-line basis over the options’ vesting period,

The following table shows total stock-based employee compensation expense (see Note 14 for types of
stock-based employee arrangements) included in the consolidated statement of operations for the years ended
June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007 (in thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
June 30,2008  June 30,2007  June 30, 2006

Costs and expenses:

Research and development ............ .. ... ... o, $2,741 $2,941 $4.019
Salesand marketing ........... . ... i 2,466 2,472 1,932
General and administrative . ..., . ... i e 2,682 2,459 2,381
Total stock-based compensation expense . ..................... $7,889 $7.872 $8,332

As a result of the failure to file our Annual Report for the year ended June 30, 2006 and our Quarterly
Reports for the first three quarters of fiscal 2007 on a timely basis and our determination that previously filed
financial statements should no longer be relied upon, we suspended our registration statement on Form S-8, and
options held by certain former employees were scheduled to expire during this suspension period. We extended
the post-termination exercise period for some former employees whose options would have expired to allow for a
30-day period to exercise in-the-money options after we became current with our SEC filings. This modification
resulted in a compensation charge that was recorded in our third fiscal quarter of 2007 in the amount of $392,000
which is included in the table above. We also agreed to extend the post termination exercise period for current
employees that may leave the company whose options may expire to allow for a 30-day period to exercise
in-the-money options after we became current with our SEC filings. This modification resulted in a
compensation charge that was recorded in our third fiscal quarter of 2007 in the amount of $99,000 which is
included in the table above.

During fiscal 2008, $255,000 tax benefit was recognized as a credit to paid-in-capital. There was no material
recognized tax benefit during fiscal 2007. As a result of the adoption of SFAS 123R, we will only recognize a
benefit from stock-based compensation in paid-in-capital if an incremental tax benefit is realized after all other
tax attributes currently available to us have been utilized. In addition, we have elected to account for the indirect
benefits of stock-based compensation (including the research tax credits) through the income statement
(continuing operations) rather than through paid-in-capital. We have also elected to net deferred tax assets and
the associated valuation allowance related to the net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards for the
accumulated stock award tax benefits determined under APB No. 25 for income tax footnote disclosure purposes.
We will track these stock award attributes separately and will only recognize these attributes through
paid-in-capital in accordance with Footnote 82 of SFAS 123R.
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For restricted common stock issued at discounted prices, we recognize compensation expense over the
vesting period for the difference between the exercise or purchase price and the fair market value on the
measurement date. Total compensation expense recognized in our financial statements for restricted stock awards
was $111,000, $142,000 and $199,000 for the year ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Income Taxes. We account for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income
Taxes, (SFAS 109) which requires that deferred tax assets and liabilities be recognized for the effect of
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for income tax purposes.

We adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No, 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, (“FIN 48”), on
July 1, 2007. FIN48 is an interpretation of FASB Statement 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, and it seeks to
reduce the diversity in practice associated with certain aspects of measurement and recognition in accounting for
income taxes. FIN48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of a tax position that an entity takes or expects to take in a tax return. Additionally,
FIN48 provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest, and penalties, accounting in interim periods,
disclosures, and translation. Under FIN48, an entity may not recognize or continue to recognize tax positions that
meet a “more likely than not” threshold. In accordance with our accounting policy, we recognize accrued interest
and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of tax expense. This policy did not change as a
result of our adoption of FIN48,

Earnings per Share. 'We follow the provisions of SFAS No. 128, Earnings per Share (SFAS . 128). SFAS
No. 128 requires the presentation of basic and fully diluted earnings per share. Basic earnings per share is
computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common
shares that were outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed giving effect to all
dilutive potential common shares that were outstanding for any periods presented in these financial statements.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income (loss) per share (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

Years ended June 30,

2008 2007 2006

Numerator:

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders . ....... ... ........ $(131,835) § 8483 $11,021!
Denominator:

Weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding ................. 43,987 43,576 42995

Less: Weighted-average shares subject torepurchase ................... (23) (60) (101)

Shares used in computing basic net income (loss) pershare .............. 43964 43516 42894

Basic netincome (loss) pershare ............. .. ... .. .. . aea.. $ @G0 % 019 § 026

Shares used in computing diluted net income (loss) pershare . ............ 43,964 45891 44,611

Diluted net income (loss) pershare . ............. ... ... ... ... ..c.... $ @GO00) $ 018 3 025

Potentially dilutive securities excluded from diluted net income (loss) per

share because they are anti-dilutive ... ... ... ... ... ... .... 10,697 7,126 8.124

Comprehensive Income (loss). Total comprehensive income (loss) includes net income (loss) and other
comprehensive income, which for us primarily comprises adjustments from foreign currency translations.

Total comprehensive income (loss) was $(116.8) million in fiscal 2008, $8.8 million in fiscal 2007 and
$11.1 million in fiscal 2006.
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The components of accumulated other comprehensive income were as follows (in thousands):

June 30,
2008 2007
Accumulated net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities .. ............. b 3 %512
Accumulated foreign currency translation adjustment .. ..., ... ... o 0L 15,221 423
Total accumulated other comprehensive income . ............ ... oo, $15224  $435

Segment Information. Prior 1o fiscal year 2008, we operated in one reportable business group. In the first
quarter of fiscal 2008, following the acquisition of Chipidea, we organized into two business groups, the PBG
and the ABG. These segments were determined based upon our internal organization and management structure
and are the primary way in which the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) is provided with financial
information. '

(i) Processor Business Group:

The PBG provides industry-standard processor architectures and cores for digital consumer and business
applications. This group designs and licenses high performance 32- and 64-bit architectures and cores, which
offer smaller dimensions and greater energy efficiency in embedded processors. Markets served by the PBG
segment include digital set-top boxes, digital televisions, DVD recordable devices, broadband access devices,
digital cameras, laser printers, portable media players, microcontrollers and network routers.

(ii} Analog Business Group:

The ABG includes the Chipidea operation and provides analog and mixed-signal IP that produces cost-
efficient SoC applications and turnkey solutions. The ABG IP portfolio covers all fundamental functions in the
analog and mixed-signal electronic space, including data conversion, clock management, power management,
radio connectivity, physical connectivity, and voice audio and video processing. Market segments served by the
ABG segment are wireless communications, power line communications, data communications, video, audio and
voice signal processing, xDSL modems, set-top boxes, multimedia and digital consumer electronics.

For further descriptions of our operating segments, see Note 17. Our reportable segments are the same as
our operating segments.

Reclassifications. Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year
presentation.

Restructuring. We account for restructuring activities in accordance with SFAS No. 146, Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities (SFAS 146) and SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (SFAS 144), Restructuring costs include severance costs, asset write-offs and
facilities closure costs.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements.

In April 2008, the FASB finalized Staff Position (“FSP”) No. 142-3, Determination of the Useful Life of
Intangible Assets (FSP 142-3). The position amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal
or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under FASB SFAS
142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. The position applies to intangible assets that are acquired
individually or with a group of other assets and boih intangible assets acquired in business combinations and
assel acquisitions. FSP 142-3 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods
within those fiscal years. We are currently evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of FSP 142-3 on our
consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (SFAS 157), which defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure, about fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods
within those fiscal years. We are currently assessing the potential effect, if any, of implementing this standard.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), Business Combinations (SFAS 141R). SFAS 141R
retains the fundamental requirements in SFAS 141 that the acquisition method of accounting {(which SFAS 141
called the purchase method ) be used for all business combinations and for an acquirer to be identifted for each
business combination. SFAS 141R also establishes principles and requirements for how the acquirer:
(a) recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed,
and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree; (b) recognizes and measures the goodwill acquired in the
business combination or a gain from a bargain purchase; and (c) determines what information to disclose to
enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination.
SFAS 141R applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or afier December 15, 2008. We are currently
evaluating the impact that SFAS 141R will have on our financial statements.

Note 3. Business Risk and Customer Concentration

‘We operate in the intensely competitive semiconductor industry, which has been characterized by price
erosion, rapid technological change, short product life cycles, cyclical market patterns and heightened foreign
and domestic competition. Significant technological changes in the industry could adversely affect our operating
results, We market and license our technology to a limited number of customers and generally do not require
collateral. Revenue from our largest customers accounted for the following percentages of revenue by year:

Years Ended June 30,

W0 2007 2006
CUSIOMET A L e e 18% 14% 13%
Customer B ... .. .. . e 12%

We expect that a significant portion of our future revenue will continue to be generated by a limited number
of customers. The non-renewal or expiration of contracts with our current customers could adversely affect our
near-term future operating results,

A substantial portion of our revenue is derived from licensees based outside the United States (see Note 17).
We anticipate that revenue from international licensees will continue to represent a substantial portion of our
total revenue. To date, substantially all of the revenue from international customers has been denominated in U.S.
dollars. However, to the extent that sales to digital consumer and business product manufacturers by our
licensees are denominated in foreign currencies, royalties received by us on such sales could be subject to
fluctuations in currency exchange rates. The relative significance of our international operations exposes us (o a
number of additional risks including political and economic instability, longer accounts receivable collection
perieds and greater difficulty in collection of accounts receivable, reduced or limited protection for intellectual
property, export license requirements, tariffs and other trade barriers and potentially adverse tax consequences.
There can be no assurance that we will be able to sustain revenue derived from international customers or that the
foregoing factors will not have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results and financial
condition.

Note 4. Investments and Acquisitions
Chipidea Acquisition

On August 27, 2007, we completed the acquisition of Chipidea Microelectrénica S.A., a privately held
supplier of analog and mixed signal intellectual property based in Lisbon, Portugal. We acquired all of the
outstanding stock of Chipidea for $147 million in cash, of which $14.7 million is held in escrow to satisfy
indemnification claims that may arise. In connection with the acquisition, $12.5 million of consideration was set
aside in an escrow account denominated in Euro (amount approximates $14.8 million at June 30, 2008). Payment
of this consideration, which is due to certain former shareholders of Chipidea, will be paid at the first and second
anniversary date of the acquisition of Chipidea and is contingent on the former shareholders providing services to
us for those periods. Therefore, this consideration was recorded as deferred purchase price consideration
expensed ratably over the two year period.
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We acquired Chipidea to position ourselves as a leading independent supplier of analog and mixed signal IP
for wireless, digital consumer and connectivity markets. The acquisition allows us to utilize our existing business
model while growing the base of products we offer to the same set of customers. In addition, with the acquisition
of Chipidea, we gain a strong team of analog and mixed signal designers for the development of commercial
analog and mixed signal IP.

Purchase Price Allocation

The transaction was accounted for as a purchase in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 141, Business Combinations (SFAS 141); therefore, Chipidea’s tangible assets and identifiable
intangible assets have been valued based on their estimated fair value on the acquisition date as set forth below.

The purchase price of $137.2 million includes the cash paid of $147 million and the acquisition costs of $2.7
million less the conlingent payment to Chipidea former shareholders of $12.5 million, and was allocated as
follows (in thousands}:

CUITEIIE ASSBES & v v vt v e e et e e et et ettt e e ettt et it ateae s $ 17,233
Property, plant and equipment .......... ... .. il 9,680
Intangible assets .. ... ... e 33,760
In-process research and development ........ ... o it 6,350
GoodWIll . .. e e e e 112,316
0111 1=) = £ U 8,303
Total assets aCqUITED . ...t e et s 187.642
Current Habilities . ..ottt e e e e (29,588)
Long-term liabilities . . ....... ... ..o e (19,876)
Total debt ..o e s (968)
Total lighilities assumed . .. ... ... . it e e (50,432)
Netassets acquired .. ..o oot e $137.210

There are some items that may impact goodwill in future years, including the potential issuance of up to
610,687 shares of common stock of MIPS {or, at MIPS’ election, cash in an amount equal to the value of such
shares at the time such shares are required 1o be issued) in February 2009, if certain revenue targets are achieved
for the two year period through December 31, 2008. In addition, the resolution of certain MIPS tax-related
contingencies may significantly impact goodwill. o the extent that the actual amounts are different than the
estimated amounts initially recorded, the difference will result in adjustments to goodwill. Any other adjustments
to amounts recorded after the completicn of the acquisition will be recorded in post-acquisition operating resulis.

Deferred Revenue. In connection with the purchase price allocation, we have estimated the fair value of
deferred revenue related to development and support obligations assumed from Chipidea in connection with the
acquisition. The estimated fair value of the obligations was determined utilizing a cost build-up approach. The
cost build-up approach determines fair value by estimating the costs relating to fulfilling the obligations plus a
normal profit margin. As a result, in allocating the purchase price, we recorded an adjustment to reduce the
carrying value of Chipidea’s deferred revenue to $2.2 million, which represents our estimate of the fair vatue of
the obligation assumed.

Contingent Consideration. In connection with the acquisition, Chipidea made certain representations and
warranties to us, and Chipidea’s former shareholders agreed to indemnify us against damages which might arise
from a breach of those representations and warranties. Under the terms of the acquisition, the former Chipidea
shareholders set aside $14.7 million of cash consideration for payment of possible indemnification claims made
by us. Accordingly, a liability for this contingent cash consideration has been recorded in accrued liabilities and
this amount has been considered in the purchase price. Under the terms of the acquisition, this amount has been
set aside in an escrow account and is recorded in short term restricted cash and is scheduled to be released on the
one year anniversary of the acquisition date. In August 2008, we made certain claims under the indemnification
escrow agreement.
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Deferred Purchase Price Consideration. Payment of approximately $12.5 million (denominated in Euro
and valued at $14.8 million at June 30, 2008} to certain shareholders is payable to the founders of Chipidea in
connection with acquisition. These payments are due 12 months and 24 months from the acquisition date. This
consideration will be ratably recorded as deferred purchase price consideration over the term of the payments. A
restricted cash account has been established for the funding of this payment and is recorded in short term
restricted cash and long term restricted cash.

Unaudited Proforma financial information. The results of operations of Chipidea have been included in
our consolidated financial statements subsequent to the date of acquisition. The financial information in the table
below summarizes the combined results of operations of MIPS and Chipidea, on a pro forma basis, as though the
companies had been combined as of the beginning of each of the fiscal years presented (in thousands, except per
share data):

Years ended June 30,

2008 2007
Total pro fOrmMa revenues . . ... ......ouiiinieeaaaiiiieanenns. $ 111,675 $114,100
Proformanet loss .. ...... ... ittt $(132,703) $ (7,295)
Pro forma net loss per share-basic and diluted ........................ $ (02 3 (017
Reported netincome (0SS} . ... ...ttt e $(131,835) $ 8,483

The pro forma financial information is presented for informational purposes only and is not indicative of the
results of operations that would have been achieved if the merger had taken place at the beginning of each of the
periods presented. The pro forma financial information for fiscal 2008 includes a charge of $6.4 million for
in-process research and development. Chipidea’s functional currency is the Euro and its financial statements
have been translated into dollars in each period presented.

Intangible Assets

In performing our purchase price allocation in order to determine the valuation of the purchased intangible
assets, we considered, among other factors, our intention for future use of acquired assets, analyses of historical
financial performance and estimates of the future performance of Chipidea’s products. The fair value of
intangible assets was determined by using an income approach which was based on estimates and assumptions
determined by management. The estimates of future operating results and cash flows were principally derived
from Chipidea long-term financial forecasts, which represented the best estimates that the Company’s
management had at the iime of the acquisition. The rates utilized to discount net cash flows to their present
values were based on our weighted average cost of capital and ranged from 14% to 20%. These discount rates
were determined after consideration of our rate of return on debt capital and equity and the weighted average
return on invested capital.

Developed and core technology, which comprise products that have reached technological feasibility,
includes products in most of Chipidea’s product lines. The amortizatien of developed and core technology assets
is recorded as cost of contract revenue. Customer relationships and backlog represent the underlying
relationships with Chipidea’s installed customer base and open customer purchase orders at the date of
acquisition. The amortization of customer relationships and backlog is recorded as cost of contract revenue.

Acquired In-Process Research and Development

We expensed acquired in-process research and development (IPR&D) upon acquisition as it represents
incomplete Chiptdea research and development projects that had not reached technological feasibility and bad no
alternative future use as of the date of our acquisition. Technological feasibility is established when an enterprise
has completed all planning, designing, coding, and testing activities that are necessary to establish that a product
can be produced to meet its design specifications including functions, features, and technical performance
requirements. The value assigned to [PR&D was $6.4 million and determined based on an analysis of data
concerning developmental products, their stage of development, the time and resources needed to complete them,
target markets, their expected income and net cash flow generating ability and associated risks.

55

!
=)
=3
=
g
T
~




Acquisition of First Silicon Solutions, Inc.

On September 2, 2005, we acquired First Silicon Solutions, Inc. (FS2), a design services and development
tools company. FS2’s products and services provide value to our customer base by improving de-bugging
capability and accelerating time to market of their products. We acquired all of the outstanding FS2 stock for an
initial purchase consideration of $4.5 million, including approximately $140,000 of acquisition-related costs. The
purchase consideration was paid in cash.

The purchase price was allocated as follows:

Intangible assets acquired ... $3,220
Acquired in-process research and development ...... ... 570
Nettangible assets ... ... ..ot i 471
GoodWill ... e e 263

Total assets acquired . ... ... ..eorrt i e $4,530

The purchase price allocation in the table above does not reflect certain immaterial adjustments to the
purchase price allocation prior to the finalization of the purchase price allocation in fiscal 2007.

Intangible assets consist of developed technology, customer relationships and trade name. Developed
technology comprises products that have reached technological feasibility. Customer relationships represent the
underlying relationships with FS2’s installed customer base. These intangible assets were deemed impaired in
our impairment analysis. (See Note 5 for further discussion)

Other

In fiscal 2006, we acquired equity interests in two privately-held companies for $4.5 million that were
accounted for under the cost method as we do not have significant influence on their financial and operating
plans. The investments are included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheet. In fiscal 2008, based on our
impairment assessment of both of the equity investments, we recorded an impairment loss of $2.3 million on one
of the equity investments, which is included in the caption “Other income (expense), net” in our 2008
consolidated statement of operations,

Note 5. Goodwill and Acquisition Related Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net tangible and intangible
assets acquired. Goodwill in connection with the Chipidea acquisition has been assigned to the Analog Business
Group. Goodwill is subject to foreign exchange translation adjustments as the functional currency of Chipidea is
the Euro. The Processor Business Group’s goodwill is primarily attributable to the FS2 acquisition.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by operating segment for the year ended June 30, 2008,
were as follows:

Processor Analog
Business Group  Business Group Total
(In thousands)
Balancesat July 1,2007 ... $565 $ — § 565

112,316 112,316
16,664 16,664
(88,921) (88,921)

$ 40,059  § 40,624

Acquisitionof Chipidea ........... ... ... il
Currency translation adjustment ......... . ..coooiiiiiiiiiii o,
Impairment LOSSES ... .ot iee e e

Balances at June 30,2008 .. ... .. i

o3
Lh
”all o
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In the fourth guarter of 2008, pursuant to its accounting policy, the Company conducted an impairment test
of goodwill. As a result of this analysis, the Company concluded that the carrying amount of goodwill assigned
to its ABG segment exceeded the implied fair value and recorded an impairment charge of approximately
$88.9 million, which is included in the caption “Impairment of goodwill and acquired intangible assets” in its
2008 consolidated statement of operations. The impairment charge was determined by comparing the carrying
value of goodwill assigned to the reporting unit (ABG Segment) as of June 30, 2008, with the implied fair value
of the goodwill. The Company considered both the income and market approaches in determining the implied
fair value of the goodwill, which requires estimates of future operating results and cash flows of the reporting
unit discounted vsing estimated discount rates ranging from 18 percent to 24 percent. The estimates of future
operating results and cash flows were principally derived from an updated long-term financial forecast, which is
developed as part of the Company’s strategic planning cycle conducted annually during the Company’s fourth
quarter. The decline in the implied fair value of the goodwill and resulting impairment charge was primarily
driven by the softening overall market for IP and delays experienced in realizing expected synergies resulting in
our updated long-term financial forecasts showing lower estimated near-term and longer-term profitability
compared to estimates developed at the time of the completion of the acquisition. This updated long-term
financial forecast represents the best estimate that the Company’s management has at this time and the Company
believes that its underlying assumptions are reasonable. However, actual performance in the near-term and
longer-term could be materially different from these forecasts, which could impact future estimates of fair value
of the Company’s reporting units and may result in further impairment of goodwill.

The outcome of the Company’s goodwill impairment analysis indicated that the carrying amount of certain
acquisition related intangible assets or asset groups may not be recoverable. The Company assessed the
recoverability of the acquisition related intangible assets or asset groups, as appropriate, by determining whether
the unamertized balances could be recovered through undiscounted future net cash flows. The Company
determined that certain of the acquisition related developed product technology associated with its ABG and
PBG segments were impaired primarily due to the revised lower revenue forecasts associated with the products
incorporating such developed preduct technology. The Company measured the amount of impairment by
calculating the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeded their estimated fair values, which were
based on projected discounted future net cash flows. As a result of this impairment analysis, the Company
recorded an impairment charge of $14.2 million, which is included in the caption “Impairment of goodwill and
acquired intangible assets™ in its 2008 consolidated statement of operations, $12.5 million of the intangible asset
impairment related to the ABG and $1.7 million related to the PBG.

The balances of acquisition related intangible assets as of June 30, 2008, were as follows:

June 30, 2008
Weighted
Average
Amortization Gross Net
Period (in Carrying Accumulated Impairment Carrying
months) Value Amortization Losses Value
(In thousands)
Developed and core technology .............. .. 70 $28,116 % (7,997y $(12,164) $ 7,955
Customer relationships and backlog ............ 56 15,286 (5,351} (692) 9,243
Other ... .. e 63 3,041 (579) (1,336) 1,126
Total ... e 65 $46,443  $(13,927) $(14,192) $18,324
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The balances of acquisition related intangible assets as of June 30, 2007, were as follows:

June 30, 2007

Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Value Amortization Value

Developed and core technology . .. ...coo oo $6,062 $(3.645) 52,417
Customer relationships ......... ... .. o i 1,310 (400) 910
(07117 o 110 (1)) 42
Total ..............00aun. R R EEEER: $7.482 $(4.112) $3.,369

Developed and core technology are being amortized over their useful lives of 5 to 15 years. Customer
relationships and backlog are being amortized over their useful lives of 1 to 7 years. Other intangible assets are
being amortized over their useful lives of 3 to 5 years.

Estimated future amortization expense related to acquisition related intangible assets is as follows:

In thousands
Fiscal Year
041 TP 3 4,774
11 1o P I 4,208
. ) 15 3,667
.1 1 3,149
2003 e e 1,011
BT 1<) oA 1,515
N e T2 [N UPUR $18,324
Note 6. Debt and Capital Lease Obligations
The components of short-term debt are as follows (in thousands):
June 30, 2008
Credit agreement . . ...... .. vttt e 16,000
Bank lines of Credit . . .. ..ottt it 2,476
OUREL o e ettt e e 165
318,641

We had no short-term debt outstanding at June 30, 2007.

Revolving Credit Agreement. On August 24, 2007, we entercd into a $35 million Revolving Credit
Agreement (Credit Agreement) with a syndicate of several banks and other financial institutions, and Jefferies
Finance, LLC, as the administrative agent. Funds available under the Credit Agreement were used to fund the
acquisition of Chipidea, as well as for general corporate and working capital purposes. In connection with the
Credit Agreement, we incurred $1.6 million of underwriting fees, expenses and administration fees. We
accounted for these fees as deferred loan origination fees and they will be amortized over the estimateg life of the
Credit Agreement and recorded as other expense.

On February 22, 2008 we amended certain terms and definitions of the Credit Agreement (Amended Credit
Agreement) in order to update certain covenant requirements. The amendment provided for, among other things,
revisions to certain covenants, increased interest rates, a reduction in the revolving commitment amount to $20
miltion (with additionat $1.0 million reductions to occur each month beginning on March 31, 2008) and certain
limitations on the use of loan proceeds. The remaining principal balance is due in full on August 22, 2008. In
connection with the Amended Credit Agreement we incurred $0.2 million of amendment fees. We accounted for
these fees as deferred loan origination fees and they are being over the estimated life of the Amended Credit
Agreement and recorded as other expense.
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On June 30, 2008, borrowings of $16 million were ouistanding under the Amended Credit Agreement.
Borrowings under the Amended Credit Agreement bear interest at a rate equal to an applicable margin plus, at
our option, either (a) a base rate determined by reference to the higher of (1) the United States prime rate and
(2) the federal funds rate plus (.5% or (b) a LIBOR rate, for a term period of one, two, three or six months,
determined by reference to the costs of funds for deposits for the interest period relevant to such borrowing,
adjusted for certain additional costs. We can elect to convert an existing interest calculation method at our
discretion. The applicable margin for borrowings under the Amended Credit Agreement is 3.00% with respect to
base rate borrowings and 4.00% with respect to LIBOR borrowings. As of June 30, 2008, the base rate was
5.00% and the LIBOR rate was 2.5%. We elected the LIBOR method for determining the interest rate for the
outstanding $16 million. Therefore the interest rate on our borrowings as of June 30, 2008 was 6.5%. Interest is
payable on a monthly basis,

We are required to pay a commitment fee to the lenders with respect to any unutilized commitments under
the Amended Credit Agreement. The commitment fee on the Amended Credit Agreement is (.375% per annum
and is due quarterly. We reduced the amount committed under the Amended Credit Agreement on a permanent
basis,

The Amended Credit Agreement contains certain customary representations and warranties, affirmative and
negative covenants, and events of default, including the requirement that we maintain, and report on a quarterly
basis, for the trailing twelve months, a leverage ratio (as defined in the Amended Credit Agreement) of no greater
than 3.5 to 1.0. All obligations under the Amended Credit Agreement, and the guarantees of those obligations,
are secured by substantially all our assets, subject to certain exceptions. We were in compliance with all
covenants relating to the Amended Credit Agreement as of June 30, 2008.

On July 3, 2008, we paid off the $16 million balance on the revolving credit agreement in conjunction with
securing the SVB credit facility. See Note 18 for additional details.

Bank Lines of Credit. 'We have bank line of credit agreements with several Portuguese banks with a total
aggregate available credit of approximately $2.5 million as of June 30, 2008. The interest rates on these
agreements range from 5.9% to 7.3% and the agreecments have expiration dates ranging from July 14, 2008 to
September 26, 2008, with automatic renewal provisions for additional 90-day period or 6-month periods. As of
June 30, 2008, we have outstanding borrowings of $2.5 million and no credit line available under these
agreements,

Other. We have a non-interest bearing loan with a Portuguese governmental agency. The short-term
portion of this loan is approximately $0.2 million at June 30, 2008. The long-term portion of this loan is
approximately $0.1 million at June 30, 2008 and is classified under long-term liabilities on the balance sheet.

As of June 30, 2008, we have entered into terers of credit for approximately $2.7 million with various
financial institutions in Portugal, Belgium, France and Norway in association with certain building leases and
government grants.,

Capital Leases Obligations

As of June 30, 2008, we had aggregate outstanding capital lease obligations of approximately $8.9 million
as compared to none at June 30, 2007. Obligations under our capital lease agreements are collateralized by the
assets leased and are payable through fiscal 2012, Leased assets consist principally of building and equipment.

The gross amount of assets recorded under capital leases totaled approximately $10.0 million and none as of
June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007, respectively, and accumulated amortization of these leased assets was
approximately $1.1 million and none as of June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007, respectively. These leased assets are
included in the related equipment, furniture and property category. Amortization of assets recorded under capital
leases is included in depreciation expense.
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| Future minimum capital lease payments outstanding as of June 30, 2008 are as follows (in thousands):

i Capital Leases

i Fiscal Year
2000 . e e e $8,623
2000 . e e e 529
.0 3 P 288
7.0 2 P 91
Less amount representing INterest . ... ... ..vviirrtrraaeererens (644)
TOtal « oottt e $8,887

We are currently negotiating a financing transaction for the land and building we occupy in Lisbon,
Portugal. Under the terms of the transaction, we expect that the proceeds from the transaction we receive will be
used directly to pay off our related capital lease obligation of $7.5 million which is included in the table

9,531
| above. We expect this transaction to be completed in fiscal 2009.
I

Note 7. Restructuring Charge

Restructuring. In the third quarter of fiscal 2008, we announced plans to reduce operating costs in our
processor business group by terminating the employment of certain employees in our United States locations and
by closing our research and development center in the United Kingdom. In total, 28 employees were terminated
during fiscal 2008, resulting in approximately $0.9 million of severance and benefits costs recorded as
restructuring expense. All of the impacted employees were terminated by March 31, 2008. In addition, asset
disposal and transfer costs of approximately $0.3 million and facilities costs of approximately $0.4 million were
recorded as restructuring expense in fiscal 2008 related to contract cancellation costs, termination of office lease
and other closure costs from the United Kingdom research and development center.

We recorded the restructuring activities in accordance with SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated
with Exit or Disposal Activities (SFAS 146) and SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets (SFAS 144). The total charge to restructuring expense in fiscal 2008 was approximately $1.6
million which is included in the caption “Restructuring” in 2008 consolidated statement of operations. All costs
were paid as of June 30, 2008, except for approximately $0.2 million related to facilities closure costs which was
accrued as of June 30, 2008 and is recorded on our consolidated balance sheet. We do not expect to incur
additional material expenses in fiscal 2009 as we exit our United Kingdom facilities. This restructuring action
will be fully implemented by December 2008.

Note 8. Financial Instruments

The following table summarizes by major security type, the fair value of our cash equivalents and
marketable investments (in thousands):

June 30,
2008 2007

Money market funds .. ... . e $11,105 $117,201
Certificates of deposit and time deposits ................. i — 6,000
U.S. commercial paper and municipal bonds ... ......... ool — 19,845

g 0 7Y A OO PP P 11,105 143,046
Less amounts classified as cash equivalents .......... ... .. ... cooit, (11,105)  (117,200)

Total markelable INVESIMENTS . ..o . vt vr i ieee e $ — § 25845

Our marketable investments as of June 30, 2008 are available-for-sale securities that were bought and held
principally for the purpose of selling them in the near term. Unrealized gains and losses for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2008 and 2007 were not significant.
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Note 9. Equipment, Furniture and Property

The components of equipment, furniture and property are as follows (in thousands):

June 30,
2008 2007
Equipment ... ... ... e $16,363 § 15473
Landand buildings .......... .. oo 8,661 —
Fumniture and fixtures . .......... . it 3,913 1,577
Leasehold Improvements .. ...... ... ... ... oo, 812 1,101
29,749 18,151
Accumulated depreciation ......... . ... .. .. L il (13,442  (12,370)
Equipment and fumniture, net ........... ... coiiiiii i $16307 § 35,781
Note 10. Other Long-Term Assets
The components of other long-term assets are as follows (in thousands):
June 30,
2608 2007
Investments in other companies .............................. $ 2,157 $ 4463
Long-term computer aided design licenses . ... .................. 11,458 4,822
Cash surrender value of insurance contracts tied to our deferred
compensation plan . ........ ... .. 2,070 2,310
Other long-term assets . . .. ... ...ttt 1,216 984

$16,901 $12,579

Note 11. Accrued and Long-Term Liabilities

The components of accrued liabilities are as follows (in thousands):

June 30,
2008 2007
Accrued compensation and employee-related expenses ............ $ 6,457 § 6,848
Income taxes payable .............. ... . . i (48) 2,195
Payable to Chipidea shareholders ............................. 15,212 — ey
Capital lease obligations ................. .. i, 8.044 — o
Deferred purchase price consideration . ........................ 6,123 — ;
Computer aided design tool liabilities . .. ....................... 5,212 2,502 -~
Other accrued liabilities ........... ... ... ... ... it 10,963 4,573 3
$51.963  $16,118 =
The components of long-term liabilities are as follows (in thousands):
June 30,
2008 2007
Deferred compensation ........... ... i i $ 2530 $2,298
Long-term deferred tax liability ............. .. ... .. .. ...... 7,548 —_
Long-term income tax liability ................................ 11,758 —
Long-term accounts payable ....... ... ... ... .. ... .. o ... 6,052 2,363
Other long-term liabilities .......... .. ... ... ... ............. 1,608 1,065

$29496 35,726
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Note 12. Interest and Other Income, Net

The components of interest and other income, net are as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,
2008 2007 2006
INEETESt INCOME .« . o\ v e sttt e e e tae e $ 1,132 $6,656 $4.413
Interest BXpense .. ... vttt e e (1,746) {4) (2)
Other .. e e (3,467) {182) (38)
Total interest and other income, net .................... $(4,081) $6470 $4,373

Note 13. Commitments
Purchase Commitments with Suppliers

We lease certain facilities under non-cancelable operating leases that have expiration dates between fiscal
2008 and fiscal 2016.

At June 30, 2008, the Company’s future minimum payments for operating lease obligations are as follows:

Operating Leases

(In thousands)
200D L e e $ 3492
2000 e e e e 1,937
20T s e e e 1,574
20 e e 1,415
2003 e 1,103
Therealter . oo e e e 2,307
Total minimum operating lease payments ..................ccuvenn.. $11,828

Rent expense under non-cancelable operating leases was approximately $3.3 million in fiscal 2008, $1.7
million in fiscal 2007 and $1.6 million in fiscal 2006.

In connection with the lease for our Mountain View facilities, we have entered into a letter of credit as a
security deposit with a financial institution for $0.3 million, which is guaranteed by a time-based certificate of
deposit. This certificate of deposit is recorded in other assets on the consolidated balance sheet.

Commitments for purchases of products or services to be received in future periods totaled $8.7 million at
June 30, 2008, including $5.6 million for fiscal 2009 and $3.1 million for fiscal 2010.

Note 14. Stockholders’ Equity

Preferred Stock. There are 50,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share authorized for
issuance. No shares of preferred stock have been issued.

1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan. The 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan was adopted by our board of
directors and approved by our stockholder in May 1998 and was amended by our board of directors in August
1998 and May 1999 with the approval of our stockholders in October 1999 and was amended by our board of
directors in January 2003. In August 2007 our board of directors adopted the 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as
Amended and Restated (the “1998 Plan™), which was approved by stockholders in December 2007. The
Compensation Committee of our board of directors administers the 1998 Plan. The 1998 Plan authorizes the
issuance of various forms of stock-based awards including incentive and non-statutory stock options, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock, stock units, bonus stock and other stock related awards to officers and other
key employees, consultants and members of the board of directors. Stock options and stock appreciation rights
may not be granted with an exercise price less than the fair value on the date of grant; the board of directors
determines the prices of other stock awards. Options awarded under the 1998 Plan prior to July 2005 expire ten
years from the date of grant unless expiration occurs earlier in connection with termination of employment.
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Initial stock options grants awarded prior to July 2005 generally vest over a 50-month period, with 24% of the
total shares vesting on the first anniversary of the date of grant and 2% of the total shares vesting each month
thereafter over a 38-month period. Annual stock option grants awarded prior to fiscal 2002 vest over a 48-month
period, with approximately 8.33% vesting each month over a 12-month period beginning on the third anniversary
of the date of grant. Annual grants awarded during and after fiscal year 2002, but prior to July 20035, vest over a
50-month period from the date of grant with 2% of the total shares vesting each month. In July 2003, the term
and vesting schedule for both the initial and annual stock option grants were adjusted, effective immediately.
Beginning in July 2005, options expire seven years from the date of grant unless expiration occurs earlier in
connection with termination of employment. Under the vesting schedule employed since 2005, initial stock
option grants vest over a 36-month period with one-third of the total shares vesting on the first anniversary of the
date of grant and approximately 2.78% of the total shares vesting each month thereafter over the remaining
24-month period. Annual stock option grants vest over a 36-month period from the date of grant with
approximately 2.78% of the total shares vesting each month. Vested options granted under the 1998 Plan to
optionees other than executives generally may be exercised for three months after termination of the optionee’s
service to us, other than for termination due to death or disability, in which case the vested options generally may
be exercised up to 12 months following the date of death or termination of service, or termination for cause, in
which case the option may not be exercised following termination. Options granted to executives generally may
be exercised for 12 months following the date of termination. The number of shares subject to any award, the
exercise price and the number of shares issuable under this plan are subject to adjustments in the event of a
change relating to our capital structure.

In connection with the amendment and restatement of the 1998 Plan in 2007, we terminated our Directors’
Stock Option Pian and 2002 Non-qualified Stock Option Plan (the “terminated plans”), and provided that if any
shares subject to an award previously granted under the terminated plans are forfeited, expire or otherwise
terminate without issuance or any award is settled for cash or otherwise does not result in the issuance of all or a
portion of such shares, such unissued shares shall again become available under the 1998 Plan. On July 1, 2007
and July 2006, the number of shares available for issuance increased by approximately 1.7 million and
1.7 million shares, respectively. At June 30, 2008, a total of approximately 16.9 million shares of common stock
were reserved under the 1998 Plan and 4.4 million shares were available for future awards.

Directors’ Stock Option Plan. The Directors’ Stock Option Plan (the “Director Plan™) was adopted by our
board of directors and our stockholder in July 1998, and was amended by our board of directors in May 1999 and
in January 2002. The Compensation Committee of our board of directors administers the Director Plan. Upon a
non-employee director’s election or appointment to the board, he or she will automatically receive a
non-statutory stock option to purchase 40,000 shares of common stock. Each non-employee director who has
been a director for at least six months will automatically receive a non-statutory stock option to purchase 10,000
shares of common stock each year on the date of the annual stockholder meeting. All stock options are granted at
an exercise price equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant. Options expire ten
years from the date of grant. Prior to January 2002, initial stock option grants vested over a 50-month period with
24% of the total shares vesting on the first anniversary of the grant date and 2% of the total shares vesting each
month thereafter over a 38-month period; annual stock option grants vested over a 50-month period, with 2% of
the total shares each month. The vesting schedule for bhoth the initial and annual stock oplion grants were
adjusted, effective immediately in January 2002, such that, initial stock option grants vest over a 36-month
period with approximately 2.78% of the total shares vesting each month; annual grants are fully vested on the
date of grant. The change to the vesting schedule of the initial grant was designed o align the vesting period with
the three-year period for which a director holds office. The change to the vesting schedule of the annual grant
was designed to increase the independence of the board of directors by not making compensation contingent
upon continued service. In February 2002, the board of directors adjusted the vesting schedule of all outstanding
options under the Director Plan to be consistent with these new vesting schedules, Vested options granted under
the Director Plan generally may be exercised for three months after termination of the director's service 1o us,
except in the case of death or disability, in which case the options generally may be exercised up to six months
following the date of death or termination of service. The number of shares subject to any award, the exercise
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price and the number of shares issuable under this plan are subject to adjustments in the event of a change
relating to our capital structure,

In connection with the amendment and restatement of the 1998 Plan in 2007, we terminated the Directors’
Stock Option Plan, aithough it remains in place with respect to outstanding awards. As of June 30, 2008, a total
of 510,000 shares of common stock were reserved for awards outstanding under the Directors’ Plan, and no
shares were available for future awards.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The Employee Stock Purchase Plan was adopted by our board of
directors and approved by our sole stockholder in May 1998, and was amended by our board of direclors in
August 1998 and May 1999, with the approval of our stockholders in October 1999, as amended in January 2000
and September 2005 by our board of directors. In August 2007 our board of directors adopted the Amended and
Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Purchase Plan™), which was approved by stock holders in
December 2007. The Compensation Committee of our board of directors administers the Purchase Plan. The
purpose of the Purchase Plan is to provide our employees who participate in the Purchase Plan with an
opportunity to purchase our common stock through payroll deductions. Under thas Purchase Plan eligible
employees may purchase stock at 85% of the lower of the fair market value of the common stock (a) on the date
of commencement of the offering period or (b) the applicable exercise date within such offering period. A 6
month offering period commences every six months, generally at May | and November 1 of each year. For
offering periods that commenced prior to September 2005, the offering period was a 24-month period divided
into four 6-month periods. Purchases are limited to ten percent of each employee’s eligible compensation. The
number of shares subject to any award, the exercise price and the number of shares issuable under this plan are
subject to adjustments in the event of a change relating to our capital structure.

The number of shares that may be issued under Purchase Plan for awards made after its amendment and
restatement in 2007 is approximately 1.5 million. At June 30, 2008, 2.3 million shares had been issued under the
Purchase Plan and 1.2 million shares were reserved for future issuance.

2002 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan. Our board of directors adopted the 2002 Non-Qualified Stock
Option Plan (the *2002 Plan”) in April 2002. The Compensation Committee of our board of directors administers
the 2002 Plan. The 2002 Plan authorizes the issuance of 1,000,000 shares of non-qualified stock options to
employees and consultants. Stock options are granted at an exercise price of not less than the fair value on the
date of grant. In July 2005, the board of directors amended the award documents for the stock options granted
under the 2002 Plan. Options awarded prior to July 2005 expire ten years from the date of grant unless expiration
occurs earlier in connection with termination of employment. Stock option grants awarded prior to July 2005
generally vest over a 50-month period with 2% of the tota) shares vesting each month. In July 2005, the term and
vesting schedule for both the initial and annual stock option grants were adjusted, effective immediately,
Beginning in July 20035, options expire seven years from the date of grant unless expiration occurs earlier in
connection with termination of employment, Under the new vesting schedule, initial stock option grants vest over
a 36-month period with one-third of the total shares vesting on the f{irst anniversary of the date of grant and
approximately 2.78% of the total shares vesting each month thereafter over the remaining 24-month period.
Annual stock option grants vest over a 36-month period from the date of grant with approximately 2.78% of the
total shares vesting each month. Vested options granted under the 2002 Plan generally may be exercised for three
months after termination of the optionee’s service to us, except for options granted to executives or in the case of
death or disability, in which case the vested options generally may be exercised up to 12 months following the
date of death or termination of service. The number of shares subject to any award, the exercise price and the
number of shares issuable under this plan are subject to adjustments in the event of a change relating to our
capital structure. To date, the 2002 Plan has been primarily used for annual grants to employees.

In connection with the amendment and restatement of the 1998 Plan in 2007, we terminated the 2002 Plan,
although it remains in place with respect to outstanding awards. At June 30, 2008, and no shares were available
for future awards under the 2002 Plan.




Supplemental Stock Purchase Plan. The Supplemental Stock Purchase Plan (the “Supplemental Purchase
Plan™), formerly known as the Non-U.S. Purchase Plan, was adopted by our board of directors in July 1998 and
amended by the board in May 1999 and October 2005. The Compensation Committee of our board of directors
administers the Supplemental Plan. The purpose of the Supplemental Purchase Plan is to provide our employees
and consultants who do not provide services in the United States and who participate in the Supplemental
Purchase Plan with an opportunity to purchase our common stock through periodic contributions at the same
discount and subject to the same general rules as the Purchase Plan. The Supplemental Purchase Plan, like the
Purchase Plan, has 6-month offering periods commencing every six months, generally at May 1 and October 1
and each offering period is divided into four six-month exercise periods. For offering periods that commenced
prior to October 2005, the offering period was a 24-month period divided into four 6-month periods. The number
of shares subject to any award, the exercise price and the number of shares issuable under this plan are subject to
adjustments in the event of a change relating to our capital structure. The maximum number of shares reserved
under the Supplemental Plan is 60,000. At June 30, 2008, 37,945 shares had been issued under the Supplemental
Purchase Pian and 22,055 shares were reserved for future issuance.

As of June 30, 2008, total shares reserved for future awards under all plans were 5.6 million shares.

Activity under our Stock Option Plans is summarized as follows:

Weighted
Average Aggregate
Weighted Remaining Intrinsic
Number of Average Contractual Value
Shares Exercise Price Life (in thousands)
Qutstanding at July 1,2007 .. ...... 13,830,478 $7.39 5.19 $31,956
Options granted ............. 3.000,463 $6.37
Options exercised . ........... (478,374) $5.18
Options cancelled . ........... (2,689,906) $9.19
QOutstanding at June 30,2008 . ... ... 13,662,661 $6.90 4,47 $ 1,353
Exercisable at June 30,2008 ....... 10,609,371 $7.11 4.01 $ 1,353

Aggregate intrinsic value represents the excess of our closing stock price on the last trading day of the
period over the exercise price multiplied by the number of options outstanding or exercisable. The intrinsic value
of options exercised represents the excess of our closing stock price on the exercise date over the exercise price
multiplied by the number of options exercised. Total intrinsic value of options at time of exercise was $1.2
million, $196,000 and $2.6 million for 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Non-vested share activity under our Stock Options Plans for the year ended June 30, 2008 is summarized as
follows:

Non-vested Weighted Average

Number of Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value
Non-vested balance at July 1,2007 ., ... .....coiienienienan, 60,000 $4.72
VESIEH v vt e e e e (30,000) $4.72
Cancelled ......... oo (7.500) $4.52
Non-vested balance at June 30,2008 . .......... ... .. ... ..., 22.500 $4.79

As of June 30, 2008, $14,204 of total unrecognized compensation costs related to non-vested awards is
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 0.2 years. The fair value of shares vested during
fiscal 2008 was $235,000.
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Grant Date Fair Values. The weighted-average fair value has been estimated at the date of grant using a
Black-Scholes option-pricing model. In fiscal 2006, we refined the method of estimating the volatility of our
common stock which we believe provides a more reasonable forecast. For stock options, we estimated volatility
by considering both the implied volatility derived from publicly traded options to purchase our common stock
and historical stock volatility. As a result of the adjustment to our term and vesting schedule in July 2005 for
stock options awarded under our 1998 and 2002 Plans, we do not believe that we are able to rely on our historical
exercise and post-vested termination activity to provide relevant data for estimating our expected term for use in
determining the fair value of these options. Therefore, as allowed by SAB No. 107, Share-Based Paymeni, we
have opted to usc the simplified method for estimating our expected term equal to the midpoint between the
vesting period and the contractual term. Prior to fiscal 2006, we estimated volatility and the expected life based
solely on historical activity. The change in our assumptions did not have a significant impact on the fair valve of
our stock options granted in fiscal 2006.

The following are significant weighted average assumptions used for estimating the fair value of the activity
under our stock option plans:
Employee Stock Options Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Year Ended June 30, Year Ended June 30,
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 (1) 2006
Expected life (inyears) ................ .. ... .... 4.20 4.20 4.20 0.70 — 50
Risk-free interest rale . ... ... vvernn v e n. 361% 482% 4.37% 3.6% —_ 4.88%
Expected volatility . ......... ... ... ... .0l 0.51 63 74 0.40 — .55
Dividend yield . ....... .. ... ... ..o i 0.00% 000% 000% 0.00% — 0.00%
Grantdate fairvalue ............ ... ... ... ... $2.85 $3.70 $3.87 $3.87 — $2.03

(1} There were no employee stock purchases made in fiscal 2007,
Note 15 Income Taxes

Income before income taxes and the provision for taxes consisted of the following (in thousands):

Years Ended June 36,
2008 2007 2006
United States . ... ..oir i i i e $(14062) $ 2644 § 973
FOTEIEN ..ottt $(118,135) % 9,190 37,850
Total income beforetaxes .........oovrvnenennnn . $(132,197) $11,834  $8,823
The provision for income taxes consists of the following (in thousands):
Years Ended Jane 30,
2008 2007 2006
Federal:
CUITENL .« o e i it e et e $2,782 $ 284  $(4,126)
Deferred .. ... e —_ — —_
$2782 § 284 5(4,126)
State:
CUITENL . .o vt e it e e ianns 42) 70 32
Deferred ... ... . e e — — —
42) 70 32
Foreign:
CUITBNE oot e e e e e e 4,344 2,997 1,896
Deferred .. ..ot e (7,446} — —
3,102y 2,997 1,896
Total provision (benefit) for income taxes .............. $ (362) $3,351 $(2,198)




The provision for income taxes differs from the amount estimated by applying the statutory federal income
tax rate to income before taxes as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2008 2007 2006
Federal tax at Stattory rate . ....................... $(46,269) $4,142  $ 3,000
State INCOME tAXES ...\t erie et e e reaae s (169) 70 32
Goodwill impairment .. ....... ... ... . oL 31,122 — —
In-process research & development .. ................ 1,792 — 194
Stock-based compensation . ........ ... e 385 473 1,114
Foreign rate differential ........................... 4,109 (52) 42)
Researchtaxcredit ............ ... ... cciiiiiinn, 584 {409) (650)
Changes in valuation allowance . .................... 2,606 (1,088) (1,847
Decrease in tax reserves for IRSExam ............... —_ —_ (4,194)
Non-deductible acquisitioncosts .................... — 166 272
Non-deductible deferred purchase price consideration . . . 2,143 — —
Other ... e 3,335 49 a7
Total provision for income taxes .................... $ (362) $3,351  $(2,198)

The components of the net deferred income tax asset are as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,
2008 2007

Cumulative temporary differences:
Depreciation and amortization related items . ................... $ — § 620
ACCTUEd EXPEMSES . ..ottt i e e e 714 507
Accrued compensation benefit ........ ... .. .. ... L 475 121
Stock-based compensation .......... ... . iee e 7,399 5,697
Deferred revenUE . .. ... ..ottt e e e 1,090 179
Capital loss and tax loss carry forward .. ....................... 1,704 813
Taxcreditcarry forward . ......... ... ... .. ... . .. 878 843
Other, Nl . ... i e 250 57
Total deferred income tax asset . ...ttt 12,510 8,837
Valuation allowance ... ... ... e (11,700) (8,016)
Net deferred income tax asset . ... . vv et iiein i 810 821
Deferred tax liability related to other comprehensive income . . ... .. (4,999) {1}
Deferred tax liability related to purchased intangibles . ... ......... (3,134) (8200
Net deferred income tax asset (liability) ....................... $ (7327 §  —

As a result of the Chipidea acquisition, basis differences arose between tax and financial statements
purposes from assets acquired and liabilities assumed. SFAS 109 requires an enterprise to recognize deferred tax
assets and liabilities for those differences as a result of an acquisition. For the year ended June 30, 2008, $7.3
million of net deferred tax liability was recorded as a result of the acquisition of Chipidea. Based on the available
objective evidence, management believes it is more likely than not that for other net deferred tax assets may not
to be fully realizable. Accordingly, we have provided a fuil valuation allowance against our net deferred tax
assets at June 30, 2008 for US and other foreign jurisdictions. In fiscal 2008, the valuation altowance increased
by $3.7 million.

There are federal research credit carryforwards of approximately $1.7 million that will start to expire
beginning in 2020 through 2028, if not utilized. We also have state research tax credit carryforwards of
approximately $3.5 million at June 30, 2007 that have no expiration date. Federal foreign tax credit carry
forwards also exist of $3.2 million, which expire beginning in 2016 through 2018, if not utilized. We also have
federal AMT credit carry forwards of approximately $255,000 at June 30, 2008 that have no expiration date.
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Utilization of federal and state tax credits may be subject to substantial limitation due to the ownership
changes provided by the Internal Revenue Code and similar state provisions. The annual limitation may result in
expiration of tax credits before utilization.

U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxes have not been provided for on a cumulative total of $0.6
million of undistributed earnings for certain non-U.S. subsidiaries. These undistributed earnings are generally
considered to be indefinitely reinvested, and accordingly, no provision for U.S. income taxes has been provided
thereon. Upon distribution of these earnings, we will be subject to U.S. income taxes net of available foreign tax
credits associated with these earnings. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred U.S. income tax
liabilities and potential foreign tax credits is not practical to calculate because of the complexity of this
hypothetical calculation.

We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on July 1, 2007. The cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48 on July 1,
2007 is recognized as a change in accounting principle, recorded as an adjustment to the opening balance of
accumulated deficit on the adoption date. As a result of the implementation of FIN 48, we recognized a decrease
of approximately $0.3 million in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits related to tax positions taken in prior
periods, which resulted in a decrease of $0.3 million in accumulated deficit. The total amount of gross
unrecognized tax benefits was $3.7 million as of July 1, 2007 (the date of adoption of FIN 48) and $13.8 million
as of June 30, 2008. The increase in the gross unrecognized tax benefits from July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2008 was
primarily related to amounts assumed in the Chipidea acquisition. Also, the total amount of unrecognized tax
benefits that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate was $0.8 million as of July 1, 2007 and $3.0
million as of June 30, 2008. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the total amounts of
unrecognized tax benefits are as follows (in thousands):

Balance at July 1, 2007 ... e $ 3,749
Gross increases related to tax positions forcurrentyear .......... ... .. oo n 0,043
Gross increases related to tax positions forprioryear . ... ... ... o oot 1,179
Gross decreases related to tax positions for prioryear ......... ... oiiie i (123)
Balance at June 30, 2008 . ... ot e e i e $13,848

We recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as a component of provision for
income taxes. Accrued interest and penalties relating to the income tax on the unrecognized tax benefits was
approximately $150,000 as of July I, 2007 and approximately $1.5 million as of June 30, 2008, with
approximately $0.5 million being included as a component of pravision for income taxes for the year ended
June 30, 2008. The increase in interest and penalties during the year was primarily related to amounts assumed in
the Chipidea acquisition.

Although we file U.S. federal, U.S. state, and foreign tax returns, our major tax jurisdictions are the United
States and Portugal. Our fiscal 2005 and subsequent tax years remain subject to examination by the IRS for U.S.
federal tax purposes, and our calendar 2004 and subsequent tax years remain subject to examination by the
appropriate governmental agencies for Portuguese tax purposes. The Company has determined that it is
reasonably possible that the total amount of uncertain tax benefits relate to certain foreign tax liabilities will
change in the next 12 months. However, the amount could not be reasonably estimated.

Note 16. Contingencies
Litigation

A derivative action entitled In re MIPS Technologies, Inc. Derivative Litigation, Case No. C-06-06699-
RMW, was filed on October 27, 2006, in the United States District Court, Northern District of California, against
certain current and former MIPS officers and directors and MIPS as a nominal defendant. The complaint in the
action alleges that the individual defendants breached their fiduciary duties and violated California and federal
securities laws as a result of, among other things, purported backdating of stock option grants, insider trading and
the dissemination of false financial statements. Plaintiff seeks to recover purportedly on behalf of MIPS,
unspecified monetary damages, corporate governance changes, equitable and injunctive relief, and fees and
costs. A motion to dismiss the consolidated complaint was granted on January 11, 2008, with leave
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for plaintiff to amend. Plaintiff filed an amended complaint and MIPS filed a second motion to dismiss which was
granted without leave to amend on August 13, 2008, It is not clear what, if any, action plaintiff will take in
response to the court's granting of the motion.

From time to time, we receive communications from third parties asserting patent or other rights allegedly
covering our products and technologies. Based upon our evaluation, we may take no action or we may seek to
obtain a license, redesign an accused product or technology, initiate a formal proceeding with the appropriate
agency (e.g., the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office) and/or initiate litigation. There can be no assurance in any
given case that a license will be available on terms we consider reasonable or that litigation can be avoided if we
desire to do so, If litigation does ensue, the adverse third party will likely seek damages (potentially including
treble damages) and may seek an injunction against the sale of our products that incorporate allegedly infringed
intellectual property or against the operation of our business as presently conducted, which could result in our
having to stop the sale of seme of our products or to increase the costs of selling some of our products. Such
lawsuits could also damage our reputation, The award of damages, including material royalty payments, or the
entry of an injunction against the sale of some or all of our products, could have a material adverse affect on us.
Even if we were to initiate litigation, such action could be extremely expensive and time-consuming and could
have a material adverse effect on us. We cannot assure you that litigation related to our intellectual property
rights or the intellectual property rights of others can always be avoided or successfully concluded.

Even if we were to prevail, any litigation could be costly and time-consuming and would divert the attention
of our management and key personnel from our business operations, which could have a material adverse effect
Oon us.

Note 17. Operating and Geographic Segment Information

We evaluate our reportable segments in accordance with SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information (SFAS 131). Our Chief Executive Officer has been identified as our Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM allocates resources to the segments based on their business
prospects, competitive factors, net revenue and operating results.

Prior 10 fiscal year 2008, we operated in one reportable business group. In the first quarter of fiscal 2008,
following the acquisition of Chipidea, we organized into two business groups, the Processor Business Group
(PBG) and the Analog Business Group (ABG). These segments were determined based upon our internal
organization and management structure and are the primary way in which the CODM is provided with financial
information. The CODM evaluates segment performance based on net revenues and operating income, excluding
certain items. These excluded costs are certain corporate expenses such as impairment costs related to intangible
assets, general and administrative expenses, selling costs, [T costs, certain corporate marketing costs, the
amortization of purchased intangible assets associated with the Chipidea acquisition, employee share-based
compensation expense, cerlain acquisition costs related to the purchase of Chipidea and restructuring costs. Our
costs and operating results are analyzed in the two reportable business groups. The results of each segment have
been prepared using consistent accounting policies with those of MIPS as a whole. Segment information is
presented based upon our management’s organizational structure as of June 30, 2008. Future changes to the
internal financial structure may result in changes to the reportable segments disclosed.

The major segments we serve are as follows:
(i) Processor Business Group:

The PBG provides industry-standard processor architectures and cores for digital consumer and business
applications. This group designs and licenses high performance 32- and 64-bit architectures and cores, which
offer smaller dimensions and greater energy efficiency in embedded processors. Markets served by the PBG
segment include digital set-top digital televisions, DVD recordable devices, broadband access devices, digital
cameras, laser printers, portable media players, microcontrollers and network routers.

(i) Analog Business Group:

The ABG includes the Chipidea operation and provides analog and mixed-signal IP that produces cost-
efficient System-on-Chip (SoC) applications and turnkey solutions. The ABG IP portfolio covers all fundamental
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functions in the analog and mixed-signal electronic space, including data conversion, clock management, power
management, radio connectivity, physical connectivity, and voice audio and video processing. Market segruents
served by the ABG segment are wireless communications, power line communications, data communications,
video, audio and voice signal processing, xDSL modems, set-top boxes, multimedia and digital consumer
electronics.

The following is a summary of net revenue, gross margin and operating income (loss) by segment for 2008,
2007 and 2006. Prior period segment information has been reclassified to conform to the current period
presentation (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,
2008 2007 2006

Processor Business Group

Net Revenue (1) ... i i aannieenns $ 75,571 $ 83,310 $ 64,054

Gross MAargin ... ... i i e 73,737 81,647 62,808

Operating income (1088} .. ... .. .. v 42,348 45,541 33,568
Analog Business Group

NetRevenue (2) ... i c it 29,222 — —_

Gross Margin ... i e 6,628 — —

Operating income (loss) ... i 2,482 —_ —
All Other

Net Revenue .. ... i et e it — —_ —

Gross MArgin .. .....ovun ittt (7,733)(3) — —

Operating income (l0ss) .......... ... i i, (172,946)(4) (40,177)(5) (29,118)(6)
Total

Net ReVEIUE & ottt et ettt e e et e e eans 104,793 83,310 64,054

GrossMargin ......... .. i 72,632 81,647 62,808

Operating income (I0S8) ... i (128,116} 5,364 4,450
INEETESTL IMCOIME . . . o .t ottt sttt e e e e e ee e ea e et e 1,132 6,656 4,413
INterest EXPense .. ..o vttt i (1,746) 4) 2)
Other income {eXpense), Met . ... ... ..ottt iaainnaninnns (3.467) (182) 38)
Income (loss) before incometaxes . ... ......oootiiiii i (132,197) 11,834 8,823
Provision for (benefit from} income taxes ............. .. ... (362) 3,351 (2,198)

Netincome (losS) . ... oottt ia e $(131,835) $ 8,483 $ 11,021

Management does not allocate long-lived assets to the corporate function when evaluating the performance
of the business groups,

(1) For 2008, 2007 and 2006, PBG net revenue consisted of (i) royalty revenue of $45.6 million, $44.4
million and $36.7 million, respectively, and (ii) license and contract revenue of $30.0 million, $38.9
million and $27.4 million, respectively,

(2) ABG net revenue consisted of royalty revenue of $0.8 million and license and contract revenue of
28.4 million in 2008.

(3) All Other gross margin in 2008 primarily relates to $7.7 million of purchased intangible asset
amortization associated with the acquisition of Chipidea.

(4) All Other operating loss in 2008 primarily relates to impairment of goodwill and acquired intangible
assets of $103.1 million, corporate general and administrative expenses of $22.7 million, corporate
selling expenses of $13.7 million, employee share-based compensation expense of $7.9 million,
purchased intangible asset amortization associated with the acquisition of Chipidea of $8.2 million,
in-process research and development expense from the Chipidea acquisition of $6.4 million, certain
Chipidea acquisition cosis of $5.8 million, corporate IT expenses of $2.0 million, corporate marketing
expenses of $1.6 million and restructuring costs of $1.6 million.
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(5) Al Other operating loss in 2007 primarily relates to corporate general and administrative expenses of
$18.5 million, corporate selling expense of $10.5 million, employee share-based compensation expense
of $7.7 million, corporate IT expenses of $1.9 million and corporate marketing expenses of $1.6
mitlion.

(6) All Other operating loss in 2006 primarily relates to corporate general and administrative expenses of
$9.8 million, corporate selling expenses of $8.0 million, employee share-based compensation expense
of $8.3 million, corporate IT expenses of $1.2 million, corporate marketing expenses of $1.2 million
and in-process research and development expense from the FS2 acquisition of $0.6 million,

Our revenue by geographic area is as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended June 30,

2008 2007 2006
United States . . ... ... it $ 48,729 $39.296  $3i,142
Japan . ... i e 16,550 14,117 12,221
Pacific Rim . ... 15,725 7,091 5,985
EUIOPe ... e 12,844 7.219 6,317
Restof World .............. ... .. 10,945 15,587 8,389
Total TEVENUE .. ..ottt et it et e e ieeeeeanns $104,793  $83.310 $64,054

In 2008, 2007 and 2006, one customer accounted for 18%, 14%, and 13% of our Processor Business Group
revenue, respectively. In addition, in 2006, one other customer accounted for 12% of our Processor Business
Group revenue.

Our long-lived assets include tangible long-term assets. The following is a summary by geographic area (in
thousands): |

June 30,
2008 2007 |
United States . ... e e $22,832 $%16,280
Japan L e 187 164
Pacific RImM ... .t e 1,128 1,311
EurOpe ... e e e 16,433 605
Restof World . ... ... . . e 13 —_
Total long lived assets . ... oot ns, $40,593  $18,360

Note 18. Subsequent event
Debt

On July 3, 2008, MIPS Technologies, Inc. (“MIPS™) entered into a loan and security agreement with Silicon
Valley Bank {“SVB”). The loan and security agreement provides for a $15 million term loan and a revolving
credit facility in an amount up to $10 million. The borrowing availability under the revolving credit facility
varies according to MIPS’ accounts receivable and recurring royalty revenues and other terms and conditions
described in the loan and security agreement. The revolving credit facility will also be available for the issuance
of letters of credit, cash management services and foreign exchange contracts. The revolving credit facility will
mature on July 2, 2009, while the term loan will be repaid in 48 equal monthly payments of principal plus
accrued interest. Loans under the loan and security agreement are secured by substantially all of MIPS assets,
other than intellectual property. The proceeds borrowed on July 3, 2008, which included the full amount of the
$15 million term loan, together with approximately $1.2 million of borrowings under the revolving credit facility,
were used to repay all outstanding loans under our existing revolving credit agreement with Jefferies Finance
LLC. At the Company’s election, borrowings under the facility bear interest at prime rate plus 0.50% as defined
in the credit facility agreement. The prime rate at August 31, 2008 was 5.0%.
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Restructuring

On August 13, 2008, we announced a plan to reduce the Company’s operating costs by a reduction in
employee headcount. This plan involves the termination of employees in the Company’s facilities in the United
States, Israel and Europe. We expect to complete all actions under the restructuring by June 30, 2009. We expect
to incur aggregate costs associated with this plan of approximately $6.5 million to $7.5 million. It is expected
that the majority of these charges will consist of employee severance charges.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controis and procedures to ensure that information we are required to disclose in
reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Act”) is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange
Commissions rules and forms. Qur management evaluated, with the participation of our chief executive officer
and our chief financial officer, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is
defined under Rule 13a-15(¢) under the Exchange Act.

Based on our evaluation, our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer have concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures, at a reasonable assurance level, were not effective as of June 30, 2008 due to
the existence of the material weakness discussed under “Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting” below.

(b) Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Internal control over financial reporting is
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
Internal control over financial reporting is a process that involves human diligence and compliance and is subject
to lapses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human failures. Internal control over financial reporting
also can be circumvented by collusion or improper management override. Because of its inherent limitations,
internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. It is possible to design
safeguards to reduce, though not eliminate, this risk. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our management evaluated the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting using the
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”} in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework. Based on this evaluation, our management identified the following
material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis.

The material weakness pertains to controls relating to the process of accounting for income taxes.
Specifically, controls relating to the oversight and review of the tax provision by qualified personnel experienced
in the application of tax rules, regulations and related accounting, and timely consultation with experts were
ineffective. As a result of lack of oversight and review, errors were identified by our auditors in income tax
expense and deferred tax assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2008. These errors were corrected in the
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008.
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As a result of the material weakness described above, management believes that, as of June 30, 2008, our
internal control over financial reporting was not effective based on the criteria in Internal Control—inegrated
Framework. Our management’s assessment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting did not include the internat controls of Chipidea Microelectrénica S.A. (Chipidea), which was
acquired on August 27, 2007. As allowed pursuant to guidance from the Securities and Exchange Commission,
the evaluation of internal control over financial reporting of Chipidea has been excluded. Chipidea, which is
included in the 2008 consolidated financial statements of MIPS Technologies, Inc. constituted 46% and 28% of
total assets and total revenue, respectively, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008.

Our internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2008, has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP,
an independent registered public accounting firm, who expressed an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of
internal controls over financial reporting as stated in their report which is included below.

{c) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
MIPS Technologies, inc.

We have audited MIPS Technologies, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2008,
based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). MIPS Technologies, Inc.’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included as Management's Report on Internal Control
over Financial Reporting in ltem 9A(b) above. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States}. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reascnable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As indicated in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting in ltem 9A(b) above,
management’s assessment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did
not include the internal controls of Chipidea Microelectrénica S.A. (Chipidea), which was acquired on
August 27, 2007. Chipidea, which is included in the 2008 consolidated financial statements of MIPS
Technologies, Inc. constituted 46% and 28% of total assets and total revenue, respectively, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2008. Qur audit of internal control over financial reporting of MIPS Technologies, Inc. also did
not include an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of Chipidea.
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A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or
interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. In its assessment management
has identified a material weakness in controls related to the process of accounting for income taxes. This material
weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the
June 30, 2008 consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated September 10,
2008 on those financial statements.

In our opinion, because of the effect of the material weakness described above on the achievement of the
objectives of the control criteria, MIPS Technologies, Inc. has not maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of June 30, 2008, based on the COSO criteria.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP

Palo Alto, California
September 10, 2008

(d) Remediation Plan

In June 2007, during preparation of the fiscal 2006 consolidated financial statements, our management
identified as of June 30, 2006 a material weakness pertaining to controls relating to the process of accounting for
income taxes, as described in (b) above. While management commenced executing on the remediation plan for
this material weakness in late June 2007, the plan was in progress as of June 30, 2008, primarily due to employee
turnover during fiscal 2008 and challenges in recruiting and retaining personnel with adequate experience and
skills in application of complex tax rules and related accounting. Qur remediation plan includes: a) reduction in
the turnover of internal and external tax professionals, b) consideration and implementation of additional review
of tax provision and reconciliations by qualified personnel experienced in application of tax rules and regulations
and accounting for income taxes, and c) consultation with tax experts in a timely manner. We expect to complete
the implementation of the controls included in this remediation plan during fiscal 2009. Competition for highly
qualified tax personnel remains intense in the Bay Area. Our inability to atiract and retain personnel with
adequate experience and skills could make it difficult to timely complete the remediation plan.

(e) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Except for the changes implemented to remediate the material weakness relative to the process of
accounting for income taxes, there were no significant changes in our internal control over the financial reporting
that occurred during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B.  Other Information

None.
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PART III
Item 10.  Directors, and Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Information concerning our directors is incorporated by reference to the information in the section entitled
“Proposal No. 1—Election of Directors” in cur Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be filed with the Commission within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

Information concerning our executive officers is in Item 4A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Information concerning compliance with Section 16{(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
is incorporated by reference to information in the section entitled “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” in our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the
Commission within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended June 30, 2008,

We have adopted a code of business conduct that applies to all of our directors, officers and employees and
a code of ethics that applies to our chief executive officer, chief financial officer, and controller. A copy of this
cade is located on the Company’s website at www.mips.com.

Item 11.  Executive Compensation

Information regarding executive compensation is incorporated by reference to the information in the section
entitled “Executive Compensation” in our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be
filed with the Commission within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matrers

Informaticn regarding security ownership of cerain beneficial owners and management is incorporated by
reference to the information in the section entitled “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management” in our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders 1o be filed with the
Commission within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

We maintain the 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as Amended and Restated, Directors’ Stock Option Plan,
and Employee Stock Purchase Plan, all of which were approved by our stockholders, and the 2002 Non-Qualified
Stock Option Plan and the Supplemental Stock Purchase Plan, neither of which was subject to stockholder
approval. The features of these plans are described in Note 14 of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
In connection with the adoption of the 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as Amended and Restated in 2007, we
terminated the Directors’ Stock Option Plan and the 2002 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan, except with respect
to awards remaining outstanding under those plans, The following table presents information about these plans as
of June 30, 2008.

(a) (b} {c)

Number of securities
remaining available

Number of securities ~ Weighted-average for future issuance
to be issued upon exercise price of under equity
exercise of outstanding compensation plans
outstanding options, options, warrants (excluding securities
M warrants and rights (1) and rights refiected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders .. ... ... .. L L 12,693,249 $6.93 5,603,012¢2)
Equity compensation plans not approved by
securityholders ... ....................... 669,412 $6.33 22,055(3)
Total ... o 13,662,661 $6.90 5,625,067

(1) Excludes purchase rights currently accruing under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan and the Supplemental
Stock Purchase Plan.
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(2) These shares include 4,402,592 shares that remain available under the 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as
Amended and Restated and 1,200,420 shares that remain available under the Employee Stock Purchase
Plan, The shares available under the 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as Amended and Restated, may be
issued as stock-based awards including incentive and non-statutory stock options, stock appreciation rights,
restricted stock, stock units, bonus stock and other stock related awards.

(3) These shares remain available under the Supplemental Stock Purchase Plan.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

Information regarding certain relationships and related transactions is incorporated by reference to the
information in the section entitled “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence”
in our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Commission within 120
days after the end of our fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

Information regarding principal accountant fees and services is incorporated by reference to the information
in the section entitled “Fees Paid to the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” in our Proxy Statement
for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Commission within 120 days after the end of
our fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.
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PART 1V
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) The following docurments are filed as a part of this Report:

1. Financial Statements, The foliowing consolidated financial statements and supplementary information
and Report of Independent Auditors are included in Part 1l of this Report:

Page
Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm .. .. .. 41
Consolidated Balance Sheets—As of June 30, 2008 and 2007 .......... ... ... .. .... 42

Consolidated Statements of Operations—Years Ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 . .. 43
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders” Equity—Years Ended June 30, 2008, 2007

ANA 2000 ... e e e i 44
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows—Years Ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 .. 45
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ........ ... ettt irremnrnnrnnn 46

2. Financial Statement Schedule: See “Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts” in this section
of this Form 10-K.

SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(In Thousands)
Additions
Balance at Charged Net
Beginning of (Credited) Deductions Balance at
Year to Expenses (Recoveries) End of Year
Allowance for doubtful receivables for the year ended June 30,
2000 L e e i e 58 — &8 — 5 — & —
2007 e e $ — % 4 & — 3 4
2008 L h) 4 $3251 & (945 § 2310
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets for the year ended
June 30,
Fiscal 2006 .. .. ... e $21325 & —  $10,443  $10,882
Fiscal 2007 . ... o $10882 § — $2866 § 8016
Fiscal 2008 . . ... ... . e $ 8016 83684 § — 511,700 Q’ﬁ
Deductions represent uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoveries. E
-t
3. Exhibits. The following Exhibits are filed as part of, or incorporated by reference into, this Report: —
Exhibit No. List of Exhibits ;
2.1 Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 24, 2007, by and among the Registrant, Atlantic

Acqco, Limitada, the shareholders of Chipidea—M icroelectrénica S.A. and Espirito Santo
Ventures—Sociedade De Capital De Risco, SA, as the Shareholders’ Representative {incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company's Form 8-K filed on August 24, 2007).

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s
Form 8-K filed on November 14, 2003).

32 Amended and Restated By-Laws (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.01 to the
Company’s Form 8-K filed on December 20, 2007).

4.1 Amended and Restated Preferred Stock Rights Agreement, as amended (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.11.3 to the Company’s Form 8-A12G/A filed on November 18, 2003).
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Exhibit No.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10

10.11*

10.12%

10.13

10.14*

10.15*

10.16*

List of Exhibits

The Amended and Restated Separation Agreement between the Company and Silicon Graphics,
Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 1999).

The Corporate Agreement between the Company and Silicon Graphics, Inc. (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-
73071 (the “Registration Statement™)).

The Management Services Agreement between the Company and Silicon Graphics, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registration Statement).

The Tax Sharing Agreement between the Company and Silicon Graphics, Inc. (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registration Statement).

The Technology Agreement between the Company and Silicon Graphics, Inc. {(incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registration Statement).

The Trademark Agreement between the Company and Silicon Graphics, Inc. (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registration Statement).

The 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2004).

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.03
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Januvary 11, 2008).

Directors’ Stock Option Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002).

The Tax Indemnification Agreement between the Company and Silicon Graphics (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended June 30, 2000).

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2000).

2002 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Company’s Form S-8 filed with the Commission on April 29, 2002).

lease agreement dated May 30, 2002 between the Company and SL INVESTMENTS V, LLC
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 1(-K
for the year ended June 30, 2002).

Form of Award Document, as amended for Stock Option Grant to Director/Officer under the 1998
Long-Term Incentive Plan comprised of Stock Option Agreement and Notice of Stock Option
Grant (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.02 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on December 6, 2007).

Form of Award Document, as amended for Stock Option Grant to Employee under the 1998 Long-
Term Incentive Plan comprised of Stock Option Agreement and Notice of Stock Option Grant
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.03 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on December 6, 2007).

Form of Award Document for Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement under the 1998 Long-Term
Incentive Plan {incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2004).
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Exhibit No.

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24

10.25

10.26*

10.27*

10.28*

10.29

10.30

List of Exhibits

Form of Award Document for Director Stock Option Agreement (Initial Grant) under the
Directors’ Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2004),

Form of Award Document for Director Stock Option Agreement (Renewal Grant) under the
Directors’ Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2004).

Form of Award Document, as amended for Stock Option Grant to International Employee under
the 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan comprised of Stock Option Agreement and Notice of Stock
Option Grant (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on Auogust 3, 2005).

Form of Indemnity Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 31, 2005).

Separation Agreement between Russ Bell and the Company (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 99.02 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 22, 2005)

Separation Agreement between Kevin C. Eichler and the Company (incorperated hereby by
reference to Exhibit 99.01 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 4,
2006).

Separation Agreement between Catherine Hunt Rundle and the Company (incorporated hereby by
reference to Exhibit 10.24 1o the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on September 13,
2007).

Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of August 24, 2007, by and among MIPS Technologies,
Inc., the various financial institutions party thereto, and Jefferies Finance LLC, as Administrative
Agent, sole bookrunner, sole lead arranger, sole syndication agent and sole underwriter
{incorporated hereby by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on August 24, 2007).

Security Agreement, dated as of August 24, 2007, by and among MIPS Technologies, Inc., MIPS
Technologies Holding LLLC, MIPS Technologies International AG, and each other Subsidiary of
MIPS Technologies, Inc. as may from time to time become a party hereto in favor of Jefferies
Finance LLC, as Collateral Agent for the Secured Parties (incorporated hereby by reference to
Exhibit 10.02 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 24, 2007).

Performance-Based Bonus Plan for Executives (incorporated hereby by reference to Exhibit 99.01
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 10, 2007).

Special Bonus Plan Letter Agreement (incorporated hereby by reference to Exhibit 99.02 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 10, 2007).

Change in Control Agreement (incorporated hereby by reference to Exhibit 99.03 1o the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K fited on October 10, 2007).

Use and Construction Rights Agreement between Tagusparque - Sociedade de Promocio e
Desenvolvimento do Parque de Cién e Tecnologia da Area de Lisboa ("Tagusparque”) to Banco
Comercial Portugués, S.A. (BCP), dated November 5, 2004 (described in Section 1.2.1 of the
Summary of Documents filed as Exhibit 10.31 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
filed on September 30, 2007).

Financial real estate lease agreement dated November 5, 2004, and Addendum thereto dated May
4, 2007, between BCP and Chipidea (described in Sections 1.2.2 and 1.2.3 of the Summary of
Documents filed as Exhibit 10.31 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on
September 30, 2007).

79

o
=)
ﬂ
=)
f—
T
~




Exhibit No.

10.31

10.32

10.33*

10.34%

10.35

10.36*

10.37

10.38

21.1
231
31.1

31.2

32.1

322

List of Exhibits

Promissory sale and purchase agreement and acknowledge of initial payment dated June 12, 2006,
and Addendum thereto dated March 16, 2007, between Chpidea and Fundimo—Sociedade Gestora
de Fudos de Investimento Imobiliario, S.A. (Fundimo) (described in Sections 1.2.4 and 1.2.5 of
the Summary of Documents filed as Exhibit 10.31 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed on September 30, 2007),

Promissory real estate lease agreement dated July 12, 2006 between Chipidea and Fundimo
(described in Section !.2.6 of the Summary of Documents filed as Exhibit 10.31 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on September 30, 2007).

Offer Letter, dated November 15, 2007 from the registrant to Stuart J. Nichols (incorporated
hereby by reference to Exhibit 99.02 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
November 19, 2007).

Offer Letter, dated December 12, 2007 from the registrant to John E. Derrick (incorporated hereby
by reference to Exhibit 99.02 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 1,
2008).

Amendment No. 1, dated as of February 22, 2008, to the Credit Agreement, dated as of August 24,
2007, among the Registrant and various financial institutions, as the Lenders, and Jefferies
Finance LLC, as Sole Lead Arranger, Sole Bookrunner, Collateral Agent, Administrative Agent,
Sole Syndication Agent and Sole Underwriter {(incorporated hereby by reference to Exhibit 99.01
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 15, 2008)

Offer Letter, dated March 6, 2008 from the registrant to Maury Austin (incorporated hereby by
reference to Exhibit 99.02 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 18,
2008).

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of July 3, 2008, by and among Silicon Valley Bank and
the Registrant (incorporated hereby by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on July 8, 2008)

Amendment No. 1, dated as of February 22, 2008, to the Credit Agreement, dated as of August 24,
2007, among the Registrant and various financial institutions, as the Lenders, and Jefferies
Finance LLC, as Sole Lead Arranger, Sole Bookrunner, Collateral Agent, Administrative Agent,
Sole Syndication Agent and Sole Underwriter {(incorporated hereby by reference to Exhibit 95.01
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 15, 2008)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
Consent of Emst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this Annual
Report on Form 10-K pursuant to Item 15(b) of said form.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requiremenis of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned. thereunto duly authorized.

Date: September 12, 2008

MIPS Technologies, Inc.

By: /s/ JouN E. BOURGOIN

John E. Bourgoin
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

Title

Date

/s JoHN E. BOURGOIN

John E. Bourgoin

/s/ MAURY AUSTIN

Maury Austin

/s/ KENNETH L. COLEMAN

Kenneth L. Coleman

Jose E. Franca

/s/ FreD M. GIBBONS

Fred M. Gibbons

/s/ ROBERT R. HERB

Robert R. Herb

/s/ ANTHONY B. HOLBROOK

Anthony B. Holbrook

/s/ WiLLIAM M., KELLY

William M. Kelly

/s/ ROBIN L. WASHINGTON

Robin L. Washington

Chief Executive Officer and Director

{Principal Executive Officer)

Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer (Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director and Chairman of the Board

Director

Director

31

September 12, 2008

September 12, 2008

September 12, 2008

September 12, 2008

September 12, 2008

September 12, 2008

September 12, 2008

September 12, 2008

September 12, 2008
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2.1
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32

4.1

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7*
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10.9*

10.10

10.11*

10.12%*

10.13

EXHIBIT INDEX
Index of Exhibits

Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 24, 2007, by and among the Registrant, Atlantic
Acqco, Limitada, the shareholders of Chipidea—Microelectrénica S.A. and Espirito Santo
Ventures—Sociedade De Capital De Risco, SA, as the Shareholders” Representative (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on August 24, 2007).

Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s
Form 8-K filed on November 14, 2003).

Amended and Restated By-Laws (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.01 to the
Company’s Form 8-K filed on December 20, 2007).

Amended and Restated Preferred Stock Rights Agreement, as amended (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.11.3 to the Company’s Form 8-A12G/A filed on November 18, 2003).

The Amended and Restated Separation Agreement between the Company and Silicon Graphics,
Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 1999).

The Corporate Agreement between the Company and Silicon Graphics, Inc. (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-
73071 (the “Registration Statement™)).

The Management Services Agreement between the Company and Silicon Graphics, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registration Statement).

The Tax Sharing Agreement between the Company and Silicon Graphics, Inc. (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registration Statement).

The Technology Agreement between the Company and Silicon Graphics, Inc. (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registration Statement),

The Trademark Agreement between the Company and Silicon Graphics, Inc. (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registration Statement).

The 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2004).

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.03
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 11, 2008).

Directors’ Stock Option Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002).

The Tax Indemnification Agreement between the Company and Silicon Graphics (incorporaied
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended June 30, 2000).

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2000).

2002 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Company’s Form S$-8 filed with the Commission on April 29, 2002).

Lease agreement dated May 30, 2002 between the Company and SL INVESTMENTS V, LLC
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended June 30, 2002).
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10.14*

10.15*

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24

10.25

10.26*

10.27*

Index of Exhibits

Form of Award Document, as amended for Stock Option Grant to Director/Officer under the 1998
Long-Term Incentive Plan comprised of Stock Option Agreement and Notice of Stock Option
Grant (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.02 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on December 6, 2007).

Form of Award Document, as amended for Stock Option Grant to Employee under the 1998 Long-
Term Incentive Ptan comprised of Stock Option Agreement and Notice of Stock Option Grant
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.03 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
fited on December 6, 2007).

Form of Award Document for Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement under the 1998 Long-Term
Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2004).

Form of Award Document for Director Stock Option Agreement (Initial Grant) under the
Directors’ Stock Option Plan {incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2004).

Form of Award Document for Director Stock Option Agreement (Renewal Grant) under the
Directors’ Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.20 1o the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2004).

Form of Award Document, as amended for Stock Option Grant to International Employee under
the 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan comprised of Stock Option Agreement and Notice of Stock
Option Grant (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on August 3, 2005).

Form of Indemnity Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 31, 2005).

Separation Agreement between Russ Bell and the Company (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 99.02 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 22, 2005)

Separation Agreement between Kevin C. Eichler and the Company (incorporated hereby by
reference to Exhibit 99.01 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 4,
2006).

Separation Agreement between Catherine Hunt Rundle and the Company (incorporated hereby by
reference to Exhibit 10.24 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on September 13,
2007).

Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of August 24, 2007, by and among MIPS Fechnologies,
Inc., the various financial institutions party thereto, and Jefferies Finance LLC, as Administrative
Agent, sole bookrunner, sole lead arranger, sole syndication agent and sole underwriter
(incorporated hereby by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on August 24, 2007).
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Security Agreement, dated as of August 24, 2007, by and among MIPS Technologies, Inc., MIPS
Technologies Holding LLC, MIPS Technologies International AG, and each other Subsidiary of
MIPS Technologies, Inc. as may from time to time become a party hereto in favor of Jefferies
Finance LLC, as Collateral Agent for the Secured Parties (incorporated hereby by reference to
Exhibit 10.02 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 24, 2007).

Performance-Based Bonus Plan for Executives (incorporated hereby by reference to Exhibit 99.01
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 10, 2007).

Special Bonus Plan Letter Agreement (incorporated hereby by reference to Exhibit 99.02 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 10, 2007).
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Index of Exhibits

Change in Control Agreement ((incorporated hereby by reference to Exhibit 99.03 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 10, 2007).

Use and Construction Rights Agreement between Tagusparque - Sociedade de Promocéao e
Desenvolvimento do Parque de Cién e Tecnologia da Area de Lisboa (“Tagusparque”) to Banco
Comercial Portugués, S.A. (BCP), dated November 5, 2004 (described in Section 1.2.1 of the
Summary of Documents filed as Exhibit 10.31 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
filed on September 30, 2007).

Financial real estate lease agreement dated November 5, 2004, and Addendum thereto dated
May 4, 2007, between BCP and Chipidea (described in Sections 1.2.2 and 1.2.3 of the Summary
of Documents filed as Exhibit 10.31 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on
September 30, 2007).

Promissory sale and purchase agreement and acknowledge of initial payment dated June 12, 2006,
and Addendum thereto dated March 16, 2007, between Chpidea and Fundimo - Sociedade Gestora
de Fudos de Investimento Imobiliario, S.A. (Fundimo) (described in Sections 1.2.4 and 1.2.5 of
the Summary of Documents filed as Exhibit 10.31 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q filed on September 30, 2007).

Promissory real estate lease agreement dated July 12, 2006 between Chipidea and Fundimo
{described in Section 1.2.6 of the Summary of Documents filed as Exhibit 10.31 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on September 30, 2007).

Offer Letter, dated November 15, 2007 from the registrant to Stuart J. Nichols (incorporated
hereby by reference to Exhibit 99.02 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
November 19, 2007).

Offer Letter, dated December 12, 2007 {rom the registrant to John E. Derrick (incorporated hereby
by reference to Exhibit 99.02 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 1,
2008).

Amendment No. 1, dated as of February 22, 2008, to the Credit Agreement, dated as of August 24,
2007, among the Registrant and various financial institutions, as the Lenders, and Jefferies
Finance LLC, as Sole Lead Arranger, Sole Bookrunner, Collateral Agent, Administrative Agent,
Sole Syndication Agent and Sole Underwriter (incorporated hereby by reference to Exhibit 99.01
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 15, 2008)

Offer Letter, dated March 6, 2008 from the registrant to Maury Austin (incorporated hereby by
reference to Exhibit 99.02 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 18,
2008).

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of July 3, 2008, by and among Silicon Valley Bank and
the Registrant (incorporated hereby by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on July 8§, 2008)

Amendment No. 1, dated as of February 22, 2008, to the Credit Agreement, dated as of August 24,
2007, among the Registrant and various financial institutions, as the Lenders, and Jefferies
Finance LLC, as Sole Lead Arranger, Sole Bookrunner, Collateral Agent, Administrative Agent,
Sole Syndication Agent and Sole Underwriter (incorporated hereby by reference to Exhibit 99.01
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 15, 2008)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
Consent of Ernst & Young LI.P, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002




Exhibit No. Index of Exhibits

312 Centification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

322 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this Annual
Report on Form 10-K pursuant to Item 15(b) of said form.




Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Form $-8 Nos. 333-65693,
333-95339, 333-44526, 333-66028, 333-87172, 333-100092, 333-107849, 333-118129, 333-127436,
333-144297, 333-145907 and 333-148606) pertaining to the 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and
restated, the Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended and restated, the Directors’ Stock Option Plan, as
amended, the Non-U.S. Stock Purchase Plan, and the 2002 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan of MIPS
Technologies, Inc. of our reports dated September 10, 2008 with respect to the consolidated financial statements
and schedule of MIPS Technologies, Inc., and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of
MIPS Technologies, Inc., included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended June 30, 2008.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP

Palo Alto, California
September 10, 2008




Exhibit 31.1
FORM 10-K CERTIFICATION
I, John E. Bourgoin, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of MIPS Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a matenal fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in ali material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures {as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)} and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the peried covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred durning the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

{a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b} Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 12, 2008 By:/s/_JOHN E. BOURGOIN

John E. Bourgoin
President and Chief Executive Officer,
MIPS Technologies, Inc.




Exhibit 31.2
FORM 10-K CERTIFICATION
I, Maury Austin, certify that;
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form [0-K of MIPS Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit 10
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements. and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15({f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures 1o be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

(b} Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evalvation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a} All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 12, 2008 By: /8! _MAURY AUSTIN

Moaury Austin
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer,
MIPS Technologies, Inc.




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, John E. Bourgoin, certify, to the best of my knowledge, that based upon a review of the Annual Report on
Form 10-K of MIPS Technologies, Inc. for the twelve months ended June 30, 2008 (the “Form 10-K™), the
Form 10-K fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and that information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of MIPS Technologies, Inc. for the twelve month period covered by the
Form 10-K.

Date: September 12, 2008 By: /s/ JoHN E. BOURGOIN

John E, Bourgoin
President and Chief Executive Officer,
MIPS Technologies, Inc.
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A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided by MIPS Technologies and
will be retained by it and furnished to the Securities Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Maury Austin, certify, to the best of my knowledge, that based upon a review of the Annual Report on
Form 10-K of MIPS Technologies, Inc. for the twelve months ended June 30, 2008 (the “Form 10-K’"), the
Form 10-K fully complies with the requirements of Section 13{a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and that information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of MIPS Technologies, Inc. for the twelve month period covered by the
Form 10-K.

Date: September 12, 2008 By: /s MAURY AUSTIN

Maury Austin
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer,
MIPS Technologies, Inc.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided by MIPS Technologies and
will be retained by it and furnished to the Securities Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




